1	FOLEY & LARDNER LLP	
2	Eileen R. Ridley (CA Bar No. 151735) Tel: (415) 438-6469; eridley@foley.com	
3	Shane J. Moses (CA Bar No. 250533)	
3	Tel: (415) 438-6404; smoses@foley.com Ann Marie Uetz (admitted pro hac vice)	
4	Tel: (313) 234-7114; auetz@foley.com	
5	Matthew D. Lee (admitted <i>pro hac vice</i>) Tel: (608) 258-4203; mdlee@foley.com	
6	Geoffrey S. Goodman (admitted <i>pro hac vice</i>) Tel: (312) 832-4515; ggoodman@foley.com	
	Mark C. Moore (admitted <i>pro hac vice</i>)	
7	Tel: (214) 999-4150; mmoore@foley.com One Market Plaza	
8	55 Spear Street Tower, Suite 1900	
9	San Francisco, CA 94105	
10	Counsel for the Debtor and Debtor in Possession	
11	UNITED STATES B	ANKRUPTCY COURT
12		
13	NORTHERN DISTR	RICT OF CALIFORNIA
14	OAKLAN	D DIVISION
15	In re:	Case No. 23-40523
16	THE ROMAN CATHOLIC BISHOP OF OAKLAND, a California corporation sole,	Chapter 11
		DEBTOR'S NOTICE OF SUBMISSION OF
17	Debtor.	ORDER FOLLOWING NOVEMBER 12, 2025 STATUS CONFERENCE ON DEBTOR'S
18		MOTION TO DISMISS CHAPTER 11 CASE PURSUANT TO 11 U.S.C. §1112(b)
19		Judge: Hon. William J. Lafferty
20		Judge. Hon. William J. Lanerty
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		
28		

Entered: 11/2 234052325112000000000001 Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456 Filed: 11/20/25

4909-2408-5881.2

TO THE HONORABLE WILLIAM J. LAFFERTY, UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY JUDGE AND ALL INTERESTED PARTIES AND/OR THEIR COUNSEL OF RECORD:

The Roman Catholic Bishop of Oakland, a California corporation sole, and the debtor and debtor in possession (the "Debtor") in the above-captioned chapter 11 bankruptcy case (the "Chapter 11 Case"), hereby files this notice of submission of its proposed form of order on following the status conference conducted on November 12, 2025 (the "Status Conference") on the Debtor's Motion to Dismiss Chapter 11 Case Pursuant to 11 U.S.C. §1112(b) [Docket No. 2293] (the "Motion"). The Debtor's proposed form of order (the "Proposed Order") following the Status Conference is attached hereto as Exhibit A and has been uploaded to the Court through CM/ECF concurrent with the filing of this notice. The Debtor submits this Proposed Order because it is consistent with the Court's statements and ruling as reflected in the transcript from the Status Conference (the "Transcript" which, for ease of reference, a copy of the transcript is attached to this Notice as Exhibit B).

The Debtor provided its Proposed Order to the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors (the "Committee") together with a copy of the Transcript. The Committee refused to approve the Proposed Order as to form and has demanded changes that are not at all supported by the record at the Status Conference, or supported by the Court's direction to the parties. These changes would provide the Committee with rights to a procedure it is now insisting on regarding dismissal which the Committee did not request, and which this Court did not order, at the Status Conference. By contrast, the Debtor's Proposed Order reflects the Court's ruling that "if nothing is filed [on or before 11:59 p.m. PT on November 26, 2025] indicating movement toward a fourth amended plan will be filed, then the case should be dismissed, and will be dismissed." *See* Transcript, p. 71:7-17.

Counsel for the Debtor (Ann Marie Uetz) met and conferred with counsel for the Committee (Jeffrey Prol) on November 20, 2025 and did not obtain the Committee's consent as to form. The Debtor therefore files this notice of Proposed Order, which is being served on all counsel who appeared at the hearing, consistent with Bankruptcy Local Rule 9021-1.

The Motion first came for hearing on October 29, 2025. At that hearing, the Court concluded there was no bad faith by the Debtor in the filed of the Chapter 11 Case, or in the Debtor's conduct of the Case. See Transcript from October 29, 2025 Hearing, **Exhibit C**, p. 80:7-10. The Court ruled, therefore, for the

NOTICE OF SUBMISSION OF ORDER FOLLOWING NOVEMBER 12, 2025 STATUS CONFERENCE

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 2 of

4909-2408-5881.2

reasons set forth in the Motion, argued by the parties and as stated on the record by this Court, that any dismissal of the Chapter 11 Case would be without prejudice and without any bar to future filings under Title 11 of the United States Code. At the Debtor's request and over the Committee's objection, the Court did not dismiss the Chapter 11 Case and instead set a further status conference hearing on the Motion for November 12, 2025, to allow additional time for mediation. No order was entered after October 29 hearing.

Following the October 29 hearing, the Debtor worked diligently with mediators Tim Gallagher and Judge Randall Newsome (Ret.) to try to reach an outcome to this Chapter 11 Case other than dismissal. On November 10, the Debtor filed a short status conference statement with the Court indicating these discussions were ongoing [Docket No. 2444].

At the Status Conference on November 12, Judge Newsome requested a 14-day extension before any entry of any order of dismissal to allow continued mediation. *See* transcript of November 12, 2025 hearing ("<u>Transcript</u>"), p. 10:12-15. The full text of Judge Newsome's statement to the Court follows:

fMR. NEWSOME: This has probably been the most difficult mediation I've been involved in out of the hundreds I've been involved in over the last thirty-plus years or forty-plus years, and it continues to be the most difficult mediation I've been involved in. But over the last ten days, there has been progress like I haven't seen before in this case. And I believe that there -- if there is not light at the end of the tunnel, I believe at least things are getting a little brighter in the tunnel. There's no guarantee, of course, as to where this is headed, but I would respectfully request that we be given another fourteen-day extension before an order of dismissal is entered in this case and that it be entered not one minute later than fourteen days from today. That's all I have to say.

Transcript, p. 10:3-16.

The Debtor stated its support for Judge Newsome's request for additional time for mediation before a dismissal would be entered (*see* Transcript, p. 11:4-10). Multiple insurers also supported the request for additional time (*see* Transcript, p.12:11-13-11). The Committee opposed the request for additional time and again requested immediate dismissal. *See* Transcript, p11:13-12:1. The Court sided with Judge Newsome, the Debtor and the Insurers, rejecting the Committee's request for immediate dismissal. Specifically, the Court granted the request "that we go out another two weeks." Transcript, p. 20:18-22. The Committee did not request any particular procedure to be followed or deadline by which

NOTICE OF SUBMISSION OF ORDER FOLLOWING NOVEMBER 12, 2025 STATUS CONFERENCE

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 3 of

4909-2408-5881.2

action must be taken to avoid automatic dismissal on November 26. Nor did the Committee request the Debtor be required to file a joint statement with the Committee about settlement progress.

Consistent with the discussion at the hearing, and the Court's direction, the Debtor's Proposed Order reflects the Chapter 11 Case shall be dismissed without prejudice on November 26, 2025, unless the Debtor files a statement indicating that the Debtor believes progress has been made toward a settlement and will file and seek confirmation of a fourth amended plan. The Committee's opposition to the Debtor's Proposed Order is a transparent attempt by the Committee – if it does not agree to settle with the Debtor on or by November 26 – to impose additional conditions, deadlines, and procedures it never requested, and which this Court never ordered, at the Status Conference. A copy of the Committee's redline of the Proposed Order is attached hereto as **Exhibit D**.

Nothing in the Committee's edits is supported by the record. First, the Committee's edits would require a joint statement by the Committee and Debtor. The problems with this approach are self-evident in light of the Committee's demand at the Status Conference that the case be immediately dismissed without opportunity for further mediation or settlement discussions. Second, the Committee's edits would require the Debtor to file "a request for an extension" sooner than ordered by this Court at the Status Conference, together with an accelerated briefing schedule in advance of a possible hearing on November 26. The Committee's newly requested process should be rejected by this Court because:

- (1) the Committee has never requested the Court impose such a process, or any process;
- (2) the Committee's newly requested process would shorten by 48 critical hours the time this Court ordered to be available for mediation;
- (3) the Committee's newly requested process is not supported by the record of the Status Conference and is not consistent with this Court's ruling at the Status Conference;
- (4) the Committee's newly requested process it ignores the Court's unavailability during the week of November 24.¹

NOTICE OF SUBMISSION OF ORDER FOLLOWING NOVEMBER 12, 2025 STATUS CONFERENCE

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 4 of

4909-2408-5881.2

¹ While the Court did indicate that it might be able to be available if needed, this was never requested, as further reflected below.

2
 3
 4

(5) The Committee's newly requested process would grant the Committee a right to seek dismissal of the Chapter 11 Case and prevent the Debtor from even filing and presenting to this Court for its consideration a possible fourth amended plan, which was not requested or even contemplated at the Status Conference.

A review of the Transcript confirms the Committee's requested restrictions, deadlines, and process are not consistent with the Court's direction and were never raised during the Status Conference. The Court asked all parties whether any further hearing or Court involvement would be needed on or before November 26. *See* Transcript, p. 19:2-20:3. Judge Newsome responded that nothing further was needed from the Court prior to November 26. *See id.* The Court specifically asked for any other comments or responses, and the Committee did not request the hearing it now demands. *See id.*, p. 20:4-6.

After granting Judge Newsome's request to extend the case two weeks, the Court addressed the form of Order. The Court specifically suggested: "an order that would reflect that, so that it's totally self-executing, that unless something is filed by, you guys give me the date and the time, the case is dismissed. Is that sensible?" Transcript, p. 20:20-23 (emphasis added). Counsel for the Debtor confirmed the Debtor's concurrence, stating: "the debtor does believe that entry of an order, really, along the lines that if nothing is filed indicating movement toward a fourth amended plan will be filed, then the case should be dismissed, and will be dismissed." *Id.*, p. 20:11-15 (emphasis added). Once again, the Committee did not object at this point, nor did it propose any other process, requirements, or deadlines. The Court then requested a form of order "as it's been described." *Id.*, p. 22:12.

The Transcript thus confirms the order on the Debtor's motion to dismiss should reflect that dismissal on November 26, 2025, will be automatic unless "something is filed" indicated progress toward a fourth amended plan. Nothing supports now dictating what the "something" must be in the way the Committee belatedly requests. The Committee never requested or argued that more should be required than a filing by the Debtor indicating "movement toward an amended plan."

Further, nothing supports the Committee's new demand, never raised at the hearing, that the filing must be a joint statement to forestall self-executing dismissal. Indeed, both the Court and Debtor's counsel expressly acknowledged there might not be consent from the Committee for a further extension of the

NOTICE OF SUBMISSION OF ORDER FOLLOWING NOVEMBER 12, 2025 STATUS CONFERENCE

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 5 of

4909-2408-5881.2

dismissal date. The Court addressed this possibility, asking "would the thesis be that look, if we end up there, we'll be in the same place we were six months ago, when we had a committee that didn't like the plan very much." Transcript, p. 16:12-14. Debtor's counsel responded by reiterating the hope for a fully consensual plan but also stating that it is possible that the Debtor might propose a fourth amended plan with the support of insurers and/or some plaintiffs, but without the Committee's support. *Id.*, p. 16:19-25. While the Court emphasized the importance of discussions with the Committee, and both the Debtor and Mr. Gallagher committed to reach out to Committee counsel, there is no support in the record for the Committee's belated demand it be granted a veto over keeping settlement discussions alive.

Of course, if the Debtor files a statement without the Committee's concurrence, the Committee may file whatever it chooses and make whatever arguments is wants. The Debtor's Proposed Order does not preclude the Committee from doing so. The only question presented now is *what* must be filed to forestall a self-executing dismissal on November 26. The Proposed Order is consistent with this Court's ruling. Given the significance of a dismissal which this Court described as a "tragedy" for all parties involved, the Court should enter the Proposed Order.

CONCLUSION

In sum, the Committee belatedly seeks to impose new requirements and processes it never sought at the Status Conference. Indeed, it is striking that after requesting immediate dismissal (Transcript, p. 11:13-12:1), Committee counsel did not speak again during the Status conference. See Transcript. At any point, Committee counsel could have argued that any filing before November 26 should be a joint filing, or requested a deadline for a request by the Debtor, or even requested a hearing on November 26. Instead, the Committee stayed silent, never challenging the Debtor's proposal that dismissal should be self-executing unless something is filed "indicating movement toward a fourth amended plan." Id., p. 20:11-15 (emphasis added).

24 | | ///

///

NOTICE OF SUBMISSION OF ORDER FOLLOWING NOVEMBER 12, 2025 STATUS CONFERENCE

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 6 of

WHEREFORE, for the reasons set forth above, the Debtor respectfully requests the Court enter the Proposed Order in the form submitted by the Debtor. DATED: November 20, 2025 Respectfully submitted, **FOLEY & LARDNER LLP** Eileen R. Ridley Shane J. Moses Ann Marie Uetz Matthew D. Lee Geoffrey S. Goodman Mark C. Moore /s/ Shane J. Moses SHANE J. MOSES Counsel for the Debtor and Debtor in Possession

4909-2408-5881.2

NOTICE OF SUBMISSION OF ORDER FOLLOWING NOVEMBER 12, 2025 STATUS CONFERENCE

Exhibit A

of 4

1	FOLEY & LARDNER LLP	
2	Eileen R. Ridley (CA Bar No. 151735) Tel: (415) 438-6469; eridley@foley.com	
3	Shane J. Moses (CA Bar No. 250533) Tel: (415) 438-6404; smoses@foley.com	
	Ann Marie Uetz (admitted <i>pro hac vice</i>)	
4	Tel: (313) 234-7114; auetz@foley.com Matthew D. Lee (admitted pro hac vice)	
5	Tel: (608) 258-4203; mdlee@foley.com	
6	Geoffrey S. Goodman (admitted <i>pro hac vice</i>) Tel: (312) 832-4515; ggoodman@foley.com	
7	Mark C. Moore (admitted <i>pro hac vice</i>) Tel: (214) 999-4150; mmoore@foley.com	
8	One Market Plaza	
	55 Spear Street Tower, Suite 1900 San Francisco, CA 94105	
9	Counsel for the Debtor	
10	and Debtor in Possession	
11		
12	UNITED STATES B	ANKRUPTCY COURT
13	NORTHERN DISTR	CICT OF CALIFORNIA
	OAKLAN	D DIVISION
14	In re:	Case No. 23-40523 WJL
15	THE ROMAN CATHOLIC BISHOP OF	Chapter 11
16	OAKLAND, a California corporation sole,	PROPOSED
17	Debtor.	ORDER PURSUANT TO STATUS CONFERENCE CONDUCTED ON
18		NOVEMBER 12, 2025, ON DEBTOR'S MOTION TO DISMISS CHAPTER 11 CASE
19		PURSUANT TO 11 U.S.C. §1112(B)
20		Judge: Hon. William J. Lafferty
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-1 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 2 of 4

-
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

1

Following the hearing conducted by the Court on October 29, 2025 on the *Debtor's Motion to Dismiss Chapter 11 Case Pursuant to 11 U.S.C. §1112(b)* [Docket No. 2393] (the "Motion"), filed by the Roman Catholic Bishop of Oakland, a California corporation sole, and the debtor and debtor in possession (the "Debtor") in the above-captioned chapter 11 bankruptcy case (the "Chapter 11 Case"), and the Status Conference conducted in the Chapter 11 Case on November 12, 2025, for the reasons stated on the record October 29, 2025 and November 12, 2025, which constitute the Court's findings of fact and conclusions of law pursuant to Fed. Rule Bankr. Proc. 7052, **IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:**

- 1. The Motion is GRANTED for the reasons stated on the record October 29, 2025 and subject to the terms set forth herein.
- 2. The Court concludes for the reasons stated on the record October 29, 2025, there is no bad faith by the Debtor which would cause the Court to dismiss the Chapter 11 Case with prejudice or with a bar to the Debtor filing another bankruptcy case.
- 3. The Court concludes the Chapter 11 Case shall be dismissed without prejudice unless, on or before November 26, 2025 at or by 11:59 p.m. Pacific Time, the Debtor files a statement with the Court indicating that in the Debtor's judgment it has made progress toward a settlement and accordingly will file and pursue confirmation of a fourth amended plan of reorganization.
- 4. This Court shall retain jurisdiction with respect to all matters arising from or related to the implementation of or interpretation of this Order.

*** END OF ORDER ***

ORDER PURSUANT TO STATUS CONFERENCE CONDUCTED ON NOVEMBER 12, 2025

COURT SERVICE LIST

All ECF Recipients.

ORDER PURSUANT TO STATUS CONFERENCE CONDUCTED ON NOVEMBER 12, 2025

4937-3798-1817.2 Of 4

Exhibit B

```
1
1
                      UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
                     NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
 2
 3
                                   -000-
     In Re:
                                     ) Case No. 23-40523
 4
                                       Chapter 11
 5
     THE ROMAN CATHOLIC BISHOP OF
     OAKLAND
                                       Oakland, California
                                       Wednesday, November 12, 2025
 6
                          Debtor.
                                       10:30 AM
 7
                                       STATUS CONFERENCE RE:
                                                               MOTION
 8
                                       TO DISMISS CASE PURSUANT TO
                                       SECTION 11 U.S.C. SECTION
 9
                                       1112(B) FILED BY THE ROMAN
                                       CATHOLIC BISHOP OF OAKLAND
10
                                       (DOC 2293)
                        TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
11
                 BEFORE THE HONORABLE WILLIAM J. LAFFERTY
12
                      UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY JUDGE
13
    APPEARANCES:
    For the Debtor:
                                 EILEEN R. RIDLEY, ESQ.
                                  SHANE J. MOSES, ESQ. (VIA ZOOM)
14
                                  Foley & Lardner LLP
15
                                  One Market Plaza
                                  55 Spear Street Tower
16
                                  Suite 1900
                                  San Francisco, CA 94105
                                  (415)434-4484
17
    For the Debtor:
                                 ANN MARIE UETZ, ESQ. (VIA ZOOM)
18
                                  Foley & Lardner LLP
19
                                  500 Woodward Avenue
                                  Suite 2700
20
                                  Detroit, MI 48226
                                  (313)234-7100
21
    For the Debtor:
                                 MATTHEW D. LEE, ESQ. (VIA ZOOM)
22
                                  Foley & Lardner LLP
                                  150 East Gilman Street
2.3
                                  Suite 5000
                                  Madison, WI 53703
24
                                  (608)257-5035
25
```

Г			
			2
1	For the Debtor:	MATTHEW KEMNER, ESQ. Law Offices of Matthew J. Kemner	
3		9 Brookbank Road Orinda, CA 94563 (415)730-6556	
4		BRENT WEISENBERG, ESQ. (VIA ZOOM)	
5	of Unsecured Creditors:	JEFFREY D. PROL, ESQ. (VIA ZOOM) Lowenstein Sandler LLP One Lowenstein Drive Roseland, NJ 07068 (973)597-2500	
6			
7			
8			
9		Suite 600 Madison, WI 53703	
10		(608)286-2302	
11	For Continental Casualty Company:	MARK PLEVIN, ESQ. Plevin & Turner LLP	
12		1701 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. Suite 200	
13		Washington, DC 20006 (202)580-6640	
14 15	For Westport Insurance Corporation:	TODD C. JACOBS, ESQ. (VIA ZOOM) Parker, Hudson, Rainer & Dobbs LLP	
16	COTPOINT	Two North Riverside Plaza Suite 1850	
17		Chicago, IL 60606 (312)477-3306	
18	For Travelers Casualty & Surety Company:	ANDREW WYATT, ESQ. (VIA ZOOM) Dentons	
19	bareey company.	4675 MacArthur Court Suite 1250	
20		Newport Beach, CA 92660 (949)732-3738	
21	For London Market	TIMOTHY EVANSTON, ESQ. (VIA ZOOM)	
22	Insurers:	Skarzynski Marick & Black LLP 333 S. Grand Avenue	
23	3	Suite 3550 Los Angeles, CA 90071	
24		(213)721-0650	
25			

			3
1	For Pacific Indemnity:	TANCRED SCHIAVONI, ESQ. (VIA ZOOM) O'Melveny & Myers LLP	
2		1301 Avenue of the Americas Suite 1700 New York, NY 10019	
4		(212)326-2000	
5	For RC, WC, RCC, OPF, and Adventus:	RYAN E. MANNS, ESQ. (VIA ZOOM) Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP 2200 Ross Avenue	
6		Suite 3600 Dallas, TX 75201	
7		(214)855-8000	
8	For Abuse Survivors:	MICHAEL FINNEGAN, ESQ. (VIA ZOOM) Jeff Anderson & Associates 366 Jackson Street	
10		Suite 100 Saint Paul, MN 55101	
11		(651)227-9990	
12	For Berkeley Research Group:	REBECCA WICKS, ESQ. Buchalter 18400 Von Karman Ave, Ste 800	
13		Irvine, CA 92612-0514 (949)224-6415	
14	For California Insurance	FREDERICK HALL, ESQ.	
1516	Guarantee Association:	Black Compean & Hall, LLP 275 E. Hillcrest Dr. Suite 160-1021	
17		Thousand Oaks, CA 91360 (818)883-9500	
18	Also Present:	Randall Newsome, Esq. (Via Zoom)	
19		Mediator Tim Gallagher, Esq. (Via Zoom)	
20		Mediator Christopher Sontchi, Esq. (Via	
21		Zoom) Mediator	
22			
23			
24			
25			

```
4
1
    Court Recorder:
                                  DAWANA CHAMBERS
 2
                                  United States Bankruptcy Court
                                   1300 Clay Street
                                   Oakland, CA 94612
 3
 4
    Transcriber:
                                  HANA COPPERMAN
                                   eScribers, LLC
                                   7227 N. 16th Street
 5
                                   Suite #207
                                   Phoenix, AZ 85020
 6
                                   (800) 257-0885
7
    Proceedings recorded by electronic sound recording;
    transcript provided by transcription service.
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
```

```
5
1
      OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA, WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 12, 2025, 11:08 AM
 2
                                  -000-
 3
        (Call to order of the Court.)
             THE CLERK: 23-40523. Call the parties now, Your
 4
 5
    Honor.
             THE COURT: We can start with the folks in the
 6
7
    courtroom for appearances. Assuming you're making appearances,
8
    come up.
9
             MS. RIDLEY: I am. Good morning, Your Honor.
10
             THE COURT: Okay.
11
             MS. RIDLEY: Eileen Ridley on behalf of the debtor,
12
    RCBO.
13
             THE COURT:
                         Okay.
             MS. RIDLEY: I have my colleagues on the line.
14
15
             THE COURT: Yeah, I'm about to -- we'll get to them in
16
    a sec.
17
             MS. RIDLEY: Okay.
             THE COURT: Okay. But anybody else in the courtroom?
18
    Let's do that now.
19
20
             MR. KEMNER: Good morning, Your Honor. Matthew
    Kemner, special counsel to the Bishop of Oakland.
21
             THE COURT: Okay. Good morning.
22
23
             MR. PLEVIN: Good morning, Your Honor. Mark Plevin on
24
    behalf of Continental Casualty Company.
25
             THE COURT: Okay. Good morning. All right. And we
```

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-2 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 6 of 30

	6
1	are filling up the screen as usual on this case. Anybody else?
2	THE CLERK: Parties with their hand raised are now
3	transferring, Your Honor.
4	THE COURT: Okay. Why don't we start with appearances
5	on the screen from debtor's counsel?
6	MS. UETZ: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Or morning.
7	Excuse me. Ann Marie Uetz on behalf of the debtor. And Your
8	Honor, I'll note that Bishop Barber is working right now and
9	could not join the hearing today, but as you heard, Mr. Kemner,
10	Matthew Kemner is here, and counsel for the debtor are present.
11	THE COURT: Okay. All right. Well, we have other
12	are we done adding parties?
13	MR. LEE: Good morning, Your Honor. Matt Lee for the
14	debtor.
15	THE COURT: Okay. Good morning.
16	Are we done adding parties, Mr. Singh?
17	Okay. All right. Anybody else for the debtor?
18	MR. MOSES: Good morning, Your Honor. Shane Moses for
19	the debtor.
20	THE COURT: Oh, there you go. Okay. Thank you.
21	Let's get committee counsel.
22	MR. WEISENBERG: Good morning, Your Honor. This is
23	Brent Weisenberg of Lowenstein Sandler on behalf of the
24	committee.
25	THE COURT: Okay. No, I didn't hear Mr. Prol. Do you

	7
1	want to do that again, just so we've got you?
2	MR. PROL: Good morning, Your Honor. Jeff Prol,
3	Lowenstein Sandler, for the committee.
4	THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Anybody else for the
5	committee?
6	MR. BAIR: Good morning, Your Honor. Jesse Bair,
7	Burns Bair, special insurance counsel for the committee.
8	THE COURT: Okay. Good morning. Okay. Anybody else
9	for the committee?
10	Okay. How about counsel for the insurers?
11	MR. JACOBS: Good morning, Your Honor. Todd Jacobs
12	for Westport Insurance Corporation.
13	THE COURT: Okay. Good morning.
14	MR. WYATT: Good morning, Your Honor. Andrew Wyatt
15	for the Travelers entities.
16	THE COURT: Okay. Good morning. Anybody else for
17	insurance companies?
18	MR. EVANSTON: Good morning, Your Honor. Tim
19	Evanston, appearing on behalf of the London market insurers.
20	THE COURT: Okay. Anybody else?
21	UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: On behalf of the California
22	Insurance Guarantee Association.
23	THE COURT: Okay. And Mr. Schiavoni, you want to try
24	again?
25	MR. SCHIAVONI: Tancred Schiavoni from O'Melveny for

```
8
1
    the Pacific insurers, Your Honor.
             THE COURT: Okay. Anybody else on the insurance side
 2
    of things? Okay. We have some, what I will call, without
 3
    meaning to ruffle any feathers, affiliated parties, perhaps
 4
 5
    represented. Let's get those appearances.
 6
             MR. MANNS: Good morning, Your Honor. Ryan Manns on
7
    behalf of RC, WC, RCC, OPF, and Adventus.
8
             THE COURT: Okay. Anybody else from that category?
9
    Okay. I see two of our mediators. Let's see if they want to
10
    make an appearance.
             MR. NEWSOME: This is Randall Newsome, mediator.
11
12
             THE COURT: Okay. Good morning.
             MR. GALLAGHER: Tim Gallagher, Your Honor. Good
13
    morning. Mediator.
14
15
             THE COURT: Okay. I think there's a couple of folks
16
    whom I've managed not to capture in my attempt to categorize
    everybody, so go ahead and make appearances if you like.
17
18
    Anybody else?
19
             MR. FINNEGAN: Good morning, Your Honor. Mike
20
    Finnegan, certain abuse survivors, with Jeff Anderson.
21
             THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Others?
22
             MS. WICKS: Good morning, Your Honor. Rebecca Wicks
23
    for Berkeley Research Group.
24
             THE COURT: Okay. Good morning. Anybody else?
25
    That's it.
```

THE COURT: Again, you're breaking. You're, sort of, fading a bit. Yeah. Go ahead.

MR. NEWSOME: This has probably been the most difficult mediation I've been involved in out of the hundreds I've been involved in over the last thirty-plus years or forty-plus years, and it continues to be the most difficult mediation I've been involved in. But over the last ten days, there has been progress like I haven't seen before in this case. And I believe that there -- if there is not light at the end of the tunnel, I believe at least things are getting a little brighter in the tunnel. There's no guarantee, of course, as to where this is headed, but I would respectfully request that we be given another fourteen-day extension before an order of dismissal is entered in this case and that it be entered not one minute later than fourteen days from today. That's all I have to say.

THE COURT: Okay. That would be the 26th, right?
MR. NEWSOME: Correct.

THE COURT: Well, before anybody reacts to that, and I don't mean to take this into levels of ridiculous mundanity, I'm not going to be in that week. And if one needed to be nimble around the 26th, I will not be around and nimble, for what that's worth. So if that means we plan around slightly differently than fourteen days, if that's going to be important, let's keep that in mind. But let me get anyone's

reaction. I'm happy to start with the debtor.

Reaction to Judge Newsome's suggestion for a little more time?

MS. UETZ: Thank you, Your Honor. Again, Ann Marie
Uetz on behalf of the debtor. Your Honor, we agree that there
has been progress made within the last ten days. We have been
working with former Judge Newsome and Mr. Gallagher. We have
had communications with counsel for various parties and various
creditors, and the debtor would support Judge Newsome's
request.

THE COURT: Okay. I would turn next to the committee and see if they have a reaction.

MR. PROL: Thank you, Your Honor. Jeff Prol on behalf of the committee. Your Honor, we would oppose that request. As we reported to Your Honor at the last status conference, we had not been invited to participate in any discussions leading up to that status conference. We've not been invited to participate in any mediation sessions since that status conference. And frankly, Your Honor, this is the same request made at the last hearing, and the committee finds itself in the same position it was at the last hearing.

There's simply nothing that we've heard that leads us to conclude that we're any closer to a negotiated settlement in this case, and we would ask that Your Honor stick with what you ordered the last time, dismiss the case effective today. Thank

```
12
1
    you, Your Honor.
 2
             THE COURT: Okay. Without meaning to indicate that
    I'm quessing who else is involved in all this, anybody on the
 3
 4
    insurance side want to address the request?
 5
             Mr. --
             MR. JACOBS: Can you hear me?
 6
7
             THE COURT: Yeah. Can we let -- Mr. Plevin's here?
8
    Can we let him go first? Then I'll call you, Mr. Jacobs.
9
             MR. JACOBS: Oh, sure. Thank you, Your Honor. Sure.
             THE COURT: Yeah. You bet. Go ahead.
10
             MR. PLEVIN: Your Honor, Mark Plevin. Just briefly.
11
12
    Continental Casualty supports the request.
             THE COURT: Okay. Thank you very much. Okay.
13
             Mr. Jacobs, go ahead.
14
15
             MR. JACOBS: Yeah. Good morning, Your Honor. Todd
16
    Jacobs for Westport. I'll be real brief. So as you know,
    Westport has supported trying to reach a consensual resolution
17
18
    of the case from the beginning, and we fully support Judge
    Newsome and Mr. Gallagher's request.
19
             THE COURT: Okay. Anybody else on the insurance side
20
    want to be heard on that question?
21
22
             MR. WYATT: This is Andrew Wyatt on behalf of
23
    Travelers. Travelers supports Judge Newsome's request.
24
             THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Anybody else?
25
             MR. EVANSTON: Yes, Your Honor. This is Timothy
```

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-2 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 13 of 30

```
1
    Evanston on behalf of the London market insurers. We also
 2
    support Judge Newsome's request.
 3
             THE COURT: Okay. Thank you very much. Anybody else
 4
    on the insurer's side want to weigh in?
 5
             MR. HALL: Yes. This is Frederick Hall on behalf of
 6
    the California Insurance Guarantee Association. We also
7
    support the request of Judge Newsome and Mr. Gallagher.
8
             THE COURT:
                         Okay.
 9
             MR. SCHIAVONI: Your Honor, this is Tanc Schiavoni
10
    from O'Melveny for the Pacific insurers, and the Pacific
    insurers support the debtor and the debtor's request.
11
12
             THE COURT: Okay. Anybody else? Putting aside other
13
    categories now, anybody else want to weigh in on this question?
    Okay.
14
15
             MS. UETZ: Your Honor.
16
             THE COURT: Yes?
             MS. UETZ: Excuse me. Ann Marie Uetz for the debtor.
17
    My understanding is Mr. Gallagher wants to be heard, including
18
    with respect to additional support --
19
20
             THE COURT: Okay.
             MS. UETZ: -- for the mediators' requested two weeks.
21
22
             THE COURT: Okay. Okay. I didn't see you there, Mr.
23
    Gallagher, if you're --
             MR. GALLAGHER: Hi, Your Honor. Not a leading
24
25
    question, but I would say this much, that there have been
```

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-2 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 14 of 30

```
conversations with the debtor, certain selected state court
1
 2
    counsel, and the insurers. I will acknowledge that I have not
    had any conversations with Mr. Prol and Brent Weisenberg. Did
 3
    have a brief videoconference this morning. We will engage them
 4
 5
    going forward, understand their position, and whatever the
    Court decides, we'll move forward and see what we can put
 6
7
    together.
8
             THE COURT: Okay. Before I ask a couple of questions,
9
    anybody else want to be heard on this?
             MS. UETZ: Your Honor, again, Ann Marie Uetz for the
10
             I will just offer the following. I'm aware of certain
11
12
    state court counsel who support the request as well,
    notwithstanding the committee's opposition to it.
13
             THE COURT: Well, okay. Anybody else before I --
14
15
             MS. UETZ: I don't speak for them, but I know the
    mediators may, and I just --
16
17
             THE COURT: Well, okay.
18
             MS. UETZ: I just want to provide that to the Court.
             THE COURT: Well, I don't know that that's of great --
19
20
    well, I'll leave it there. Okay.
21
             Anybody else before I ask a question or two?
22
             Well, let me direct this.
23
             MR. SONTCHI: Your Honor, I'm sorry.
24
             THE COURT: Yeah.
25
             MR. SONTCHI: I had my hand up, but this is
```

of 30

Christopher Sontchi.

THE COURT: Oh, there you are. Okay. You're not on the screen, so thank you.

MR. SONTCHI: I apologize.

THE COURT: No problem.

MR. SONTCHI: I just want to -- I just want to make it clear that I consider my job to try to work with the committee and the debtor to reach a resolution, obviously cooperating with Mr. Newsome and Mr. Gallagher. I just want to reiterate what I said last time, which is there have been no communications between the debtor and the committee. Period.

The last action, I hesitate to say this, but the last action before that stopped was the debtor declining to move forward with something. So I just wanted to support Mr. Prol on that, just that, I mean, the debtor and the committee are not talking. I just wanted to make sure you knew that. That's all.

THE COURT: All right. Well okay. Let me ask a couple of process questions, just so I understand this. At the moment, the committee is not involved in the discussions, but I'm led to believe, without people naming names, that others are and that those discussions are with the debtor, and they give former Judge Newsome hope that something might result here that would support some bankruptcy friendly outcome here, like a plan.

```
So is the idea that, putting aside my potential
unavailability at 4:59 on Wednesday the 26th, there's either
something signed off that looks like at least the outline of a
plan, or there isn't? Is that the idea?
        MR. NEWSOME:
                      Yes.
        THE COURT: Okay.
        MS. UETZ: From the doctor's perspective, yes.
        THE COURT: Is it any more complicated than that?
        MR. NEWSOME:
                      No.
        MR. SONTCHI:
                      No.
        THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. I appreciate it.
would the thesis be that look, if we end up there, we'll be in
the same place we were six months ago, when we had a committee
that didn't like the plan very much. Is that the notion?
        MS. UETZ: Your Honor, I'll respond if I should?
was talking over Judge Newsome, so I'll respond to that, if I
may.
        THE COURT: Yeah. Go ahead.
```

MS. UETZ: Your Honor, the debtor still hopes for a fully consensual plan. It is also possible that the debtor submits a fourth amended plan with the support of the insurers, with the support of select state court counsel who represent individual members of the official committee of unsecured creditors, and possibly others. It is also possible the

creditor's committee gets on board.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

THE COURT: Well, can I -- I'm sorry. You finish.

2 I'm sorry.

MS. UETZ: I was just going to finish by saying to your process question, in the debtor's perspective, we would file with the Court expressions of support for such a plan, if, indeed, we get there and pursue confirmation of it.

THE COURT: Okay. Let me give you the following reaction. Okay. I don't need to tell any of you what a tragedy it would be if we dismiss this case today, or in two weeks, given the amount of time and effort and frankly, money that's been spent trying to resolve this case between and among people who know how to do that, and for some reason, it's not yet been successful. So like any judge, I think my inclination is to latch onto anything that looks like a light at the end of the tunnel, or a glimmer or two in the tunnel, or something more gray than black at the end of the tunnel. Any of those things?

Because I don't know the particulars, I would hope there would be some way to involve the committee. This is going to be infinitely a better process, even if a deal, a completely consensual deal is not reached in two weeks, this is going to be an infinitely better process if you include the committee. And I don't know what else I can do to urge you to do that other than to urge you to do that. I don't think I want to necessarily condition further talks on that, because I

```
don't know the dynamics as well as all of you do. But I will
1
 2
    tell you something that you already know, which is that with
 3
    the committee, at least in the room, it seems to me there is
    the possibility of something consensual. And if they are not,
 4
    I think it's considerably less likely that the end of the
 5
    process, even if you have twenty-seven other sponsors, that
 6
    it's consensual, and that's less than optimum. I know you know
7
8
    that.
             Anybody else want to make a comment before I give you
    a couple of further thoughts?
10
             Mr. Schiavoni, go ahead.
11
12
             MR. SCHIAVONI: I'm reminded of the phrase, let's not
13
    let the perfect be --
             THE COURT: Be the enemy of the good. Yeah.
14
15
    back in Aristotle's time, you knew that, right? So go ahead.
             MR. SCHIAVONI: So Your Honor, I, personally,
16
    definitely hear you. In the Boy Scouts, a plan was arrived at
17
18
    with a coalition of the plaintiffs' lawyers, and the committee
    came on later, and that has been a course in other of these. I
19
20
    don't want to get into any further about problems here.
21
             THE COURT: No. Yeah, yeah, I appreciate it.
22
             MR. SCHIAVONI: But we're working, like, we're all
23
    working in good faith.
24
             THE COURT: Yeah.
25
             MR. SCHIAVONI:
                             I mean, we're only asking for a couple
```

of weeks here.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, let me ask, then, a logistics question. I want to respect very much former Judge Newsome's sense that this should be two weeks and not a minute more.

What would you need the Court to do if we get down to something that is, on that 13th or 14th day, for lack of a better word, frantic? What do you think I would need to do to help you?

Anybody have a sense? I mean, if the answer is nothing, that's fine. You either file something, or you don't. But if you need my input, tell me what you think it would be, and I'll see what I can do to help you, or we can explore, maybe, a different D-day.

And former Judge Newsome, if you want to tell me that first, I'd love to hear your thoughts.

MR. NEWSOME: Yes, Your Honor. There is nothing that comes to mind that you could do that would help us. This is --

THE COURT: Not the first time I've heard that. Okay.

MR. NEWSOME: This is, as I said, this continues to be a difficult --

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. NEWSOME: -- a very difficult situation.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. NEWSOME: We're all working our way through it.

There may come a time when there's something you can do, and we will not hesitate to contact you --

20 1 THE COURT: Okay. MR. NEWSOME: -- if that's the case. But that is not 2 3 the case right now. THE COURT: All right. Anybody else want to be heard 4 5 before I give you a couple more thoughts? Anybody in here? 6 I have nothing. Okay. No? 7 Look. I am inclined to indulge anything that reasonable and responsible and highly experienced people like 8 9 all of you think is worth some indulgence. I will reiterate, again, both as a matter of respecting the process and 10 respecting their incredibly important role in this case. 11 Including the committee in this, it seems to me, is of the 12 13 highest importance. I'm not going to tell you exactly how to do that or make that a condition, but all I can tell you is you 14 15 need to respect where they're coming from and who they represent and the incredible commitment they've made to try to 16 get to a good outcome here. 17 18 With that, I will go ahead. I will indulge the request that we go out another two weeks. Would it be prudent 19 20 now to enter an order that would reflect that, so that it's 21 totally self-executing, that unless something is filed by, you guys give me the date and the time, the case is dismissed. 22 Is 23 that sensible? Anybody want to? 24 MS. UETZ: Your Honor, Ann Marie Uetz --25 THE COURT: Yes.

```
21
             MS. UETZ: -- of Foley on behalf of the debtor. We do
1
 2
    think that that is sensible.
 3
             THE COURT: Okay.
             MS. UETZ: We appreciate if I can just make a comment,
 4
 5
    Your Honor.
 6
             THE COURT: Yes.
                               Yes.
 7
             MS. UETZ: We appreciate that Your Honor is not
8
    available during those days that you referenced. We also
9
    appreciate our belief, at least, that the urgency associated
    with the last ten days has helped with the perceived progress
10
    that's been made. And for that reason, Your Honor, the debtor
11
    does believe that entry of an order, really, along the lines
12
13
    that if nothing is filed indicating movement toward a fourth
    amended plan will be filed, then the case should be dismissed,
14
15
    and will be dismissed.
16
             So short answer to your question, Your Honor, is the
17
    debtor agrees with you.
18
             THE COURT: Okay.
             MS. UETZ: And if I may just make one other comment,
19
20
    Your Honor?
21
             THE COURT: Yes.
                        I will call Mr. Prol. I'm committing to do
22
             MS. UETZ:
           And the debtor will continue --
23
24
             THE COURT: Okay.
25
             MS. UETZ: -- to try to work with the committee.
                                                                And
```

	appreciate (8)	16:25	colleagues (1)	conversation (1)
${f A}$	16:11;18:21;21:4,7,	both (1)	5:14	22:15
A	9;22:2,7;23:2	20:10	coming (1)	conversations (2)
obugo (1)	Aristotle's (1)	Boy (1)	20:15	14:1,3
abuse (1) 8:20	18:15	18:17	comment (3)	cooperating (1)
acknowledge (1)	around (3)	breaking (1)	18:9;21:4,19	15:8
14:2	10:22,22,23	10:1	commitment (1)	Corporation (1)
action (2)	arrived (1)	Brent (2)	20:16	7:12
15:12,13	18:17	6:23;14:3	committee (23)	counsel (11)
add (1)	aside (2)	brief (3)	6:21,24;7:3,5,7,9;	5:21;6:5,10,21;7:7,
9:4	13:12;16:1	9:18;12:16;14:4	9:14;11:11,14,20;	10;11:8;14:2,12;
adding (2)	associated (1)	briefly (1)	15:7,11,15,20;16:13,	16:22;22:24
6:12,16	21:9	12:11	23,25;17:19,23;18:3,	couple (6)
additional (1)	Association (2)	brighter (1)	18;20:12;21:25	8:15;14:8;15:19;
13:19	7:22;13:6	10:10	committee's (1)	18:10,25;20:5
address (2)	Assuming (1)	Burns (1)	14:13	course (2)
9:8;12:4	5:7	7:7	committing (1)	10:11;18:19
addressing (1)	attempt (1)	C	21:22	Court (99)
9:11	8:16	C	communications (2)	5:3,6,10,13,15,18,
Adventus (1)	audible (1)	1 1 (1)	11:8;15:11	22,25;6:4,11,15,20
8:7	9:19	calendar (1)	companies (1)	25;7:4,8,13,16,20,2
affiliated (1)	availability (1) 22:3	23:2	7:17	8:2,8,12,15,21,24;9:
8:4	available (1)	CALIFORNIA (3) 5:1;7:21;13:6	Company (1) 5:24	8,10,11,15,17,19,22 10:1,17,19;11:11;
afternoon (1)	21:8	Call (5)	completely (1)	12:2,7,10,13,20,24;
6:6	aware (1)	5:3,4;8:3;12:8;	17:21	13:3,8,12,16,20,22
again (7)	14:11	21:22	complicated (1)	14:1,6,8,12,14,17,1
7:1,24;9:14;10:1;	14.11	came (1)	16:8	19,24;15:2,5,18;16:
11:4;14:10;20:10	В	18:19	concept (1)	8,11,18,22;17:1,5,7
ago (2)		can (16)	22:4	18:14,21,24;19:2,5
9:3;16:13 agree (1)	back (1)	5:6;9:20,21;12:6,7,	concern (1)	17,20,22;20:1,4,25
11:5	18:15	8;14:6;17:1,23;19:11,	9:10	21:3,6,18,21,24;22:
agrees (1)	Bair (3)	11,24;20:14;21:4;	conclude (1)	8,11,14,17,21,25;
21:17	7:6,6,7	22:4,8	11:23	23:4,7,10,13,16,18,2
ahead (9)	bankruptcy (1)	capture (1)	concluded (1)	courtroom (2)
8:17;9:15;10:2;	15:24	8:16	23:21	5:7,18
12:10,14;16:18;	Barber (1)	case (16)	condition (2)	Court's (1)
18:11,15;20:18	6:8	6:1;9:2;10:8,14;	17:25;20:14	23:3
along (1)	beginning (1)	11:24,25;12:18;17:9,	conference (5)	Covington (1)
21:12	12:18	11;20:2,3,11,22;	9:1,3;11:15,17,19	22:23
amended (2)	behalf (16)	21:14;22:24;23:5	confessional (1)	creditors (2)
16:21;21:14	5:11,24;6:7,23;	Casualty (2)	22:3	11:9;16:24
among (1)	7:19,21;8:7;9:6,13;	5:24;12:12	confirmation (1)	creditor's (1)
17:11	11:5,13;12:22;13:1,5;	categories (1)	17:6	16:25
amount (1)	21:1;22:19	13:13	conflicts (1)	curious (1)
17:10	belief (1)	categorize (1)	22:23	9:12
Anderson (1)	21:9	8:16	consensual (5)	D
8:20	Berkeley (1)	category (1)	12:17;16:20;17:21;	D
Andrew (2)	8:23	8:8	18:4,7	1-4- (2)
7:14;12:22	bet (1) 12:10	certain (3)	consider (1) 15:7	date (2)
	12.10	8:20;14:1,11	considerably (1)	20:22;23:2
	hotton (5)		considerably (1)	day (2)
6:7;9:5;11:4;13:17;	better (5)	certainly (1)		0.3.10.6
6:7;9:5;11:4;13:17; 14:10;20:24	9:21,22;17:20,22;	9:12	18:5	9:3;19:6
6:7;9:5;11:4;13:17; 14:10;20:24 apologize (1)	9:21,22;17:20,22; 19:6	9:12 Christopher (1)	18:5 consideration (1)	days (6)
6:7;9:5;11:4;13:17; 14:10;20:24 apologize (1) 15:4	9:21,22;17:20,22; 19:6 billed (1)	9:12 Christopher (1) 15:1	18:5 consideration (1) 23:3	days (6) 10:7,15,24;11:6;
6:7;9:5;11:4;13:17; 14:10;20:24 apologize (1) 15:4 appearance (1)	9:21,22;17:20,22; 19:6 billed (1) 9:1	9:12 Christopher (1) 15:1 clear (1)	18:5 consideration (1) 23:3 contact (1)	days (6) 10:7,15,24;11:6; 21:8,10
6:7;9:5;11:4;13:17; 14:10;20:24 apologize (1) 15:4 appearance (1) 8:10	9:21,22;17:20,22; 19:6 billed (1) 9:1 Bishop (2)	9:12 Christopher (1) 15:1 clear (1) 15:7	18:5 consideration (1) 23:3 contact (1) 19:25	days (6) 10:7,15,24;11:6; 21:8,10 D-day (1)
6:7;9:5;11:4;13:17; 14:10;20:24 apologize (1) 15:4 appearance (1) 8:10 appearances (5)	9:21,22;17:20,22; 19:6 billed (1) 9:1 Bishop (2) 5:21;6:8	9:12 Christopher (1) 15:1 clear (1) 15:7 CLERK (2)	18:5 consideration (1) 23:3 contact (1) 19:25 Continental (2)	days (6) 10:7,15,24;11:6; 21:8,10 D-day (1) 19:12
6:7;9:5;11:4;13:17; 14:10;20:24 apologize (1) 15:4 appearance (1) 8:10 appearances (5) 5:7,7;6:4;8:5,17	9:21,22;17:20,22; 19:6 billed (1) 9:1 Bishop (2) 5:21;6:8 bit (2)	9:12 Christopher (1) 15:1 clear (1) 15:7 CLERK (2) 5:4;6:2	18:5 consideration (1) 23:3 contact (1) 19:25 Continental (2) 5:24;12:12	days (6) 10:7,15,24;11:6; 21:8,10 D-day (1) 19:12 deal (2)
6:7;9:5;11:4;13:17; 14:10;20:24 apologize (1) 15:4 appearance (1) 8:10 appearances (5) 5:7,7;6:4;8:5,17 appearing (1)	9:21,22;17:20,22; 19:6 billed (1) 9:1 Bishop (2) 5:21;6:8 bit (2) 10:2;22:22	9:12 Christopher (1) 15:1 clear (1) 15:7 CLERK (2) 5:4;6:2 closer (2)	18:5 consideration (1) 23:3 contact (1) 19:25 Continental (2) 5:24;12:12 continue (1)	days (6) 10:7,15,24;11:6; 21:8,10 D-day (1) 19:12 deal (2) 17:20,21
14:10;20:24 apologize (1) 15:4 appearance (1) 8:10 appearances (5) 5:7,7;6:4;8:5,17 appearing (1) 7:19	9:21,22;17:20,22; 19:6 billed (1) 9:1 Bishop (2) 5:21;6:8 bit (2) 10:2;22:22 black (1)	9:12 Christopher (1) 15:1 clear (1) 15:7 CLERK (2) 5:4;6:2 closer (2) 9:20;11:23	18:5 consideration (1) 23:3 contact (1) 19:25 Continental (2) 5:24;12:12 continue (1) 21:23	days (6) 10:7,15,24;11:6; 21:8,10 D-day (1) 19:12 deal (2) 17:20,21 debtor (28)
6:7;9:5;11:4;13:17; 14:10;20:24 apologize (1) 15:4 appearance (1) 8:10 appearances (5) 5:7,7;6:4;8:5,17 appearing (1)	9:21,22;17:20,22; 19:6 billed (1) 9:1 Bishop (2) 5:21;6:8 bit (2) 10:2;22:22	9:12 Christopher (1) 15:1 clear (1) 15:7 CLERK (2) 5:4;6:2 closer (2)	18:5 consideration (1) 23:3 contact (1) 19:25 Continental (2) 5:24;12:12 continue (1)	days (6) 10:7,15,24;11:6; 21:8,10 D-day (1) 19:12 deal (2) 17:20,21

	T		T	November 12, 2025
13:11,17;14:1,11;	end (5)	5:6;8:15		inclination (1)
15:8,11,13,15,22;	10:9;16:12;17:14,	following (2)	Н	17:13
16:19,20;21:1,11,17,	16;18:5	14:11;17:7	11	inclined (1)
23;22:20;23:12	enemy (1)	former (5)	HALL (2)	20:7
debtor's (3)	18:14	9:6;11:7;15:23;	13:5.5	include (1)
6:5;13:11;17:4	engage (1)	19:3,13	hand (2)	17:22
decides (1)	14:4	forty- (1)	6:2;14:25	including (2)
14:6	enter (1)	10:5	happy (1)	13:18;20:12
declining (1)	20:20	forward (3)	11:1	incredible (1)
15:13	entered (2)	14:5,6;15:14	headed (1)	20:16
definitely (1)	10:14,14	fourteen (2)	10:12	incredibly (1)
18:17	entities (1)	10:15,24	hear (7)	20:11
delay (1)	7:15	fourteen-day (1)	6:25;9:12,21;12:6;	indeed (1)
23:4	entry (1)	10:13	18:17;19:14;22:1	17:6
described (1)	21:12	fourth (2)	heard (7)	indicate (1)
22:12	EVANSTON (4)	16:21;21:13	6:9;11:22;12:21;	12:2
different (1)	7:18,19;12:25;13:1	frankly (2)	13:18;14:9;19:17;	indicated (1)
19:12	even (2)	11:19;17:10	20:4	9:7
differently (1)	17:20;18:6	frantic (1)		indicating (1)
10:24	everybody (1)	19:7	hearing (3)	21:13
difficult (5)	8:17	Frederick (1)	6:9;11:20,21	individual (1)
9:24;10:4,6;19:19,	exactly (1)	13:5	help (3)	16:23
21	20:13	friendly (1)	19:7,11,16	indulge (2)
direct (1)	Excuse (2)	15:24	helped (1)	20:7,18
14:22	6:7;13:17	fully (2)	21:10	indulgence (1)
directed (1)	experienced (1)	12:18;16:20	hesitate (2)	20:9
9:9	20:8	further (3)	15:12;19:25	infinitely (2)
discussions (3)	explore (1)	17:25;18:10,20	Hi (1)	17:20,22
11:16;15:20,22	19:11	17.23,16.10,20	13:24	input (1)
dismiss (2)	expressions (1)	G	highest (1)	19:10
11:25;17:9	17:5	G	20:13	insurance (8)
dismissal (2)	extension (1)	Gallagher (8)	highly (1)	7:7,12,17,22;8:2;
9:2;10:14	10:13		20:8	12:4,20;13:6
9.2,10.14 dismissed (3)	10.13	8:13,13;11:7;13:7,	Honor (61)	insurers (8)
20:22;21:14,15	F	18,23,24;15:9	5:5,9,20,23;6:3,6,8,	7:10,19;8:1;13:1,
	F	Gallagher's (1)	13,18,22;7:2,6,11,14,	
doctor's (1)	e- 3° (1)	12:19	18;8:1,6,13,19,22;9:5,	10,11;14:2;16:21
16:7	fading (1)	gets (1)	6,9,13,16;11:4,5,13,	insurer's (1)
done (2)	10:2	16:25	14,15,19,24;12:1,9,	13:4
6:12,16	faith (1)	given (4)	11,15,25;13:9,15,24;	into (2)
down (1)	18:23	10:13;17:10;23:1,2	14:10,23;16:15,19;	10:20;18:20
19:5	feathers (1)	glimmer (1)	18:16;19:15;20:24;	invited (2)
during (1)	8:4	17:15	21:5,7,11,16,20;22:1,	11:16,17
21:8	file (2)	Good (33)	7,10,13,20;23:9,12,	involve (1)
dynamics (1)	17:5;19:9	5:9,20,22,23,25;6:6,	15,17	17:19
18:1	filed (4)	13,15,18,22;7:2,6,8,	hope (2)	involved (7)
	20:21;21:13,14;	11,13,14,16,18;8:6,	15:23;17:18	9:24,25;10:4,5,7;
${f E}$	22:22	12,13,19,22,24;9:16,	hopes (1)	12:3;15:20
00 (4)	filling (1)	17;12:15;18:14,23;	16:19	т
effective (1)	6:1	20:17;22:17;23:10,13	housekeeping (1)	J
11:25	finds (1)	grateful (1)	22:22	(0)
effort (1)	11:20	9:20	hundreds (2)	Jacobs (8)
17:10	fine (1)	gray (1)	9:25;10:4	7:11,11;12:6,8,9,14,
Eileen (1)	19:9	17:16		15,16
5:11	finish (2)	great (1)	I	Jeff (4)
either (2)	17:1,3	14:19		7:2;8:20;9:13;
16:2;19:9	FINNEGAN (2)	Group (1)	idea (2)	11:13
else (26)	8:19,20	8:23	16:1,4	Jesse (1)
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Guarantee (3)	importance (1)	7:6
5:18;6:1,17;7:4,8,	first (5)			
5:18;6:1,17;7:4,8, 16,20;8:2,8,18,24;	first (5) 9:8,11;12:8;19:14,	7:22;10:11;13:6	20:13	job (1)
5:18;6:1,17;7:4,8, 16,20;8:2,8,18,24; 12:3,20,24;13:3,12,	9:8,11;12:8;19:14, 17	7:22;10:11;13:6 guessing (1)	20:13	15:7
5:18;6:1,17;7:4,8, 16,20;8:2,8,18,24;	9:8,11;12:8;19:14,	7:22;10:11;13:6	20:13 important (2)	15:7 join (1)
5:18;6:1,17;7:4,8, 16,20;8:2,8,18,24; 12:3,20,24;13:3,12, 13;14:9,14,21;17:23; 18:9;20:4;22:17;23:5,	9:8,11;12:8;19:14, 17	7:22;10:11;13:6 guessing (1) 12:3 guys (3)	20:13 important (2) 10:25;20:11	15:7 join (1) 6:9
5:18;6:1,17;7:4,8, 16,20;8:2,8,18,24; 12:3,20,24;13:3,12, 13;14:9,14,21;17:23;	9:8,11;12:8;19:14, 17 Foley (2)	7:22;10:11;13:6 guessing (1) 12:3	20:13 important (2)	15:7 join (1)

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-2 Filed: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 27 September 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 27 September 2456-2 Filed: 11/20/25 12:07:25 Page 27 September 2456-2 Filed: 11/20/25 12:07:25 Page 2566-2 Filed: 11/20/25 12:07:25 Page 2566-2 Filed: 11/20/25 12:07:25 Page 2566-2 Filed: 11/20/25 Page 2566-

10:25;19:16 minute (2) 10:25;19:16 minute (2) 10:15;19:4 mode (1) 10:16;13;17:14 mode (1) 10:16;13;17:14 mode (1) 12:15 moment (1) 12:10 moment (1) 13:16 moment (1)) 6;8:4; ;20:8
12:18,23;13:2,7; 16:12:20:7 looks (2) 10:15;19:4 loss (2) 10:15;19:4 looks (2) 10:15;19:4 looks (2) 10:15;19:4 looks (2) 12:2:3 looks (2) 12:3 looks (2) looks (1) l) 6;8:4; ;20:8
15:23;16:16;17:13; 10oks (2) 16:3;17:14 mode (1) motwithstanding (1) 22:15 moment (1) 12:15 moment (1) 12:10 mome) 6;8:4; ;20:8
16:3;17:14 1000e (1) 22:3 14:13 16:3;17:14 1000e (1) 22:3 14:13 14:16;16:17;19:24; 16:13 16:3;17:14 16:13 16:3;17:14 16:13 16:3;17:14 16:13 16:3;17:14 16:13 16:3;17:14 16:13) 6;8:4; ;20:8
Judge's (1)) 6;8:4; ;20:8
Composition) 6;8:4; ;20:8
Nove (1)	6;8:4; ;20:8
Nome	6;8:4; ;20:8
Lowenstein (2) 17:10	;20:8
keep (1) 6:23;7:3 months (1) 5:4;6:2,12,1 11:8 5:4;6:2,12,1 11:8 people (3) 15:21;17:12 perceived (1) 15:21;17:12 perceived (1) 15:21;17:12 perceived (1) 21:10 15:21;17:12 perceived (1) 21:10 21:10 16:3 perfect (1) 18:13 perfect (1) 18:13 perfect (1) 18:13 perhaps (1) 18:14 19:15:11 19:15:11 18:18 19:11	;20:8
10:25	;20:8
Name (2)	
S:20,21;6:9,10	
M	
Table Tabl	
L making (1) 5:9,20,22,23,25;6:6, 13,15,18,22;7:2,6,8, 11,13,14,16,18;8:6, 12,14,19,22,24;9:16, 16;23 16:3 offer (1) perfect (1) lack (1) 8:16 12,14,19,22,24;9:16, 16;23 official (1) 8:4 Period (1) Lardner (1) 8:6,6 Moses (2) O'Melveny (2) 15:11 personally (1) 9:6 Marie (6) 6:7,9:5;11:4;13:17; most (3) one (4) personally (1) 10:5,7;11:6,15,20, 21;25;15:10,12,12; 14:10;20:24 move (2) 22:19 perspective (2) 21:10 5:23;12:11 14:6;15:13 only (1) phrase (1) latch (1) market (2) movement (1) 18:25 18:12 17:14 7:19;13:1 21:13 onto (1) phrase (1) lawyers (1) matter (1) 12:13;13:3,25; oOo- (1) plaintiffs' (1) leading (2) Matthew (2) 10:20 8:7 10:23;15:25 11:14 12:14 12:13 0popose (1) 14:20,21;17 leads (1) may (5) N N 11:14 0pposition (1)	
L 5:7 13,15,18,22;7:2,6,8, 11,13,14,16,18;8:6, 12,14,19,22,24;9:16, 19:6 official (1) 8:4 18:13 perhaps (1) 8:4 Lack (1) 8:16 12,14,19,22,24;9:16, 17;12:15;14:4 official (1) 16:23 8:4 Period (1) 15:23 8:4 Period (1) 16:23 Period (1) 15:23 8:4 Period (1) 15:23 8:4 Period (1) 16:23 Period (1) 15:23 9:20 10:15;13:10 9:20 10:15;13:10 9:20 10:15;13:10 9:20 10:15;13:10 9:20 10:15;13:10 9:20 10:15;13:10 9:20 10:15;13:10 9:20 10:15;13:10 9:20 10:15;13:10 9:20 10:15;13:10 9:20 10:15;13:10 9:20 10:15;13:10 9:20 10:15;13:10 9:20 10:15;13:13	
lack (1)	
lack (1) 8:16 12,14,19,22,24;9:16, 17;12:15;14:4 official (1) 8:4 19:6 Manns (2) 8:6.6 Moses (2) O'Melveny (2) 15:11 9:6 Marie (6) 6:18,18 7:25;13:10 personally (1) last (11) 6:7;9:5;11:4;13:17; most (3) one (4) 18:16 10:5,7;11:6,15,20, 21;25;15:10,12,12; Mark (2) move (2) 22:19 16:7;17:4 21:10 5:23;12:11 14:6;15:13 only (1) phrase (1) latch (1) market (2) movement (1) 18:25 18:12 17:14 7:19;13:1 21:13 onto (1) place (1) later (2) Matt (1) much (7) 17:14 16:13 10:15;18:19 6:13 12:13;13:3,25; 0Oo- (1) plaintiffs' (1) lawyers (1) matter (1) 16:14;19:3;23:18,19 OPF (1) plan (9) leading (2) Matthew (2) 10:20 8:7 10:23;15:25 1:1:14 11:14 21:14 21:14 10:10;16:3;18:3; </td <td></td>	
19:6	
19:6	
Lardner (1) 8:6,6 Marie (6) Moses (2) O'Melveny (2) 15:11 9:6 Marie (6) 6:18,18 7:25;13:10 personally (1) 10:5,7;11:6,15,20, 14:10:20:24 9:23;10:3,6 10:15,21;21:19; perspective (2) 21:10 5:23;12:11 move (2) 22:19 phrase (1) 12:10 5:23;12:11 movement (1) 18:25 18:12 17:14 7:19;13:1 movement (1) 18:25 18:12 10:15;18:19 6:13 12:13;13:3,25; onto (1) place (1) 1a:18 20:10 matter (1) 16:14;19:3;23:18,19 5:2 18:18 1a:16;13:24 5:20;6:10 may (5) N 11:14 21:14 11:22 14:16;16:17;19:24; 19:14 0pposition (1) Please (1) 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 12:29 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
9:6 Marie (6) 6:7;9:5;11:4;13:17; most (3) one (4) 18:16 personally (1) 18:16 pe	
last (11) 6:7;9:5;11:4;13:17; most (3) one (4) 18:16 10:5,7;11:6,15,20, 14:10;20:24 9:23;10:3,6 10:15,21;21:19; perspective (2) 21:10 5:23;12:11 14:6;15:13 only (1) phrase (1) latch (1) market (2) 7:19;13:1 21:13 onto (1) place (1) 1ater (2) Matt (1) 6:13 12:13;13:3,25; oOo- (1) plaintiffs' (1) lawyers (1) matter (1) 16:14;19:3;23:18,19 5:2 18:18 leading (2) Matthew (2) 5:20;6:10 0PF (1) plan (9) leads (1) 11:12 14:16;16:17;19:24; 0ppose (1) 11:14 21:14 leads (4) 21:19;22:20 13:12 0pposition (1) Please (1) 10:10;16:3;18:3; 19:11 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
10:5,7;11:6,15,20, 14:10;20:24 9:23;10:3,6 10:15,21;21:19; perspective (2 2:19 only (1) phrase (1) 21:10 5:23;12:11 14:6;15:13 only (1) phrase (1) 18:25 onto (1) place (1) 10:15;18:19 6:13 moven (7) only (1) place (1) 17:14 onto (1) place (1) 10:15;18:19 6:13 onto (1) onto (1) place (1) 16:13 onto (1) place (1) 18:18 20:10 matter (1) only (1) onto (1) place (1) 16:14;19:3;23:18,19 onto (1) place (1) 18:18 20:10 mundanity (1) onto (1) only (1) onto (1) place (1) 16:14;19:3;23:18,19 onto (1) place (1) 18:18 20:10 mundanity (1) only (1) onto (1) place (1) onto (1)	`
21,25;15:10,12,12; Mark (2) move (2) 22:19 16:7;17:4 21:10 5:23;12:11 14:6;15:13 only (1) phrase (1) 1atch (1) market (2) 7:19;13:1 21:13 onto (1) place (1) 1ater (2) Matt (1) much (7) 17:14 16:13 10:15;18:19 6:13 12:13;13:3,25; oOo- (1) plaintiffs' (1) 18:18 20:10 mundanity (1) OPF (1) plan (9) leading (2) Matthew (2) 5:20;6:10 8:7 10:23;15:25 11:16;13:24 5:20;6:10 N 11:14 21:14 leads (1) may (5) N 11:14 21:14 10:10;16:3;18:3; 21:19;22:20 names (1) 14:13 9:15 10:10;16:3;18:3; 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
21:10 5:23;12:11 14:6;15:13 only (1) phrase (1) latch (1) market (2) movement (1) 18:25 18:12 17:14 7:19;13:1 21:13 onto (1) place (1) later (2) Matt (1) much (7) 17:14 16:13 10:15;18:19 6:13 12:13;13:3,25; oOo- (1) plaintiffs' (1) lawyers (1) matter (1) 16:14;19:3;23:18,19 5:2 18:18 18:18 20:10 mundanity (1) OPF (1) plan (9) leading (2) Matthew (2) 8:7 10:23;15:25 11:16;13:24 5:20;6:10 oppose (1) 14;20,21;17 leads (1) may (5) N 11:14 21:14 11:22 14:16;16:17;19:24; opposition (1) Please (1) 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	,
latch (1) market (2) movement (1) 18:25 18:12 17:14 7:19;13:1 21:13 onto (1) place (1) later (2) Matt (1) much (7) 17:14 16:13 10:15;18:19 6:13 12:13;13:3,25; oOo- (1) plaintiffs' (1) lawyers (1) matter (1) 16:14;19:3;23:18,19 5:2 18:18 18:18 20:10 mundanity (1) OPF (1) plan (9) leading (2) Matthew (2) 10:20 8:7 10:23;15:25 11:16;13:24 5:20;6:10 oppose (1) 14;20,21;17 leads (1) may (5) N 11:14 21:14 11:22 14:16;16:17;19:24; opposition (1) Please (1) least (4) 21:19;22:20 names (1) 14:13 9:15 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
17:14 7:19;13:1 21:13 onto (1) place (1) later (2) Matt (1) much (7) 17:14 16:13 10:15;18:19 6:13 12:13;13:3,25; oOo- (1) plaintiffs' (1) lawyers (1) matter (1) 16:14;19:3;23:18,19 5:2 18:18 18:18 20:10 mundanity (1) OPF (1) plan (9) leading (2) Matthew (2) 10:20 8:7 10:23;15:25 11:16;13:24 5:20;6:10 oppose (1) 14;20,21;17 leads (1) may (5) N 11:14 21:14 11:22 14:16;16:17;19:24; opposition (1) Please (1) least (4) 21:19;22:20 names (1) 14:13 9:15 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
later (2) Matt (1) much (7) 17:14 16:13 10:15;18:19 6:13 12:13;13:3,25; oOo- (1) plaintiffs' (1) lawyers (1) matter (1) 16:14;19:3;23:18,19 5:2 18:18 18:18 20:10 mundanity (1) OPF (1) plan (9) leading (2) Matthew (2) 8:7 10:23;15:25 11:16;13:24 5:20;6:10 oppose (1) 14;20,21;17 leads (1) may (5) N 11:14 21:14 11:22 14:16;16:17;19:24; opposition (1) Please (1) least (4) 21:19;22:20 names (1) 14:13 9:15 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
10:15;18:19 6:13 12:13;13:3,25; oOo-(1) plaintiffs' (1) 1awyers (1) matter (1) 16:14;19:3;23:18,19 5:2 18:18 18:18 20:10 mundanity (1) OPF (1) plan (9) leading (2) Matthew (2) 10:20 8:7 10:23;15:25 11:16;13:24 5:20;6:10 oppose (1) 14;20,21;17 leads (1) may (5) N 11:14 21:14 11:22 14:16;16:17;19:24; opposition (1) Please (1) least (4) 21:19;22:20 names (1) 14:13 9:15 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
lawyers (1) matter (1) 16:14;19:3;23:18,19 5:2 18:18 18:18 20:10 mundanity (1) OPF (1) plan (9) leading (2) Matthew (2) 10:20 8:7 10:23;15:25 11:16;13:24 5:20;6:10 oppose (1) 14;20,21;17 leads (1) may (5) N 11:14 21:14 11:22 14:16;16:17;19:24; opposition (1) Please (1) least (4) 21:19;22:20 names (1) 14:13 9:15 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
18:18 20:10 mundanity (1) OPF (1) plan (9) leading (2) Matthew (2) 10:20 8:7 10:23;15:25 11:16;13:24 5:20;6:10 oppose (1) 14;20,21;17 leads (1) may (5) N 11:14 21:14 11:22 14:16;16:17;19:24; opposition (1) Please (1) least (4) 21:19;22:20 names (1) 14:13 9:15 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
leading (2) Matthew (2) 10:20 8:7 10:23;15:25 11:16;13:24 5:20;6:10 oppose (1) 14;20,21;17 leads (1) may (5) N 11:14 21:14 11:22 14:16;16:17;19:24; opposition (1) Please (1) least (4) 21:19;22:20 names (1) 14:13 9:15 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
11:16;13:24 5:20;6:10 leads (1) may (5) 11:22 14:16;16:17;19:24; least (4) 21:19;22:20 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 21:9 19:11 leave (2) mean (5) N 11:14 11:14 21:14 11:14 21:14 oppose (1) 11:14 11:14 21:14 opposition (1) 14:13 14:13 9:15 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 5:23,23;12: 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
leads (1) may (5) N 11:14 21:14 11:22 14:16;16:17;19:24; opposition (1) Please (1) least (4) 21:19;22:20 names (1) 14:13 9:15 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	;16:4,
leads (1) may (5) N 11:14 21:14 11:22 14:16;16:17;19:24; opposition (1) Please (1) least (4) 21:19;22:20 names (1) 14:13 9:15 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	5;18:17;
11:22 14:16;16:17;19:24; opposition (1) Please (1) least (4) 21:19;22:20 names (1) 14:13 9:15 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
least (4) 21:19;22:20 names (1) 14:13 9:15 10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
10:10;16:3;18:3; maybe (1) 15:21 optimum (1) PLEVIN (4) 21:9 19:11 naming (1) 18:7 5:23,23;12: leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	
21:9	
leave (2) mean (5) 15:21 order (9) Plevin's (1)	1 11
	1,11
14.20,23.14 10.20,13.13,10.23, HECESSAIN (1) 3.3,10.13,20.20, 12.7	
LEE (2) 8:4;12:2 17:8;19:5,7,10; ordered (1) position (2)	
6:13,13 means (1) 20:15;22:8 11:25 11:21;14:5	
less (2) 10:23 needed (1) Others (3) possibility (1)	
18:5,7 mediation (4) 10:21 8:21;15:21;16:24 18:4	
levels (1) 9:24;10:4,6;11:18 negotiated (1) Otherwise (1) possible (2)	
10:20 mediator (2) 11:23 9:9 16:20,24	
light (2) 8:11,14 Newsome (23) out (3) possibly (1)	
10:9;17:14 mediators (2) 8:11,11;9:7,16,18, 9:24;10:4;20:19 16:24	
likely (1) 8:9;14:16 21,23;10:3,18;11:7; outcome (2) posture (1)	
18:5 mediators' (1) 12:19;13:7;15:9,23; 15:24;20:17 23:1	
line (2) 13:21 16:5,9,16;19:13,15, outline (1) potential (2)	
5:14;22:9 members (1) 18,21,23;20:2 16:3 16:1;23:3	
lines (1) 16:23 Newsome's (6) over (5) prepare (1)	
21:12 mic (1) 9:11;11:2,9;12:23; 9:25;10:5,7;16:16; 22:13	
9:20;10:10;11:2 might (1) next (1) 22:12	
logistics (1) 15:23 11:11 P present (1)	
19:2 Mike (1) nimble (2) 6:10	
London (2) 8:19 10:22,22 Pacific (3) pressed (1)	
7:19;13:1 mind (2) note (1) 8:1;13:10,10 23:1	

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-2 Filed: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 28 - pressed

	1	1	1	November 12, 2025
probably (2)	reason (2)	room (1)	sorry (3)	thirty-plus (1)
9:23;10:3	17:12;21:11	18:3	14:23;17:1,2	10:5
problem (1)	reasonable (1)	ruffle (1)	sort (1)	thoughts (3)
15:5	20:8	8:4	10:1	18:10;19:14;20:5
problems (1)	Rebecca (1)	Ryan (1)	speak (1)	Tim (2)
18:20	8:22	8:6	14:15	7:18;8:13
proceed (1)	referenced (1)		SPEAKER (2)	Timothy (1)
9:9	21:8	S	7:21;23:19	12:25
proceedings (1)	reflect (1)		special (2)	today (5)
23:21	20:20	same (3)	5:21;7:7	6:9;10:15;11:25;
process (6)	reiterate (2)	11:19,21;16:13	spent (1)	17:9;22:18
15:19;17:4,20,22;	15:9;20:9	Sandler (2)	17:11	Todd (2)
18:6;20:10	remarks (1) 9:18	6:23;7:3	sponsors (1) 18:6	7:11;12:15 together (1)
progress (3) 10:8;11:6;21:10	reminded (1)	saying (1) 17:3	start (3)	14:7
Prol (11)	18:12	Schiavoni (10)	5:6;6:4;11:1	totally (1)
6:25;7:2,2;9:13,13;	reported (1)	7:23,25,25;13:9,9;	state (3)	20:21
11:13,13;14:3;15:14;	11:15	18:11,12,16,22,25	14:1,12;16:22	toward (1)
21:22;22:16	represent (2)	Scouts (1)	statement (1)	21:13
provide (1)	16:22;20:16	18:17	9:3	tragedy (1)
14:18	represented (1)	screen (3)	status (5)	17:9
prudent (1)	8:5	6:1,5;15:3	9:1,3;11:15,17,18	transferring (1)
20:19	request (13)	sec (1)	step (1)	6:3
purely (1)	10:12;11:10,14,19;	5:16	22:23	Travelers (3)
23:4	12:4,12,19,23;13:2,7,	seems (2)	stick (1)	7:15;12:23,23
pursue (1)	11;14:12;20:19	18:3;20:12	11:24	try (4)
17:6	requested (1)	select (1)	still (1)	7:23;15:7;20:16;
put (2)	13:21	16:22	16:19	21:25
14:6;22:6 Putting (2)	Research (1) 8:23	selected (1) 14:1	stopped (1) 15:13	trying (2) 12:17;17:11
13:12;16:1	resolution (2)	self-executing (1)	submits (1)	tunnel (5)
	12:17;15:8	20:21	16:21	10:10,11;17:15,15,
Q	resolve (1)	sense (2)	successful (1)	16
	17:11	19:4,8	17:13	turn (1)
quasi (1)	respect (4)	sensible (2)	suggestion (1)	11:11
22:3	9:2;13:19;19:3;	20:23;21:2	11:2	twenty-seven (1)
	20:15	sessions (1)	support (12)	18:6
R	respectfully (1)	11:18	11:9;12:18;13:2,7,	two (9)
	10:12	settlement (1)	11,19;14:12;15:14,	8:9;9:3;13:21;
raised (1)	respecting (2)	11:23	24;16:21,22;17:5	14:21;17:9,15,21;
6:2	20:10,11	Shane (1)	supported (1)	19:4;20:19
Randall (1)	respond (2)	6:18	12:17	\mathbf{U}
8:11 RC (1)	16:15,16 responsible (1)	short (1) 21:16	supports (2) 12:12,23	<u> </u>
8:7	20:8	side (4)	Sure (3)	UETZ (38)
RCBO (1)	result (1)	8:2;12:4,20;13:4	12:9,9;15:16	6:6,7;9:4,5,5;11:4,
5:12	15:23	signed (1)	survivors (1)	5;13:15,17,17,21;
RCC (1)	retention (1)	16:3	8:20	14:10,10,15,18;16:7,
8:7	22:23	similar (1)		15,19;17:3;20:24,24;
reach (2)	ridiculous (1)	22:3	T	21:1,4,7,19,22,25;
12:17;15:8	10:20	simply (1)		22:7,10,13,15,19,22;
reached (1)	RIDLEY (6)	11:22	talking (2)	23:1,6,9,12,15
17:21	5:9,11,11,14,17;	Singh (1)	15:16;16:16	unavailability (1)
reaction (4)	23:17	6:16	talks (1)	16:2
11:1,2,12;17:8	right (16)	situation (1)	17:25	UNIDENTIFIED (2)
reacts (1)	5:25;6:8,11,17;	19:21	Tanc (1)	7:21;23:19
10:19	9:10,15;10:17;15:18;	six (1)	13:9	unless (1)
read (1)	18:15;20:3,4;22:11,	16:13	Tancred (1)	20:21
9:2	17;23:8,10,13	slightly (1)	7:25	unsecured (1)
real (1) 12:16	robe (1) 22:5	10:23 SONTCHI (6)	ten (3) 10:7;11:6;21:10	16:23 up (5)
really (1)	role (1)	14:23,25;15:1,4,6;	thesis (1)	5:8;6:1;11:17;
21:12	20:11	16:10	16:12	14:25;16:12
41.14	20.11	10.10	10.12	17.23,10.12

urge (2) 17:25,24 11:08 (1) 21:9 V 18:30 (1) 11:38 videoconference (1) 14:4 W 2 vanus (2) 13:18:22:11 vay (3) 17:19:19:23:22:6 WC (1) 10:21 vecks (0) 13:41:19 10:21 vecks (1) 10:21 vecks (2) 10:21 vecks (1) 10:21 vecks (1	•	•		November 12, 202
17:23.24 1 1:08 (I)	urge (2)			
21:9	17:23,24	1		
Since Sinc	21:9	11:08 (1)		
V 12:21 12:11 13th (1)		5:1		
various (2) 11:8,8 videoconference (1) 14:4 W 2 wants (2) 13:18:22:11 way (3) 17:19:19:23:22:6 WC (1) 18:7 WEDNESDAY (2) 5:1:16:2 week (1) 10:21 weeks (6) 13:21:17:10:21: 19:14:20:19 weigh (2) 13:4.13 WESINEREG (3) 6:22:23:143 Westport (3) 7:12:12:16.17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 22:21 Wicks (2) 8:22:22 wishes (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3:12:21:52:1 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7:21:25 working (5) 6:80:17:18:22:23: p9:23 worth (2) 10:23:20:9 Wyant (4) 7:14:14:12:22:22 Y years (2)				
various (2) 113.8 videoconference (1) 14:4 W 2 wants (2) 131.8.22:11 way (3) 17:19:19:23;22:6 WC (1) 10:21 weeks (1) 10:21 weeks (1) 10:21 yeeigh (2) 133.4,13 Westport (3) 7:12:12:16,17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Whereupon (1) 11:6 Without (3) 8:31:22:15:21 word (1) 19:6 With (1) 11:7 12:12:16,17 whack (2) 13:4,13 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Whereupon (1) 11:6 Without (3) 8:31:22:15:21 word (1) 19:6 Without (3) 8:31:22:16:2:22:5 Weeks (2) 19:10:23:20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22:22 Y years (2)	V	12 (1)		
11:8,8 19:6	various (2)			
14:4 19:6		19:6		
wants (2) 1318,22:11 way (3) 1719,19;23;22:6 WC (1) 8:7 WEDNESDAY (2) 5:1;16:2 week (1) 10:21 weeks (6) 13:21;17:10,21; 19:1,4;20:19 weigh (2) 13:4,13 WEISENBERG (3) 6:22,23;14:3 Westport (3) 7:12;12:16,17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Whereupon (1) 23:22 3:21 Wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3:12:2,15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;22:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23:209 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)				
wants (2) 13:18;22:11 13:18;22:12 13:18;22:12 15:1 23-40523 (1) 5:1 23-40523 (1) 5:4 24th (1) 22:4 25th (1) 10:21 weeks (6) 13:21;17:10,21; 19:1,4;20:19 weigh (2) 13:4,13 WEISENBERG (3) 6:22,23;14:3 Westport (3) 7:12;12:16:17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 Wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3:12:2:15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23:209 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	W	2		
13:18;22:11 way (3) 17:19:19:23;22:6 WC (1) 8:7 WEDNESDAY (2) 5:11:62 week (1) 10:21 weeks (6) 13:21:17:10,21; 19:1,4:20:19 weigh (2) 13:4.13 WEISENBERG (3) 6:22,23:14:3 Westport (3) 7:12;12:16,17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	wants (2)			
way (3) 17:19;19:23;22:6 WC (1) 8:7 WEDNESDAY (2) 5:1;16:2 week (1) 10:21 weeks (6) 13:21;17:10;21; 19:1,4;20:19 weigh (2) 13:4,13 WESISENBERG (3) 6:22,23;14:3 Westport (3) 7:12;12:16,17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3:12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8:11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	13:18;22:11			
WC (1) 8:7 WEDNESDAY (2) 5:1;16:2 Week (1) 10:21 weeks (6) 13:21;17:10,21; 19:1,4;20:19 WEISENBERG (3) 6:22,23;14:3 Westport (3) 7:12;12:16,17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 word (1) 19:8 Weising (5) 6:8:11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)		23-40523 (1)		
877 WEDNESDAY (2) 5:1;16:2 week (1) 10:21 weeks (6) 13:21;17:10,21; 19:1,4:20:19 weigh (2) 13:4,13 WEISENBERG (3) 6:22,23;14:3 Westport (3) 7:12;12:16,17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	WC (1)			
5:1;16:2 week (1) 10:21 weeks (6) 13:21;17:10;21; 19:1,4;20:19 weigh (2) 13:4;13 WEISENBERG (3) 6:22,23;14:3 Westport (3) 7:12:12:16,17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working(5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)		22:4		
week (1) 10:21 weeks (6) 13:21;17:10,21; 19:1,4;20:19 weigh (2) 13:4,13 WEISENBERG (3) 6:22,23:14:3 Westport (3) 7:12;12:16:17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 word (2) 15:7;2:25 working (5) 6:8:11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23:20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	5:1;16:2			
weeks (6) 13:21;17:10,21; 19:1,4;20:19 weigh (2) 13:4,13 WEISENBERG (3) 6:22,23;14:3 Westport (3) 7:12;12:16,17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;2:125 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23:20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)				
19:1,4:20:19 weigh (2) 13:4,13 WEISENBERG (3) 6:22,23;14:3 Westport (3) 7:12;12:16,17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	weeks (6)	10:17,22;16:2;22:5		
weigh (2) 13:4,13 WEISENBERG (3) 6:22,23;14:3 Westport (3) 7:12:12:16,17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)		4		
13:4,13 WESSENBERG (3) 6:22,23;14:3 Westport (3) 7:12;12:16,17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	weigh (2)	4:59 (1)		
6:22,23;14:3 Westport (3) 7:12;12:16,17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8:11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)				
7:12;12:16,17 whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	6:22,23;14:3			
whack (1) 22:11 Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)				
Whereupon (1) 23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	whack (1)			
23:21 Wicks (2) 8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)				
8:22,22 wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	23:21			
wishes (1) 9:7 within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)				
within (1) 11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	wishes (1)			
11:6 without (3) 8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)				
8:3;12:2;15:21 word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	11:6			
word (1) 19:6 work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)				
work (2) 15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	word (1)			
15:7;21:25 working (5) 6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)				
6:8;11:7;18:22,23; 19:23 worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	15:7;21:25			
worth (2) 10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	6:8;11:7;18:22,23;			
10:23;20:9 Wyatt (4) 7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)				
7:14,14;12:22,22 Y years (2)	10:23;20:9			
years (2)				
	Y			
	years (2)			
	10:5,6			

Exhibit C

of 114

1	UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
2	NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OAKLAND
3	-000-
4	In Re:) Case No. 23-40523) Chapter 11
5	THE ROMAN CATHOLIC BISHOP OF) OAKLAND) Oakland, California
6) Wednesday, October 29, 2025 Debtor.) 1:30 PM
7	MOTION TO DISMISS CASE
8	PURSUANT TO 11 U.S.C. SECTION 1112(B) FILED BY THE ROMAN
9	CATHOLIC BISHOP OF OAKLAND
10	TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE HONORABLE WILLIAM J. LAFFERTY
11	UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY JUDGE
12	APPEARANCES: For the Debtor: ANN MARIE UETZ, ESQ.
13	Foley & Lardner LLP 500 Woodward Avenue
14	Suite 2700 Detroit, MI 48226
15	(313) 234-7100
16	MATTHEW D. LEE, ESQ. Foley & Lardner LLP
17	150 East Gilman Street Suite 5000
18	Madison, WI 53703 (608)258-4203
19	SHANE J. MOSES, ESQ.
20	EILEEN R. RIDLEY, ESQ. Foley & Lardner LLP
21	One Market Plaza 55 Spear Street Tower, Suite 1900
22	San Francisco, CA 94105 (415)434-4484
23	MATTHEW JAMES KEMNER, ESQ.
24	Law Offices of Matthew J. Kemner 9 Brookbank Road
25	Orinda, CA 94563 (415)730-6556
	▼ •1

1		
2	For Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors:	BRENT WEISENBERG, ESQ. JEFFREY D. PROL, ESQ.
3		Lowenstein Sandler LLP One Lowenstein Drive Roseland, NJ 07068
4		(973) 597-6120
5		GABRIELLE ALBERT, ESQ. Keller Benvenutti Kim LLP
6		101 Montgomery Street Suite 1950,
7		San Francisco, CA 94104 (415)364-6778
8		
9	Special insurance counsel for the committee:	TIMOTHY W. BURNS, ESQ. Burns Bair LLP 10 E. Doty Street
10		Suite 600
11		Madison, WI 53703 (608)286-2808
12	For RCC, RCWC, OPF,	RYAN E. MANNS, ESQ.
13	and Adventus:	Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP 2200 Ross Avenue Suite 3600
14		Dallas, TX 75201 (214)855-8000
15	For Pacific Insurers:	MANORED W. CONTAMONT ECO.
16	For Pacific Insurers:	TANCRED V. SCHIAVONI, ESQ. (Via Zoom) O'Melveny & Myers LLP
17		1301 Avenue of the Americas
18		Suite 1700 New York, NY 10019 (212)326-2000
19		
20	For Continental Insurance Company:	MIRANDA H. TURNER, ESQ. (Via Zoom) Plevin & Turner LLP
21		1701 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W.
22		Suite 200 Washington, DC 20006 (202)580-6640
23		(202) 300-0040
24		
25		

1	For Westport Insurance	TODD JACOBS, ESQ. Parker, Hudson, Rainer & Dobbs
2	Corporation:	LLP
3		Two North Riverside Plaza Suite 1850
4		Chicago, IL 60606 (312)477-3306
5		BLAISE S. CURET, ESQ.
6	Cure	Sinnott, Puebla, Campagne & t, APLC
7		515 S. Figueroa Street, Suite 1470
8		Los Angeles, CA 90071 (213)996-4200
9	For abuse surviors:	MICHAEL GEORGE FINNEGAN, ESQ.
10		Jeff Anderson & Associates 366 Jackson Street
11		Suite 100 Saint Paul, MN 55101
12		(651) 227-9990
13	For Travelers Casualty & Surety Company f/k/a	ANDREW D. TELLES WYATT, ESQ. (Via Zoom)
14	Aetna Casualty & Surety Company:	Dentons 4675 MacArthur Court
15	o o mp and t	Suite 1250 Newport Beach, CA 92660
		(949) 732-3738
16	For London Market Insurers:	TIMOTHY W. EVANSTON, ESQ.
17		Skarzynski Marick & Black LLP 333 S. Grand Avenue
18		Suite 3550 Los Angeles, CA 90071
19		(213) 721-0650
20	Also Present:	CHRISTOPHER SONTCHI,
21		Mediator
22		TIMOTHY GALLAGHER, Mediator (Via Zoom)
23		RANDALL NEWSOME,
24		Mediator (Via Zoom)
25		BISHOP MICHAEL BARBER

		4
1		
2		
3		
4		
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19	Court Recorder:	DAWANA CHAMBERS United States Bankruptcy Court
20		1300 Clay Street Oakland, CA 94612
21	Transcriber:	SHARONA SHAPIRO eScribers, LLC
22		7227 N. 16th Street Suite #207
23		Phoenix, AZ 85020 (800) 257-0885
24	Proceedings recorded by elec	
25	transcript provided by trans	
ase: 23-	40523 Doc# 2456-3 Filed: 11/20/2	5 Eintered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 5

1	OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA, WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 29, 2025 01:29 PM
2	000-
3	(Call to order of the Court.)
4	THE CLERK: Roman Catholic Bishop of Oakland, case
5	number, case number 23-40523.
6	THE COURT: Okay. Why don't we start in the courtroom
7	with appearances?
8	MS. UETZ: Your Honor, Ann Marie Uetz, of Foley &
9	Lardner, on behalf of the debtor.
10	THE COURT: Okay.
11	MR. WEISENBERG: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Matt
12	Lee, of Foley & Lardner, on behalf of the debtor.
13	THE COURT:Okay.
14	MR. FINNEGAN: Good afternoon. Shane Moses, of Foley
15	& Lardner, for the debtor.
16	THE COURT: Okay.
17	MS. RIDLEY: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Matthew
18	Kemner.
19	THE COURT: Okay.
20	MR. PROL: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Jeff Prol,
21	Lowenstein Sandler, for the committee.
22	THE COURT: Okay.
23	MR. BURNS: Tim Burns, for the committee, Your Honor.
24	THE COURT: Okay. Just make sure you're close enough
25	to a mic that, as I joked earlier, Judge Corley can know who

```
1
     was here.
 2
              MS. ALBERT: Good afternoon. Gabrielle Albert, Keller
 3
     Benvenutti Kim, on behalf of the committee.
 4
              THE COURT: Okay. Nice to see you.
 5
              MR. WEISENBERG: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Brent
 6
     Weisenberg, of Lowenstein Sandler, on behalf of the committee.
 7
              THE COURT: Okay. Good afternoon.
 8
              MR. FINNEGAN: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Ryan
 9
     Manns, Norton Rose Fulbright, on behalf of RCWC, RCC, Adventus,
10
     and OPF.
11
              THE COURT: Nice to see you again. Okay.
12
              MS. RIDLEY: Your Honor, Eileen Ridley, Foley &
13
     Lardner, coverage counsel for RCBO.
14
              THE COURT: Very good. Thank you. Okay.
15
              MS. TURNER: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Todd Jacobs
16
     for Westport Insurance Corporation. I'm here with my co-
17
     counsel, Blaise Curet.
18
              THE COURT: Nice to see you.
19
              MS. TURNER: Thank you.
20
              MR. FINNEGAN: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Mike
21
     Finnegan, with Jeff Anderson & Associates, on behalf of a
22
     number of abuse survivors.
23
              THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
2.4
              MR. SCHIAVONI: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Timothy
25
     Evanston on behalf of the London market insurers.
```

```
1
              THE COURT: Nice to see you. Okay. We have a few
 2
     folks on Zoom as well. There's something else you want to tell
 3
     me?
 4
              MR. PROL: Your Honor, if I may.
 5
              THE COURT: Yes.
 6
              MR. PROL: I'd just like to introduce you to one of
 7
     our community members, Jason Jay.
 8
              THE COURT: Oh, certainly. Yeah, yeah, yeah. Okay.
 9
     All right. Nice to see you. Thank you for coming. Okay.
10
     Thank you.
11
              MR. PROL: I believe that several other committee
12
     members will be participating via the Zoom in this --
13
              THE COURT: Well, participating as in they would like
14
     to talk, or they're just -- okay. Okay. Okay. All right.
15
              MR. PROL: Just listening in, Your Honor.
16
              THE COURT: Okay. Let's go ahead and start the roll
17
     call on Zoom.
18
              Actually, I'm ahead of myself. Let's get people
19
     checked in on Zoom.
20
              MS. TURNER: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Miranda
21
     Turner on behalf of Continental Insurance Company.
22
              THE COURT: Okay.
23
              MS. UETZ: Excuse me, Your Honor. At least our
24
     cameras aren't showing her.
25
                          Same. Well, I'm seeing a very small --
              THE COURT:
```

```
1
              MS. UETZ: And Bishop Barber is attending, it looks
 2
     like.
 3
              THE COURT: -- version -- oh, there we go. Are you
 4
     seeing the attendees now?
 5
              MS. UETZ: We are, Your Honor. Thank you.
 6
              THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
 7
              Okay. Anybody else who wants to make an appearance
 8
     today?
 9
              MR. SCHIAVONI: Your Honor, Tim Gallagher. Good
10
     afternoon. Mediator.
11
              THE COURT: Good afternoon.
12
              MR. SCHIAVONI: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Bishop
13
     Michael Barber attending, sir.
14
              THE COURT: Okay. Good afternoon. Do you expect to
15
     to speak to us today, Bishop Barber?
16
              MR. SCHIAVONI: No, I don't, Your Honor.
17
              THE COURT: Okay. Well, thank you for attending. I
18
     appreciate it.
19
              Okay. Others?
20
              MR. SCHIAVONI: Yes. This is Randall Newsome,
2.1
     mediator.
22
              THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Nice to see you.
23
              MR. SCHIAVONI: Nice to see you.
2.4
              THE COURT: Anybody else?
25
              MS. TURNER: Parties with their hand raised have been
```

```
1
     transferred, Your Honor.
 2
               THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Uetz?
 3
              By the way, I think I've read everything, including
 4
     what I suppose was last night's status conference report,
 5
     right? Okay.
 6
              MS. UETZ: Yes, Your Honor.
 7
              THE COURT: Okay.
 8
              MS. UETZ: Ann Marie Uetz, of Foley & Lardner,
 9
     appearing on behalf of the debtor, Your Honor.
10
               I'd like to spend just a couple of minutes on
11
     status --
12
               THE COURT: Sure.
13
              MS. UETZ: -- and then pivot to the motion to dismiss,
14
     if it pleases the Court.
15
              THE COURT: Um-hum.
16
              MS. UETZ: Your Honor, the status report that we filed
17
     last night covered the following subjects: the recent
18
     mediation, the retention application for Covington as conflicts
19
     counsel, the status of the lift stay in the state court, and
20
     fee applications.
2.1
              THE COURT: Um-hum.
22
              MS. UETZ: Your Honor, because the mediation summary
23
     sort of ties over to the timing that I'm going to propose to
24
     the Court, I'd like to spend just a couple of minutes on that.
25
               THE COURT:
                          Sure. Go ahead.
```

MS. UETZ: And I won't repeat it when I get to the motion to dismiss.

2.1

THE COURT: Mr. Prol, do you want to say something?

MR. PROL: Your Honor, if I may. We object to the filing of the late-filed status conference report, which we would really prefer to call an unauthorized surreply. The thing that Ms. Uetz failed to mention is that a large portion of that document is a surreply to the last brief that we filed with regard to the lift stay motion.

In addition, the mediation section portion of it is a blatant violation of the mediation privilege again. That has to stop, Your Honor. We ask Your Honor to strike that from the record. And we also ask that Your Honor, at the outset, set rules for this hearing that nothing covered by the mediation privilege should be discussed.

The mediation privilege is designed to protect mediation communications. It covers oral communications, it covers written communications, it covers documents exchanged. And the purpose of the mediation privilege is to encourage parties to mediate in good faith.

The debtor repeatedly, before this Court, violates that privilege in the hopes of prejudicing Your Honor and also, I believe, in the hopes of gaining litigation advantage, negotiation advantage by aligning themselves with the insurance carriers. Judge, we strenuously object. We request you to

strike it from the record and to warn all parties that they should not discuss anything covered by mediation privilege this afternoon.

THE COURT: Well, let me handle a couple -- let me pull that apart a bit and handle a couple of pieces on, sort of, a neutral logistics ground before I let Ms. Uetz describe her sense of the mediation privilege issues. Okay?

Number one, there was a motion to dismiss to which the debtor -- I'm sorry; the debtor filed a motion to dismiss. The committee filed a response. The debtor filed a reply. The committee filed something completely unauthorized thereafter.

But --

Do not interrupt me, Mr. Prol. Thank you very much. Okay?

So if we're talking about who's filing things last, I think both parties have been taking advantage of the liberality with which I want to hear from all of you and want to know what all of you are thinking.

I would also note that this certainly is a motion to dismiss. It's also, in many ways, as we frequently do around here, a status conference. And there are times when I simply need to be updated about various issues. So in those neutral logistics senses, not getting to your mediation arguments, I would overrule the objection on those bases.

Now let's hear from Ms. Uetz about the mediation

1 issues.

MS. UETZ: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And I'll let you respond, okay? I promise.

2.4

MS. UETZ: Thank you, Your Honor. With respect to mediation, the fact of the parties having met for mediation is something that we reported in the conference, and we don't believe that that is something that should be secret from this Court. It's not a secret that we had a two-day all hands mediation with all three mediators.

THE COURT: I remember talking to you from Hawaii on the 6th just before that. So yeah, that was hardly a secret.

MS. UETZ: Correct, Your Honor.

14 THE COURT: Go ahead.

MS. UETZ: I'll say the following. We have not revealed the terms of the mediators' proposal. We purposely haven't done that. We haven't told you the dollars. We haven't told you the terms. But we do believe that it is within the debtor's purview to let the Court know, and indeed the world know that the debtor has accepted the mediators' proposal.

I actually think it would be okay if we told the Court and the world how much the debtor is willing to pay. But we didn't do that in our status report. What we did was report on the fact of the mediation, that the debtor has accepted the

three-mediators' proposal, and the debtor's estimation as to a possible chance for an exit from this case other than through a dismissal.

So I don't believe that we have violated the mediation privilege. There are certainly a lot of facts concerning mediation that we have not included in our submission, including redacted sections of an email that my firm sent to the Lowenstein law firm on Friday. We redacted that so that the Court would not see those mediation documents.

In light of that, Your Honor, we took pains, in our case report yesterday, and I take pains, in my statements before this Court, to respect the mediation privilege. And we believe that we have respected it. Again, I will emphasize, I think it is within the debtor's purview to announce to the world the amount of dollars it is willing to pay survivors. But we haven't even done that today because we don't think that that is germane to this Court's consideration of the issues before it today. So I don't want to waive on that. But I think, certainly as it relates to mediation, everything that we've put in our statement and everything I have said in this Court has been consistent with the privilege.

THE COURT: Remind me, who was it who informed me that, at the conclusion of the session on the 8th, no agreement was yet reached, but there was a mediators' proposal?

MS. UETZ: The debtor -- at least the debtor has made

```
1
     that statement --
 2
              THE COURT: Okay.
 3
              MS. UETZ: -- to you, Your Honor. I don't know, with
 4
     my recall standing here --
 5
              THE COURT: Okay.
 6
              MS. UETZ: -- if any other party has made that
 7
     representation to this Court.
 8
              THE COURT: Okay. Well, certainly -- I'm going to
 9
     let Mr. Prol talk in a second, but I do recall Mr. Prol telling
10
     me, without getting into whether the committee had accepted or
11
     had not accepted the mediators' proposal, that there was
12
     another proposal that was made by the committee on Friday that
13
     was rejected on Sunday. So that I remember from a --
14
              MS. UETZ: I recall the --
15
              THE COURT: -- particularly important footnote from
16
     one of his pleadings.
17
              MS. UETZ: And --
18
              THE COURT: I read that with great interest. So --
19
              MS. UETZ: If I followed, Your Honor -- you're now
20
     jogging my memory -- the committee, through Lowenstein, as
2.1
     counsel, in its most recent brief filed with the Court, did in
22
     fact note --
23
              THE COURT: Yeah.
2.4
              MS. UETZ: -- an offer that it made during mediation
25
     and my response. I haven't even put, in any of my pleadings,
```

```
1
     the insurer's responses or the committee's.
 2
              THE COURT: Well, and understand that, as much as
 3
     possible, what people can tell me about status -- not about
 4
     numbers, and ask and get, but about status is helpful to me.
 5
     have no problem, and I'm glad the committee told me that,
 6
     without telling me, by the way, we did or didn't accept the
 7
     mediators' proposal, but we made an offer. That suggests to me
 8
     they're in good faith, okay, that they're they're trying here.
 9
     The fact that you didn't accept it, okay, you didn't accept it.
10
     Here we are. Okay?
11
              All right. Mr. Prol, come on up, and you can tell me
12
     the rest of your thoughts about the mediator proposal.
13
              MR. PROL: So Your Honor, if we can start -- for the
14
     record, Jeff Prol, for the committee.
15
              THE COURT: Yeah.
16
              MR. PROL: If I can start, Your Honor, with the
17
     briefing schedule. When we were here to discuss briefing on
18
     the motion to dismiss, Your Honor was the one who opened the
19
     door and suggested that the committee might want to file a
20
     reply. So that was built in --
2.1
                          The reply to the reply?
              THE COURT:
22
              MR. PROL: Yes, Your Honor.
23
                          I don't remember that. But okay, if
              THE COURT:
24
     you're right about that, you're right about that.
25
              MR. PROL:
                         So the --
```

THE COURT: But it goes to my further point, which is

I am eager to hear from all of you. And I read what you had to
say. I thought it was out of order. I didn't say I'm going to
strike it. I didn't say I'm not going to read it. I read it.
Okay?

MR. PROL: I mean, in fairness, though, Your Honor, we were before Your Honor, and we agreed on a briefing schedule. What was already before Your Honor was the motion and the committee's statement in support. The debtor requested the opportunity to file a reply, which was granted. And then there was discussion, well, you know, this issue of dismissal with prejudice is raised for the first time in the committee's pleading; perhaps the committee should then reply to what the debtor says. And that was the agreed-upon briefing schedule.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. PROL: All right. The difficulty comes in when a party says, don't really care about the briefing schedule, we're going to file something at 9:15, while the other parties are traveling here from New Jersey, and we're left scrambling to review a pleading the morning before, no opportunity to discuss it with our client. And again, we think it's highly prejudicial.

With respect to the reply, with regard to the motion to dismiss, we think that that portion should be stricken. The other parts that deal with -- other than the mediation section,

that deal with status of other matters, they're fair. Again, I would appreciate having received it in a timely fashion, not right before the hearing.

THE COURT: Um-hum.

MR. PROL: And as it relates to the mediation privilege section, Your Honor, the problem with the slippery slope that we're going down here is, every time the debtor stands up in court and discloses something that happened in mediation, you feel like you have to respond. And you don't want to waive the privilege.

And even what they've said here, it's not complete, it's not accurate. And we believe it leaves Your Honor with the wrong impression of what happened in mediation and what could potentially happen in mediation, which is why we think it should be stricken. And we want a rule that says everybody has to respect the mediation privilege.

THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to take that under submission, okay? Thank you.

MS. UETZ: Your Honor, if I may make one further point -- two short ones. The first is that our case report, filed last night, doesn't have any case law citations in it. There's no legal argument in it. So that's one thing.

The second thing I want to say, and it may come up during the hearing on the motion to dismiss, is the following.

The committee has accused my client, and my law firm, and other

1 professionals in this case, of acting in bad faith. And it may 2 be that, in defending that accusation, we do need to address 3 things that happened in mediation. 4 THE COURT: Well --5 MS. UETZ: I haven't done that yet. I'm not sure. 6 THE COURT: -- yeah. 7 MS. UETZ: But the committee -- and this has come up 8 before, Your Honor. We don't believe it's permissible for the 9 committee to make accusations that can be disproved by things 10 that happened in mediation, and then potentially get a ruling 11 from Your Honor prevailing on those accusations, because I 12 can't defend the accusations because the mediation privilege. 13 That may come up; I'm not sure. 14 THE COURT: Well, let me make two points, okay? First 15 of all, there's a distinction between you, in Mr. Prol's mind, 16 arguably, violating a mediation privilege by contesting what 17 he's saying, as opposed to telling me you should disregard what 18 Prol said because. You could have done the latter, right?

mean, if your position is, look, they started it, they violated the mediation privilege, all you had to tell me was ignore X, right?

MS. UETZ: I don't think that's my position, Your 22 23 Honor.

19

20

21

24

25

THE COURT: All right. That's what I was hearing. But let me make another point, okay? The whole question of the

```
1
     conditions under which this case is going to be dismissed, if
 2
     it is going to be dismissed, is something that everybody's
 3
     going to get a chance to weigh in on. We don't need to do it
     anymore piecemeal. Everybody should stop the submissions about
 4
 5
     that at this point, okay? Make sense?
 6
              MS. UETZ: Yes.
 7
              THE COURT:
                          I appreciate it. Okay. Go ahead.
                                                               You've
     got other important things to say, I'm sure.
 8
 9
              MS. UETZ: I do, Your Honor.
10
              THE COURT: Okay.
11
                         Thank you. And it has to do with the
              MS. UETZ:
12
     timing before I get into arguing the motion to dismiss.
13
              THE COURT: Can I ask you a question?
14
              MS. UETZ: Yes.
15
              THE COURT: Given that we have --
16
              MS. UETZ: Of course.
17
                          We have the 12th out there as a status
              THE COURT:
18
     conference date. And I realize that the debtor said, on paper,
19
     something that maybe they've said orally, that the 12th should
20
     be an absolute D-day, one way or the other. I will tell you, I
21
     may not have articulated this before, but that's -- I mean,
22
     I'll tell you right now, if we're not in a very different place
23
     by the 12th, the case is dismissed. It's just that simple,
24
     okay?
25
              But tell me where this hearing fits, and what you
```

```
1
     expect to accomplish, given that there may be -- somebody may
 2
     want to tell me there's a way for us to keep talking, okay?
 3
              MS. UETZ: Thank you, Your Honor.
 4
              THE COURT: So contextualize what you're about to say,
 5
     if you wouldn't mind. Thank you.
 6
              MS. UETZ: I skipped a page-and-a-half of my notes,
 7
     because now I'm --
 8
              THE COURT: Well, no, I mean, if it's something I need
 9
     to know --
10
              MS. UETZ: I don't want to repeat everything that I
11
     put in my filing last night.
12
              THE COURT: Yeah.
13
              MS. UETZ: So I will get to that point that Your Honor
14
     just raised.
15
              THE COURT:
                          Thank you. I appreciate it.
16
              MS. UETZ: Your Honor --
17
              THE COURT: By the way, if you see it differently, Mr.
18
     Prol you're going to tell me, Okay? You may have a totally
19
     different conception of what we're doing today. And I --
20
              MR. PROL: I'd like to be heard on timing before we
21
     get into the merits.
22
              THE COURT: Okay. That's fine. Why don't we do that?
23
     Why don't you give me your sense of the context, and I'll let
24
     Mr. Prol respond to that, okay?
25
              MS. UETZ: Sure, Your Honor. The debtor believes
```

that, as we stand here today, we don't have to present to the Court a global resolution, nor do we have the terms or the parties for a fourth amended plan of reorganization. We do believe that parties are still talking, including with mediators.

And because of that, and because of the debtor's position with respect to the mediators' proposal we believe, between now and November 12th, we will be able to present to this Court whether the debtor believes there's no hope for an exit, other than a dismissal, or whether the debtor has either support among all stakeholders, or what I would describe as sufficient additional support from additional stakeholders, whether those be insurers, whether those be individual claimants, whether that be the committee, to present to this Court a fourth amended plan.

If the debtor believes, in the exercise of its reasonable business judgment at that time, that it makes sense to pursue a fourth amended plan, we will do so. And when I say "makes sense" to do so, Your Honor, what I mean is, if the debtor believes that it is capable of achieving confirmation of a fourth amended plan and capable of paying for the hearing and the proceedings attendant to such a plan.

So that is the space between where we are today and November 12th. But importantly, Your Honor, I want to really emphasize this. The debtor seeks from this Court an order that

the case be dismissed without prejudice. The debtor believes, as we stand here today -- and you'll hear argument, and you've got the record before you -- that the Court can rule that when this case -- if this case is dismissed at that outside date, that it be done without prejudice.

2.1

2.4

We believe, Your Honor, that you deciding that issue will be very important to how the next couple of weeks ensue and how the parties view their positions in getting to the 12th. And I'll just say it expressly, as you've heard it argued, including by counsel for the committee, we need to understand, and there's things folks file with the Court and they get decided a certain way.

And right now, this claim of bad faith is hanging over the debtor. We think it's entirely unfounded. And we think that this Court should make a ruling that the case be dismissed at an outside date, November 12th, without prejudice. I'm going to try really hard today to not mix up when I say that, because I tend to. So everybody will jump on me on this side of the room if I say it wrong.

THE COURT: Okay. I got it. Okay. Thank you.

MS. UETZ: That is the debtor's position, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Thanks a lot.

MS. UETZ: Do you want me to pause there?

THE COURT: Yes. Uh-huh.

MS. UETZ: Thank you.

1 THE COURT: Because, among other things, what I think, 2 in a perfect world, we would -- assuming we're going to argue 3 the with-prejudice and bar issues today, you want a ruling as 4 soon as we can get one, from your perspective. 5 MS. UETZ: A hundred percent. 6 THE COURT: And you don't think this goes over to the 7 12th for any reason? 8 MS. UETZ: No. 9 THE COURT: All right. 10 MS. UETZ: In fact, I think it's counterproductive to 11 an exit, other than a dismissal, if this pushes out past today. 12 THE COURT: Okay. 13 MS. UETZ: Thank you. 14 THE COURT: Yes. Okay. 15 MR. PROL: Jeff Prol on behalf of the committee. 16 Your Honor, we oppose proceeding in that fashion. 17 debtor comes before Your Honor today on a motion to dismiss in 18 order to obtain dismissal of the case. They're not entitled to 19 that as of right. They have to show cause, and they have to 20 show that dismissal is in the best interest of creditors and in 21 the best interest of the estate. Notice it's creditors and 22 estate; it's not the best interests of the debtor. The cause 23 that they assert for dismissal of the case is that they are 2.4 administratively insolvent. 25 THE COURT: Are you objecting to something?

MS. UETZ: I am, Your Honor. It sounds like Mr. Prol is arguing the merits of the motion, which is my motion, not the timing of the motion.

MR. PROL: This goes to timing, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Let's get to timing.

MR. PROL: Okay. And I'll get there very quickly.

THE COURT: Okay. I appreciate it.

MR. PROL: The cause that the debtor asserts is that they're administratively insolvent and that they cannot afford to pay the costs of the case. And they've been very strident about that in their pleadings. I'll just quote their response at page 4. This is the first response.

"The debtor can no longer afford the administrative expense associated with pursuing confirmation of the plan through a contested plan confirmation process." And then, several lines later, "With no end in sight and insufficient funds to pursue a nonconsensual plan, the debtor can no longer bear the burden of these costs".

But what they're saying to you now is, if mediation breaks the right way, and we can make deals with -- it must be the insurance carriers -- that make this more attractive, we have the ability to go out and find the money. We're no longer administratively insolvent. When the debtor wants money, it seems to be able to press --

THE COURT: Can you get a little more directly to the

timing issue, please?

2 MR. PROL: Sure.

3 THE COURT: I appreciate it.

MR. PROL: So what the debtor is proposing to do, by arguing today and getting a dismissal in the future, is they're basically buying an option from Your Honor. Your Honor has to find there's cause that they're insolvent, they can't afford this case. It's in the best interest to dismiss, either with or without prejudice, but it's not effective for twelve days. And if we like what happens, trust us, Judge, we'll no longer be administratively insolvent.

So you're no longer deciding the motion, Your Honor. They are. If they want to proceed with the motion to dismiss, they should proceed with the motion to dismiss. We think this case should be dismissed. We think the case should be dismissed and it should be dismissed today.

Going back to mediation, they've said in their papers mediation hasn't borne fruit. Read the language they use. And so we think the process whereby we argue today, Your Honor rules, and then they get to play this out is -- again, it's unfair, prejudicial, and we would oppose it.

If Your Honor is not inclined to rule on the motion today or -- their other alternative is to withdraw the motion or adjourn the hearing. Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Appreciate it. I'm reserving my

1 | thoughts, so come on up, and let's get to the next phase, okay?

MS. UETZ: Thank you, Your Honor. Ann Marie Uetz, of Foley & Lardner, appearing on behalf of the debtor, Your Honor. I'll give you a preview, Your Honor. I'm going to take between five and eight minutes.

Your Honor, the debtor has moved for a dismissal, pursuant to 1112(b), without prejudice. A tiny bit of background just for the record. Throughout the past thirty months of this cas, the debtor has worked tirelessly to balance two important objectives. We've repeated them throughout the case, and they have not change: a fair and equitable resolution of the claims against it and the continuation of its vital mission in support of its ministry of more than half a million Catholic faithful and others in the broader East Bay community.

To achieve these goals, the debtor has conducted itself, throughout the case, in intensive and extensive mediation with all stakeholders. As of today, the debtor's conclusion is that there are no prospects today for a consensual resolution between and among the debtor, the committee, and the insurers, for reasons think the Court has observed in prior arguments. It is true that the debtor can no longer afford the administrative expense associated with pursuit of confirmation of the pending plan of reorganization through a contested process.

The debtor has said that, even if it could afford that, it does not believe it should continue to pay the Chapter 11 administrative expenses under the current circumstances.

Its funds should be preserved, including to pay survivor claims.

2.1

There have been more than twenty mediation sessions to date; I think about twenty-four. Your Honor, we reported, in the CMC, on the status of the outcome, at least, from the debtor's perspective, having accepted the mediation proposal from all three mediators. Notwithstanding that, we are still before you today arguing this motion to dismiss.

It is fair to say that the debtor has increased the amount that both the debtor and schools would pay to try to resolve this case. For the most part, the insurers have not really gone hard with offers of money. Some might say that some of the insurers have offered less to date than in any other case. And yet the debtor is here today, and the mediators are here today, at this hearing, hoping yet to still get an outcome from this Chapter 11 case other than a dismissal.

The debtor's position with respect to resolution supports an outcome that is not only fair and equitable, but again, would pay an amount that substantially exceeds any other recovery to date. We get that the committee's position is that doesn't matter, but we think it does.

```
1
               There are no objections filed to the motion to
 2
     dismiss. Only the committee filed a statement supporting the
 3
     motion to dismiss but seeking a dismissal with prejudice,
 4
     arguing now, thirty months into the case, the debtor filed the
 5
     case in bad faith and has conducted itself in bad faith
 6
     throughout the Chapter 11.
 7
              We believe the committee's argument boils down to the
 8
     following. The Court should conclude bad faith on the part of
 9
     the debtor because the debtor is not offering the committee
10
     more money to settle, or perhaps also including that the
11
     insurers have not offered --
12
              MR. SCHIAVONI: Objection, Your Honor. Mediation
13
     privilege.
14
              THE COURT: Okay. Do you want to respond to that?
15
              MS. UETZ: I'm just characterizing what I think are
16
     the arguments of the committee now that --
17
              THE COURT: Well, why don't we --
18
              MS. UETZ: I can move on.
19
              THE COURT: Yeah. Why don't we not get into that,
20
     okay?
2.1
              MS. UETZ: The committee also --
22
               THE COURT:
                          If that sounds like sustained to you, Mr.
23
     Schiavoni, I think it was sustained, okay?
2.4
              MR. SCHIAVONI: Thank you, Your Honor.
25
               THE COURT:
                          You bet.
```

MS. UETZ: The committee argues bad faith because it says the debtor is not using Chapter 11 to -- and I quote -- "rightsize its operations", which means it's not closing enough churches, selling enough churches. That's what that means.

Despite the fact that we have made plain what the debtor is willing to utilize in order to fund a settlement through unrestricted assets.

And the committee now ties its bad-faith argument to its objection to one of the two liquidation analyses submitted by the debtor and says that we didn't include everything in the liquidation analysis that should have been included. We should have valued the claims under state law.

Your Honor, those are arguments about how 1129(a)(7) applies. Those don't support bad faith by the debtor. We did two liquidation analyses. Hilco and A&M are internationally recognized well-respected professionals in this field. And for that matter, so are Stout and BRG. A dispute among experts and among lawyers about how 1129(a)(7) applies is not bad faith.

Your Honor, in our filings before the Court, we believe that we have refuted every factual allegation of bad faith by the committee. The committee has also now withdrawn its baseless arguments regarding the debtor's disclosures regarding Livermore. Of course, it did that after spending two pages in its brief about Livermore, but nonetheless, a small victory; it withdrew that baseless argument. And so that can't

be the basis for a bad-faith finding.

In its most recent filing regarding the motion to dismiss, the committee wrongly characterizes the argument of the debtor. The committee says, quote, "The debtor argues that dismissal of a Chapter 11 case without prejudice is unheard of". But that's not what the debtor said. The debtor said it's virtually unheard of.

And I would submit that this is supported by the fact that the most recent filing by the committee cites to two cases, not ten, or twenty, or thirty, but two. And those two cases are very, very different than the case before this Court. Both of those cases are two-party disputes. And the facts in those cases are dramatically different, polar opposite, I would submit, of what we have here.

And so, Your Honor, today we stand ready to answer any questions that you have about the debtor's faith in this case, about the filing of the case, in the first instance, about the debtor's conduct throughout the case. In short, Your Honor, neither the debtor, the Roman Catholic Bishop of Oakland, nor any of its professionals are liars. And we have not conducted ourselves, nor has our client, throughout this case, over the course of thirty months, not less than twenty mediation sessions, three amended plans of reorganization, culminating in acceptance of a mediators' proposal by all three mediators to settle the case. We have not conducted ourselves in bad faith.

1 And I say "we" because the bad faith allegation is 2 thrown at both my client and the professionals in this case. 3 That the debtor was not able to achieve a consensual resolution 4 with this committee is not bad faith. 5 Again, Your Honor, I stand ready to answer specific 6 questions, but I don't want to repeat all of the arguments we 7 made, with the support in our briefs, regarding each of the 8 facts that the committee attacks in respect of bad faith. 9 We believe this Court should grant this motion, 10 setting November 12th as the outside date for a dismissal, 11 without prejudice, to provide all of the parties a final 12 opportunity for all parties, jurors, the committee, the 13 unsecured creditors themselves, Your Honor, to finally and 14 definitively reach a resolution in this case other than a 15 dismissal. That is what I have for you today, Your Honor. 16 THE COURT: Okay. Appreciate it. Go ahead. 17 one minute, okay? 18 Okay. Sorry. Thank you. 19 MS. UETZ: Thank you, Your Honor. 20 THE COURT: Okay. We have some other folks on the 21 If you want to make your appearances, go ahead and do screen. 22 so. 23 MR. WYATT: Good morning, Your Honor. Andrew Wyatt 24 for the Travelers insurer entities. 25 THE COURT: Okay. Good morning. I'm sorry.

1 afternoon. Excuse me. 2 MR. WYATT: Good afternoon. Yeah. Sorry. 3

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Schiavoni, do you want to go

4 ahead?

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR. SCHIAVONI: Tancred Schiavoni for the Pacific insurers. Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You're welcome. Okay.

MR. PROL: Jeff Prol, on behalf of the committee, Your Honor.

As Your Honor is aware, the debtor filed its bankruptcy case two-and-a-half years ago on May 28th, 2023. Ιt filed on the eve of a trial beginning, here in Oakland, I believe, on the first of more than 370 survivors who have filed claims against the diocese for negligent supervision of priests and other employees who raped and sodomized children thirty, forty, fifty years ago.

The clients that I represent have waited for justice for an indeterminate amount of time, and it's a travesty that we're here, that we've been unable to reach resolution. And it's in the interest of survivors, it's in the interest of the bankruptcy estate, as is required by 1112(b), that these cases proceed to resolution as promptly as possible.

We've been here for two-and-a-half years, and the debtor, now dissatisfied with having removed those cases here, by the filing of the Chapter 11 petition, has now filed a

Effects 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 33 Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-3 Filed: 11/20/25

motion to dismiss to send those cases back to state court.

The debtor seeks dismissal without prejudice, although in its pleadings it acknowledges it has no intention of ever filing again. You should take them at their word, Your Honor, and the case should be dismissed with prejudice, because we believe that the standard for dismissal has been met.

Section 349 of the Code provides for dismissal with prejudice. And courts in the Ninth Circuit look to the test set forth by the Ninth Circuit Bankruptcy Appellate Panel in In re Leavitt, I believe it is. And it's a four-prong analysis:

Number one, whether the debtor misrepresented facts in its petition or plan, unfairly manipulated the Bankruptcy Code, or otherwise filed its petition or plan in an inequitable manner.

Second, the debtor's history of filings and dismissals. Third, whether the debtor only intended to defeat state court litigation by its filing. And fourth, whether egregious badfaith behavior is present.

I know, Judge, that only the fourth element contains the word "egregious", and the use of bad faith in connection with the others is probably overly generous. I don't think this is the same bad-faith finding that you have for a bad-faith filing of actually dismissing a case.

According to In re Randall, which is another Ninth Circuit BAP case, the Court may also look at the totality of the circumstances. And included in that are other other

elements of bad faith, like the bankruptcy case was filed on the eve of a trial or litigation in another court, a plan that proposes little payment to creditors, a plan that has no hope of confirmation, or general dishonesty or misrepresentations by a debtor.

2.1

2.4

Here the debtor has only filed once, so we would submit that the second element, history of filings, is not relevant and shouldn't be considered. But the Court can and should find that the remaining three elements and the totality of the circumstances here warrant a dismissal with prejudice.

In our opening brief, we cited a number of incidents of circumstances that showed misrepresentations, unfair manipulation, or inequitable conduct, including litigation over the OPF claim, whether or not church property belonged to the estate, and the questions with regard to the Livermore property, which again got raised today.

Suffice it to say, we don't think Your Honor needs to resolve any of those disputes. Simply, we ask that Your Honor be aware of them and the amount of time and paper and transcripts that those issues have required.

But there are other indisputable facts, we believe, that completely support the relief that we're requesting. And I just want to run through those quickly.

First, as Ms. Uetz indicated, the debtor has not used this bankruptcy case to reorganize its affairs. Everything

we've done before Your Honor relates to attempting to resolve survivor claims. Even though the debtor, prior to its bankruptcy filing, acknowledged its need to restructure, the third amended disclosure statement, which is the operative disclosure statement at present, talks about the mission realignment process that the diocese went through, I believe, beginning in 2020. There a task force was appointed to talk about clustering, merging, closing churches and other properties in order to rightsize the operation of the diocese.

It's a fairly high-level discussion. And I just wanted to quote for Your Honor some of the statements that were made, and I think they've been been discussed here in open court before. Bishop Barber himself said, in a presentation to to members of the church, "As part of MAP, we're looking for ways to join forces and realign the resources of our diocese for a church of 2022 and forward, not a church of 1965".

He also said, "One of the problems is we don't have enough people attending mass in each of our churches to keep them all going".

Another quote, "I don't have enough priests to keep a priest in every parish. We don't have enough money to pay the bills in every parish. And concluding, we may have to structure down from eighty-one parishes that we have now to fifty-plus parishes, you know, fifty, fifty-four, or something like that. So we're going to have to make some pretty strong

changes in our diocese".

And as Your Honor is aware, even though we've been here for two-and-a-half years, there's not been a single motion to reject a contract, a single motion to sell a parcel of real estate. All we've talked about is survivor claims.

And that leads to point two, which is the third element of the Leavitt test, whether the debtor only intended to defeat state court litigation. And there's two principal tenets of bankruptcy that we think the debtor has violated in regard to what they're trying to do with regard to survivors. First — and I respectfully disagree with Ms. Uetz on this — it's black letter law that tort claims in bankruptcy, substantive law that governs those is the applicable state law that governs liability, burden of proof, and damages.

We've done nothing here to value the claims. The debtor has maintained, since the initial filing, right up through the last filing it filed last night, that the only relevant data point here, in valuing survivor claims, is to compare this case to cases of other dioceses filed around the country, dioceses in other jurisdictions, where different state law applies, where there's a different number of claims, different severity of claims.

We would submit to Your Honor that that comparison has little, probably more like no value in these cases. And we've said it in a prior pleading. It's like me representing the

committee in the Sears case and arguing to Your Honor that we really should get the same dividend that they got in the Lord & Taylor case.

THE COURT: Well --

2.1

MR. PROL: And you might say to me that's not a court claim, right?

THE COURT: Okay. Well, help me out then, okay? If this is a matter of perspective, and not just numbers, but perspective, where do you start the analysis and what are the critical factors, is there a bankruptcy case that's been resolved in the manner that you're suggesting this one should be, with an eye on something other than average claims as it may be negotiated, which is, I think, kind of where most of the cases have gone that I'm aware of. But if there's one that's taken the approach that you think this one should take, tell me about that.

MR. PROL: I can't tell you there are cases in the sex abuse space, Your Honor, but cases in the asbestos arena, which were what really started what was a large part of the mass tort practice back in the late '90s and 2000 --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. PROL: -- there was always an estimation of claims done. And those cases were resolved not by comparison to each other, but by settlement discussions surrounding expert valuation of claims and the value of the assets that were

```
1
     available to satisfy those claims.
 2
               THE COURT: Well, to the extent other cases have
 3
     resolved without going through that exercise, have those all
 4
     been in bad faith?
 5
              MR. PROL: Your Honor, that's not the only element.
 6
              THE COURT: No, but I just want to focus on this,
 7
     because I respect enormously the fact that you just have a
 8
     different perspective here. And it may be that it's one that
 9
     most of the cases dealing with these problems haven't taken.
10
     But what you're saying is maybe they should.
11
               So what I'm asking for in the first place is, is there
12
     somebody, is there a judge out there, and a debtor, and a
13
     committee, and a bunch of other constituents who have done what
14
     you think should be done in this case and reached a resolution?
15
     Tell me about that.
16
              MR. PROL: I cannot cite to a case --
17
              THE COURT: Okay.
18
              MR. PROL: -- in the sex abuse space where --
19
              THE COURT: Okay. Okay.
20
              MR. PROL: -- where --
2.1
              THE COURT:
                          Okay.
22
                          There have been, at confirmation trials --
              MR. PROL:
23
              THE COURT: Yeah.
2.4
              MR. PROL: -- expert testimony --
25
              THE COURT:
                           Sure. Okay.
```

```
1
              MR. PROL: -- with regard to the valuation of claims.
 2
              THE COURT: Well, I mean, a lot of that is --
 3
              MR. PROL: And --
 4
              THE COURT: Not to be funny, a lot of that is -- I
 5
     don't want to say it's a done deal, but it's in support of
 6
     something that everybody has said they can live with, right?
 7
     That's a whole different dynamic.
 8
              MR. PROL: But -- but --
 9
              THE COURT: And that's in your defense; it may be.
10
     Okay.
11
              MR. PROL: But I posit to Your Honor that --
12
              THE COURT: Yeah. Yeah.
13
              MR. PROL: -- that those settlements were reached, in
14
     part, because people had valued the claims and --
15
              THE COURT: Well, maybe. Okay. Maybe.
                                                       That's what
16
     I'm trying to figure out, okay?
17
              MR. PROL: I can't cite you to a case, but just --
18
     looking at the --
19
              THE COURT: Okay. I got you. I got you. That's a
20
     good answer. Fair enough.
                                 Okay.
2.1
              MR. PROL: But in addition to that tenet, Your Honor,
22
     and I think what's even more concerning, is the approach that
23
     the debtor has taken with regard to the availability of its
24
     assets. We've obviously had a dispute for a long time about
25
     what assets are and what assets are not available.
```

```
1
              THE COURT: Yeah.
 2
              MR. PROL: We attempted to persuade the Court and the
 3
     debtor that the better way to pursue this case, rather than a
 4
     contested plan confirmation, would be to start trying to
 5
     resolve some of those issues. And we've been down the
 6
     contested plan route instead. We did try to file some
 7
     adversary proceedings to expand the estate, but we never really
 8
     got at the issue of whether or not real estate is available.
 9
     And there is an adversary proceeding pending on restricted
10
     assets, cash restricted assets.
11
              THE COURT: Yeah. And God will love you. I mean, I
12
     know.
13
              MR. PROL: Yeah.
14
              THE COURT: I mean, I don't know what happened to
15
     that, but no, that was one that --
16
              MR. PROL: Well, that adversary proceeding, Your
17
     Honor, was stayed when the debtor came and said we'd like to
18
     take a pause on plan confirmation --
19
              THE COURT: Um-hum.
20
              MR. PROL: -- because we don't have enough funds to
21
     confirm the plan, but we'll get back to that. And so I think
22
     we all agreed --
23
              THE COURT: That hasn't --
              MR. PROL: -- we all agreed at that time that it
2.4
25
     didn't make sense --
```

```
1
              THE COURT: It hasn't happened yet. Okay.
 2
              MR. PROL: -- to spend money pursuing that --
 3
              THE COURT: Okay. I got you. I got you.
 4
              MR. PROL: -- right?
 5
              THE COURT: Well, can I remind myself of a couple of
 6
     things you're probably going to know better than me? I mean,
 7
     this is not a case where the debtor has said, well, you know,
 8
     this church is somehow not property of the estate. There are
 9
     cases where they go through that drill. I think, to some
10
     extent, San Francisco might be going through that drill.
11
              I think, if I'm remembering correctly, the committee's
12
     efforts have been to get me to look at the enterprise
13
     differently and say it's artificial not to think of all these
14
     entities as being so closely aligned that, whether you're
15
     substantively consolidating, or whatever the word you want to
16
     use, the pot should be bigger, from that perspective,
17
     externally and not internally; is that fair?
18
              MR. PROL: So just to draw a little finer distinction,
19
     Your Honor --
20
              THE COURT:
                          Yeah.
21
              MR. PROL: -- we did file a motion for standing to
22
     bring an adversary proceeding to substantively consolidate some
23
     of the related -- what we call related Catholic entities,
24
     schools, cemeteries, and the like.
25
               THE COURT:
                          Yeah.
```

1 MR. PROL: That's the subcon piece. Your Honor didn't 2 grant us standing. And that decision is up on appeal. 3 THE COURT: Okay. 4 MR. PROL: The issue with regard to the real property 5 in the church is slightly different. Here the debtor 6 acknowledged that the churches are not separately incorporated. 7 THE COURT: Yeah. Now, maybe it took longer --8 MR. PROL: And that the --9 THE COURT: -- than you would have liked to get there, 10 but --11 MR. PROL: -- assets of the church --12 THE COURT: -- yeah. 13 MR. PROL: -- were owned by the bishop but held in 14 trust for the churches. And we had some skirmishes about that. 15 And I think ultimately there was an adversary proceeding -- a 16 consent order entered acknowledging that the bishop owns the 17 churches. 18 THE COURT: Yeah. 19 MR. PROL: And the real question now is whether or not 20 the First Amendment protects those churches from the reach of 21 creditors. That, Your Honor, we also submit, is an issue that 22 the debtor is way out there on. The First Amendment doesn't 23 say -- the establishment clause doesn't say that a religious 24 organization has the right to practice its religion in that 25 particular building over there. Under --

1 THE COURT: Okay. Then --2 MR. PROL: Under state law in California --3 Okay. Then --THE COURT: 4 MR. PROL: Under state law in California, real estate 5 and other assets owned by nonprofits and religious 6 organizations are subject to attachment. 7 THE COURT: Well, then can I ask you the following 8 question? Let's say I agree with you -- and I probably do --9 that at some point a religious entity says, well, I have all 10 these rights as a religious entity. At some point the response 11 is, well, there's no Constitutional right to a discharge or to 12 be in a bankruptcy, so maybe you're just not a good Chapter 11 13 debtor, to which the response should be, okay, dismiss the 14 case. 15 MR. PROL: All right. 16 THE COURT: But why would that be bad faith? 17 would that cause me to bar them from further filing? 18 MR. PROL: What's bad faith, Your Honor, is if 19 they're -- because the businesses they're taking, they're not 20 entitled to discharge, we've wasted two-and-a-half years, 21 millions and millions and millions of dollars. Our clients 22 have been delayed from pursuing their rights in a case where 23 they never had a chance to get a discharge. And if they're 24 going to go back to state court, if they're not going to

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-3 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 44

resolve the case here and now, we're here.

25

1 THE COURT: But do I have to -- okay. Let me agree 2 with you, okay? Let's say I agree with that ultimate point. I 3 haven't done it yet. I mean, do I have to resolve that issue 4 to be able to say it was bad faith? 5 MR. PROL: Resolve? 6 THE COURT: The issue of whether they never should 7 have raised the issue of First Amendment, or RFRA, or whatever 8 it was. 9 MR. PROL: Well, they're in a position to have that 10 resolved here and now, if they so decide. But if they decide 11 they don't want to have it resolved --12 THE COURT: That's bad faith? 13 MR. PROL: -- and they want to go back to state court, 14 okay, the key here is, right, the survivors shouldn't be put in 15 a position where we can get ping-ponged back and forth between 16 this Court and the state court. We've been here two-and-a-half 17 years. 18 THE COURT: Okay. 19 MR. PROL: They haven't been able to get a plan 20 confirmed, whether it's because we have objected, or because --2.1 THE COURT: Yeah. 22 MR. PROL: Whatever the reasons are, they haven't been 23 able to get a plan confirmed. 2.4 THE COURT: Okay. 25 If they consensually dismiss their case and

```
1
     go back to state court, what prevents them from litigating in
 2
     state court the next time the first trial comes up, they can
 3
     refile again. Or maybe they take their chances and they allow
 4
     several cases to get tried.
 5
              THE COURT: Okay.
 6
              MR. PROL: And all of a sudden, we don't like what's
 7
     going on here.
 8
              THE COURT: Okay. Okay.
 9
              MR. PROL: Well, let's go back across the street.
10
              THE COURT: All right. But let me just say I'm kind
11
     of playing a hypothetical game with you here, but I -- these
12
     are not rulings that I was going to determine, if the First
13
     Amendment does or -- it's just the argument would be you can
14
     have all the First Amendment rights you want; it doesn't
15
     necessarily make you a good Chapter 11 debtor. And I haven't
16
     decided that, but I hear it. Okay? I got it.
17
              MR. PROL: I agree with that. Your Honor --
18
              THE COURT: I got it.
19
              MR. PROL: Your Honor has said that. Your Honor
20
     said that --
2.1
              THE COURT: Well, but I haven't --
22
              MR. PROL: -- a year-and-a-half ago.
23
              THE COURT: I --
24
              MR. PROL: And if they weren't a good Chapter 11
25
     debtor, and they weren't going to --
```

1 THE COURT: Okay.

MR. PROL: -- they weren't going to pursue a course that was going to get them there, having pursued it, we submit, warrants a bad-faith finding sufficient to dismiss --

THE COURT: I hear you. Okay.

MR. PROL: -- with prejudice.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. PROL: So third, Your Honor, we would also submit that the filing of prosecution of confirmation of a patently unconfirmable plan also constitutes bad faith. And we cited a case that supports that proposition. And in this case, again, almost a year has gone by since the mediators declared a pause in the mediation.

There were two paths that this case could have gone down. We urged a path that would help reconcile what is and is not property of the estate. The debtors determined that they were going to file a plan of reorganization and they were going to try to confirm it over our objection.

We begged, literally begged, not to go down that path. And we warned that it was going to be an expensive path and it was going to be a time-consuming path. And if you go back and look at the transcripts, Your Honor, Mr. Weisenberg stood here and said we could potentially be a year down the road, have spent tons of money, and accomplished absolutely nothing. But the debtor went ahead. In fact, the debtor went so far as to

criticize the committee's efforts as trying to commandeer the case. And I forget the language they used, but they were not --

THE COURT: I remember commandeer.

MR. PROL: They were not very complimentary.

THE COURT: Um-hum.

MR. PROL: And even when the result that we predicted, overwhelming rejection by the survivors, was the result of the vote, debtor's counsel stood here at the podium, gleefully telling Your Honor that they had accomplished exactly what they needed to do. They had an impaired consenting class and they were going to cram the plan down.

We again told them it was a horrible idea, that it was going to take many, many months and a lot of money to go through the plan discovery process, and to go to trial, and that the likelihood of being able to confirm a plan, cram a plan down over survivors, was next to nothing. But they persisted and they pursued.

And then in August of this year, we stood here, Your Honor, to hear the debtor say, we're insolvent, we're out of money, we can't afford to do this, we want you to adjourn confirmation, schedule a status conference in November, and we'll come back to Your Honor and tell you what we want to do. And in the meantime, we need to sell some real estate to raise money in order to fund this case.

They retained a real estate broker, promised us that they would keep us abreast of what properties were listed and what the market was like, and we would be seeing motions to sell real estate in order to fund the case. Well, surprise, Your Honor, no such motion has ever been filed, nor have we received any information, nor have we been able to glean, from the public records, that a single parcel of real estate has been listed since August.

2.4

And now they've toggled from the idea of trying to confirm that plan to dismissal. And now we hear today that they're toggling again to give us a little more time. You know, we can raise the money to confirm a plan if something else happens. We submit to Your Honor that the back and forth, and the toggling, and the delay is bad faith that warrants a dismissal with prejudice.

Finally, Your Honor, We believe that the debtor's conduct at mediation, and the repeated violations of mediation privilege, also constitutes bad faith. Reading their pleadings, even if you only read the pleadings here, on this particular motion, the way they castigate survivors, those that they failed to protect as children, they ascribe bad motives, impure motives to committee counsel, state court counsel, all in an effort to gain advantage.

The discussion that we had earlier today of the statement that they filed, the disclosure of the fact that

there is a mediators' proposal is, in of itself, a violation of the mediation privilege.

2.4

And the most egregious example of that, Your Honor, you'll recall, when we were last before Your Honor, the debtor had requested an emergency hearing for Your Honor to authorize dissemination of the committee's September 9 proposal, a proposal that Your Honor shouldn't have even known. The fact that that existed is a violation of the mediation privilege. But they filed an emergency application to ask Your Honor to allow them to disclose that offer to Chubb, Mr. Schiavoni's client.

And Your Honor held a hearing. The debtor was represented by Mr. Lee. And after a fair amount of discussion, Your Honor basically ruled that that was a mediation matter, we should take it up with the mediators. And we, in fact, had a mediation session; I believe it was the very next day.

THE COURT: Yeah, it should have been.

MR. PROL: Okay? Well, Your Honor, I hate to report to you, but Mr. Lee left the courtroom and promptly emailed the committee's offer to Mr. Schiavoni. No opportunity to discuss it in front of the mediator. And in fact, he had the gall to not even copy us on it, and we didn't know about it until after we got to mediation the following day.

I submit, Your Honor, again, that these breaches of mediation privilege are not benign, okay? They are designed to

put the committee in a compromised position with regard to mediation. Every time they breach the privilege it makes it more difficult for us, not only to deal with them, but to deal with the insurance carriers, and even to deal with the mediators.

It's not fair. And that, Your Honor, in and of itself, the fact that we've been in mediation, twenty, twenty-five sessions, whatever it is, and we cannot effectively mediate, because we have to be concerned about what we say, and when we say it, because it's not confidential. That, Your Honor, in and of itself, is bad faith and warrants the dismissal of this case with prejudice.

I reiterate again, with regard to timing, Your

Honor -- I know you wanted to hear this today -- we would ask

that Your Honor either deny the motion, at this point, or defer

ruling until after the November 12th status conference.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. UETZ: Thank you, Your Honor. I'll make a few points. Going in reverse, following the hearing that Mr. Prol referred to, the debtor did send to Mr. Schiavoni the settlement proposal with the support of the mediator. And Your Honor should note that none of the mediators who are appearing at these hearings — they've been at the status conferences; they're here today. I might have just lost an important one because I don't see him on the screen anymore. But they have

```
1
     not supported the committee's charges that we have violated the
 2
     mediation privilege. If we had, I would think the mediators --
 3
              MR. PROL: Again, I object to --
 4
              MS. UETZ: Excuse me?
 5
              MR. PROL: -- violation of mediation privilege.
 6
              MS. UETZ: They haven't come to this Court and
 7
     supported --
 8
              THE COURT: Well --
 9
              MS. UETZ: -- the committee's charges that we have
10
     violated the mediation privilege.
11
              THE COURT: I don't know that they would. Let's move
12
     on to another point, okay?
13
              MS. UETZ: Okay.
14
              THE COURT: Thank you.
15
              MS. UETZ: Your Honor, I haven't done anything
16
     gleefully in this case since the day I filed it. Not one
17
     thing. The substantive consolidation adversary proceeding was
18
     not dismissed on standing grounds; it was dismissed on the
19
     merits. That's a point of clarification for Your Honor.
20
              The 1129 --
2.1
              THE COURT: Was that the, sort of, fraudulent transfer
22
     claim, or was it something --
23
              MS. UETZ: That was the subcon adversary proceeding
24
     through which the committee sought to bring in the assets of
25
     the nondebtor Catholic entities.
```

```
1
              THE COURT:
                          Yeah.
 2
              MS. UETZ: And if I heard Mr. Prol right, I thought he
 3
     said it was --
 4
              THE COURT: He may talking --
 5
              MS. UETZ: -- on standing.
 6
              THE COURT: He may be talking about something else.
 7
     But that's okay. You can --
 8
              MS. UETZ: Okay.
 9
              THE COURT: You can make your point. He may be
10
     talking about something else.
11
              MS. UETZ: Okav.
12
              MR. PROL: If I said that, I misspoke. The subcon
13
     adversary --
14
              THE COURT: You meant something else, right?
15
              MR. PROL: -- was dismissed.
16
              THE COURT: I remember it. I remember it. Thank you.
17
              MS. UETZ: That's fair.
18
              THE COURT: Okay. Good correction.
                                                   Thank you.
19
              MS. UETZ: As to 1129(a)(7), the best interest of
20
     creditors test, Your Honor, we've done two liquidation
21
     analyses. You might recall, we called them 1.0 and 2.0. And
22
     that test, what creditors -- the creditors would get more than
23
     they would in a Chapter 7 liquidation, not that they get X
24
     percent of what they would get in state court.
25
              And Your Honor has said, more than once, and I almost
```

```
1
     don't -- I've got it almost committed to memory -- you can have
 2
     all those First Amendment rights; you might just not be a good
 3
     candidate for a Chapter 11 discharge.
 4
              THE COURT: And I mean, look, I haven't decided that.
 5
     I've made the comment.
 6
              MS. UETZ: I heard you loud and clear.
 7
              THE COURT: That's how one would argue it either way.
 8
              MS. UETZ: Understood, Your Honor.
 9
              THE COURT: Yeah.
10
              MS. UETZ: And that's why we have two analyses. And
11
     the second analysis stands on its own and does not evidence bad
12
     faith by the debtor.
13
              THE COURT: I mean, I think I recall a dialogue with
14
     Mr. Lee where I said, well, couldn't you do a second one? And
15
     he said, I suppose I could.
16
              MS. UETZ: We did.
17
              THE COURT: And we did, right?
18
              MS. UETZ: We did.
19
              THE COURT: Okay.
20
              MS. UETZ: By one of the most renowned restructuring
21
     experts in the world.
22
              THE COURT: Yeah.
23
              MS. UETZ: We did. Just a couple more points, Your
24
             The churches in this case, in the Diocese of Oakland,
     Honor.
25
     are in the plan. So if there's any question about that, they
```

were and are in the plan.

2.1

And I want to make one point. Much has been said about our intent and our bad faith with respect to rightsizing and MAP, the mission alignment process. Your Honor, in its plan, the debtor had made clear its plan to utilize at least the following assets to pay unsecured creditors, and this was described in the disclosure statement as to which the committee withdrew its objection.

All twelve vacant real estate parcels titled in the name of the debtor, which are not part of a larger parcel containing a church or ministry-related building. Vacant portions of eighteen real estate parcels titled in the name of the debtor, which the debtor determined could be liquidated while allowing the debtor to continue its mission even though they are part of a larger church site. Twelve real property locations where churches operate. I'm going to say that one more time. Twelve churches that operate would be utilized to pay creditors, seven residential homes that are used in the debtor's ministry, and if necessary, other real estate currently being used in support of the debtor's ministry.

So the charge, Your Honor, that the debtor has not done anything, throughout the course of these thirty months, to restructure its operations is just not true. I think Your Honor touched on it in one of your earlier questions.

We obviously have different perspectives from the

committee. We have disagreements about the application of 1129(a)(7). We have disagreements that have permeated this case, including about the plan of reorganization that we filed, that we tried to cram down, that the Bankruptcy Code provides the debtor the opportunity to do.

2.4

We understand that there are those disagreements, but those fundamental disagreements do not mean that the Roman Catholic Bishop of Oakland has conducted itself in bad faith, nor does it mean that its professionals have conducted themselves in bad faith throughout this case.

And Your Honor, I will rest with that. We request that the Court grant the motion, including a finding that there is no bad faith by the debtor, and set November 12th as the date for dismissal with a conference to the Court on that date.

THE COURT: Okay. Is there anybody else -- I realize nobody else has filed any pleadings here, but -- and I don't know if the mediators have anything to offer. They may not. They may feel that it's better for them to say as little as possible at this point. But I will allow either the mediators or other parties to throw an idea in here if they would like to do so.

MS. UETZ: Your Honor, if I may, I see, at least on my screen, that --

THE COURT: Mr. Gallagher.

MS. UETZ: -- Mr. Gallagher, who I understand is

```
1
     double tasking today in mediation.
 2
              THE COURT: Yeah.
 3
              MS. UETZ: I don't think I'm breaching the mediation
 4
     privilege to say that my understanding is he wants to address
 5
     the Court.
 6
              THE COURT: Okay.
 7
              MS. UETZ: I'm going to try to reach him.
 8
              THE COURT: And it would certainly -- it would not be
 9
     on, well, here's the ask and get. It might be on something
10
     relevant to between now and November 12th that is just
11
     logistical and nothing else.
12
              MS. UETZ: I just want to report that.
13
              THE COURT: I appreciate it.
14
              MS. UETZ: And with that, I will stand.
15
              THE COURT: All right. I see, well, Mr. Schiavoni's
16
     got his hand up already, so he gets to go first.
17
              MR. SCHIAVONI: Thank you, Your Honor. Tancred
18
     Schiavoni for the Pacific insurers.
19
              I wanted to be heard just on one issue that I think
20
     might, in a sense, interface with me. We did, my client and
21
     O'Melveny, work very hard with the diocese professionals to try
22
     to reach consensus on terms that were incorporated in the plan.
23
     That involved a lot of compromises. It involved a significant
24
     amount of our time. I brought up some bankruptcy lawyers from
25
     Los Angeles to help on this.
```

We looked for creative solutions. And that effort by my client was in utmost good faith. And I feel that the bishop's professionals, with respect to working on how to deal with the contracts, in incorporating the new plan, were in good faith.

2.4

And I just want to thank the Bishop and Ms. Uetz with respect to that aspect of the effort. We have disagreements on other issues, but we're grateful for them having worked with us on that.

We think, Your Honor, that that effort was informed by an overarching view of really what this project is about. The statutory scheme for charitable bankruptcies, I've said before, it's fundamentally not that complicated. Congress contemplated, as part of the scheme, the contribution of the unrestricted assets of the charity, that the charity would then be able to otherwise continue its mission, and that other aspects of the Code contemplate that the contracts would pass through as they're written. They wouldn't be rewritten or they wouldn't be the rights prejudiced in that regard.

That was what informed our effort with the diocese. And that is -- I think it would -- to the extent there's any suggestion that we acted in bad faith, like, I would just reject that. I think a lot of effort went into that.

I don't think, Your Honor, that the Code or Congress contemplated that a committee could exercise a veto and, in

that way, override the statutory scheme. And it's notable here that the committee did not come forward, or propose, or ask for permission to file an alternative plan. And I think the reason for that is very straightforward. If they had proposed an alternative plan that set out what they have described in open court they want to achieve, it would include them seeking unrestricted assets, and it would seek them significantly modifying or impairing the contracts.

They can, if permitted by a court, I suppose, exercise a veto, and using the threat of that veto and the threat of very high monthly expenditures, as a weapon, almost, they can try to extract something that the Code itself doesn't contemplate. They can, in effect, sort of, extort that outcome.

They can look at a debtor and say, sell sixty percent of all your operating parishes, sell more, shut down a significant amount of the church, modify your contracts, create a bad-faith claim that doesn't otherwise exist.

I'm not in any way discussing what's happened in the mediation. But the plan that we worked on was one that the aspects that we participated in were in good faith. They were consistent with the statutory scheme of the Code. To the extent a committee or a small group of out-of-state plaintiffs are seeking an alternative outcome, that's not — no one can fault a debtor or its insurers for acting in other than good

faith in response to that.

2.1

2.4

I do think this is exactly why Congress has a cramdown provision, because if any one constituency has a veto over an outcome of a plan, and that veto is being exercised to achieve a result inconsistent with the Code, that's the unique and unusual situation where cramdown is appropriate.

So Your Honor, we went forward, I believe, on those issues, in good faith. And Your Honor, this plays itself out over a bigger field. There's three or four different firms representing these committees. I'm a huge fan of Mr. Prol. I've said many times I'd like to have him as a neighbor. But the bottom line is Lowenstein has never confirmed a plan. Five years out, six years out, Camden's not confirmed, after two findings of bad faith in the plan. And Friars is nowhere.

Your Honor, there's a fundamental problem here, but I don't think it is one that merits a bad-faith finding with respect to the aspect of the plan that we worked on with this debtor. Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. I appreciate it.

Anybody else want to be heard?

MR. PROL: Your Honor, could we just have clarification as to what document Ms. Uetz was reading from when she was talking about the assets that were being contributed to the plan?

THE COURT: That was the disclosure statement or

1 something else? You were talking about various assets being 2 offered. MS. UETZ: The disclosure statement. 3 4 THE COURT: Okay. 5 MR. PROL: Thank you, Your Honor. 6 THE COURT: Okay. Yeah. Um-hum. 7 MS. TURNER: Good afternoon, Your Honor. 8 THE COURT: Good afternoon. 9 MS. TURNER: Todd Jacobs for Westport. I want to make 10 this real brief and stay in my lane here. 11 THE COURT: Okav. 12 MS. TURNER: And I see Mr. Gallagher is on, and Judge 13 Newsome is on. And we, for Westport, very much respect the 14 mediation privilege. We're not going to talk about what 15 happened during the mediation. There were some statements made 16 here today about what the insurers, sort of, generically have 17 done. 18 THE COURT: Um-hum. 19 MS. TURNER: I'm not going to get into that. I don't 20 represent the insurers generically. I represent Westport. 2.1 know what we did in mediation. I know Judge Newsome knows what 22 we did in the mediation. I know Mr. Gallagher knows what we 23 did in mediation. And it's confidential. And any suggestion 24 that Westport has done anything other than try to get a

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-3 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 61

consensual resolution of this case is just simply untrue.

25

```
1
     that's all I'd like to say.
 2
              I don't know if Mr. Gallagher or Judge Newsome want to
 3
     say anything, but --
 4
              THE COURT: I don't want to --
 5
              MS. TURNER: -- I didn't want to let that hang.
 6
              THE COURT: I appreciate it. I don't want to urge
 7
     them to. I want to give them the opportunity if they think
 8
     there's something that will be helpful.
 9
              MR. WYATT: Your Honor, this is Andrew Wyatt for
10
     Travelers.
11
              I'll just join Westport's position. And it's the same
12
     thing, that Travelers takes issue with some of the comments
13
     that the debtor made in the arguments regarding the insurers'
14
     participation and good-faith participation throughout this
15
     entire process.
16
              THE COURT: Okay. Fine.
17
              All right. If anybody else wants to be heard, now's
18
     the time. Otherwise, I'm going to take a quick break and --
19
              MR. PROL: Your Honor, could I be heard briefly in
20
     response to Ms. Uetz and Mr. Schiavoni?
2.1
              THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Uetz, okay with you?
22
              MS. UETZ: Yeah. Can I just say one thing? Because I
23
     think something I said -- I didn't mean to say what everybody
2.4
     thinks I said.
25
              THE COURT:
                          Okay. Yeah.
```

```
1
              MS. UETZ: I didn't mean to suggest that the insurers
 2
     participated in mediation in anything other than good faith.
 3
              THE COURT: Okay.
 4
              MS. UETZ: And I want to make that clear.
 5
              THE COURT: All right.
 6
              MR. SONTCHI: Your Honor, this is Chris Sontchi.
                                                                Can
 7
     you hear me?
 8
              THE COURT: Yeah. I can't see you, but I can hear
 9
     you.
10
              MR. SONTCHI: Yes. I'm sorry. I'm in a car, so I'm
11
     not going to put you on video.
12
              THE COURT: Okay.
13
              MR. SONTCHI: Your Honor, just thank you for hearing
14
     me very briefly. I just want to correct -- well, not correct,
15
     clarify something. There are no ongoing mediation efforts --
16
              THE COURT: That's -- that's --
17
              MR. SONTCHI: -- between the committee and the debtor.
18
     I just want to say that.
19
              THE COURT: Okay.
20
              MR. SONTCHI: And I don't anticipate any before the
21
     end of November. That's all I'm going to say, sir.
22
              THE COURT:
                          That's something I was curious about.
23
     Thank you for confirming that. I appreciate it.
2.4
              MR. SONTCHI: You're welcome. Thank you, Your Honor.
25
              THE COURT: Okay. All right. Mr. Gallagher has his
```

```
1
     hand up. I want to get through the nondebtor noncommittee,
 2
     folks, okay, and then hear from Mr. Prol for sure.
 3
              Okay. Mr. Gallagher?
              MR. SCHIAVONI: Yes. I think the additional time to
 4
 5
     the 12th would help, notwithstanding what Judge Sontchi said.
 6
     I understand that those discussions may come to an end, but
 7
     there are other mediation discussions that are taking place.
 8
              THE COURT: All right. Okay. I don't see any other
 9
     hands raised on the Zoom gallery.
10
              So Mr. Prol, come on up and make your one or two
11
     points.
12
              MR. PROL: Again, Jeff Prol, on behalf of the
13
     committee. I, again, thank Mr. Schiavoni for his nice
14
     compliments. I will certainly --
15
              THE COURT: But you'd rather not live next door to
16
     him.
17
              MR. PROL: I will certainly send him the recent
18
     listings of houses in my neighborhood and build a large fence.
19
              THE COURT: Okay. Get him into your country club
20
     too, if you can, okay?
2.1
              MR. PROL: Anyway, several things I do need to correct
22
     with regard to Mr. Schiavoni. He said Loewenstein has never
23
     confirmed a plan. The plan in Camden has been confirmed.
                                                                 Ιt
24
     is presently on appeal before the Third Circuit Court of
25
     Appeals. In that case, we've settled with two insurance
```

1 | carriers, and we're presently at mediation with two others.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. PROL: That case is making progress, slow, but it is making progress.

Secondly, Your Honor just needs to understand the context of his comments. His client is one of the primary beneficiaries of the ping pong that I expressed concern about. Chubb, his client, has provided primary coverage, and they have a duty to defend. If cases go forward in the tort system, they're going to start paying, day one, for defense.

I would also note, and we haven't alleged bad faith on behalf of the carriers, that's not part of the standard here.

But they did negotiate what I would characterize as the most favorable assignment that we've ever seen in a diocese bankruptcy-related case. Our objections to that were laid out in multiple pleadings, in connection with the disclosure statement hearings, and I won't go into that further.

Mr. Schiavoni's concern about the committee having a veto, the committee doesn't have a veto here. The debtor has the right to try to cram a plan down. And they did. And they realized that, under these facts, in this case, these circumstances, that they can't do it with this plan.

With regard to Ms. Uetz's comments, I thought I heard her say that our settlement proposal was transmitted to Chubb with the support of a mediator. I didn't hear her say which

mediator that was. But I would just say we did not have any opportunity to discuss that with a mediator. They did it unilaterally as far as we're concerned.

THE COURT: Got it.

MR. PROL: With regard to the recitation of assets that Ms. Uetz indicated have been committed to the plan, I would just recommend to Your Honor's reading exactly what the disclosure statement says, because they have not committed to sell — as I think she implied — those assets.

Reading from the disclosure statement -- and this is page 3 of the executive summary, "The reorganized debtor will either utilize as collateral for the cemetery loan" -- defined as RCC -- "collateral for the RCC loan will make to the debtor in support of the plan, or liquidate all twelve real estate parcels titled in the name of the debtor". They're not committing to liquidate it. They may use it as collateral for an affiliated party loan.

THE COURT: Yeah, the word she used was "use". But so I mean, you're saying the right thing; it's use.

MR. PROL: But there's a key distinction there, okay? It's one thing to be able to borrow money from an affiliated entity, which they historically have borrowed on an unsecured basis. Now all of a sudden they need to give collateral, and they're claiming credit for using real estate by giving it as collateral to an affiliated entity. It's a whole different

```
1
     kettle of fish to commit it to the reorganization by agreeing
 2
     to monetize it, sell it, in order to raise proceeds. And I
 3
     would just recommend to Your Honor's reading that --
 4
              THE COURT: Appreciate it.
 5
              MR. PROL: -- that most of the real estate that
 6
     they've committed to the reorganization, they hedge a bit, and
 7
     they say it's either going to be sold or utilized as
 8
     collateral. And so --
 9
              THE COURT: Okay.
10
              MR. PROL: So it's not clear exactly how much of that
11
     is actually going to be sold.
12
              THE COURT: Okay. I appreciate it. Anything else
13
     before we take a quick break?
14
              All right. I want to break for maybe ten, fifteen
15
     minutes, okay? So I'll have Mr. Singh communicate to you when
16
     I'm ready to come back. Thank you.
17
              MS. UETZ: Thank you.
18
19
          (Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.)
20
2.1
              THE COURT: I've put some thoughts together. Please
22
     be seated. Sorry.
23
              So unless you guys have agreed on everything in the
24
     scant few moments I was gone, I will give you some thoughts and
25
     rulings. So no other updates, right?
```

1 MS. UETZ: Correct.

2.4

THE COURT: Okay. Well, we have a motion to dismiss that is, in its simplest form, not opposed by anybody. And it's supported by the committee with the condition that I'm going to address now.

There was a reference, in Mr. Prol's presentation, about the interests of creditors. And the way that plays out, typically, I think, best interests of creditors, it becomes a debate, in many cases, as to whether conversion or dismissal is the better outcome.

I think this case naturally gravitates away from conversion. I think that there's authority, which there may be some basis to contest, or say that it isn't quite as meaningful as it might be otherwise. But I don't think conversion is an option here, and I don't think there's any scenario in which the creditors would be better off were that to happen. So I don't think there's much doubt but that it's either dismissal or not dismissal.

So I'm going to dismiss the case. And we'll talk about -- there were two conditions that were suggested, one by the committee, one by the debtor. Dealing first with the committee's -- you know what? I just realized I had a whole bunch of notes that I left in the other room.

Can you guys bear with me for two minutes? I have to go get my --

MS. UETZ: We noticed you walked out empty-handed. 2 THE COURT: Yeah, and I walked out that way, not 3 empty-handed. I apologize. Can you give me a minute? 4 MR. PROL: No problem, Your Honor. 5 THE COURT: All right. Thank you. I hope it'll be 6 worth it. 7 (Pause.) 8 THE COURT: Thank you. I do think that -- sorry. 9 Sorry. Have a seat. 10 I do think that, in thinking my way through the 11 question of whether I should dismiss the case either with 12 prejudice or with a bar, I'll make the following, kind of, 13 opening comments, that the debtor has -- I mean, they obviously 14 can't pledge never to refile, because five years from now 15 things might be different, and who knows, right, theoretically. 16 But it's certainly been the debtor's -- the spirit of their 17 pleading has been we would not go through this exercise and go 18 back to state court and basically come back here. That would 19 be pointless. I think that's probably true. Absent much 20 longer time having passed and very different circumstances 21 being present, I think that's true. 22 So I don't want to say this is moot, because I think 23 it matters a lot to the constituencies whether I put a bar or a 24 prejudiced bad-faith filing on this. And let me say that I am 25 going to rule fairly definitively, but in doing so, I want to

1

Efferet 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 69 Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-3 Filed: 11/20/25

remark, as I always do, the respect I have for the positions that people take in this case and how thoroughly I know they feel the integrity of their positions and their responsibility to this system. So I want everyone to know that I always assume that of you. And I think everybody has lived up to that expectation in connection with this matter. So my compliments as always.

I think there's two or three levels to look at this. The first one is the basic Leavitt factors which are the Ninth Circuit's factors. And the case has been cited all over the place; I'm not going to give you citations here. But everybody has cited it as a four-part test in the Ninth Circuit for determining whether a case is filed in bad faith. And I think, were I to find that, I think I would be certainly able to bar the debtor. With prejudice is a different story, but I think that I would have to find it's filed in bad faith to get anywhere near a with-prejudice ruling.

So the four factors Mr. Prol articulated, and I'm going to come back to those in a second. There's a couple of other layers here, I think. One is — and I tried to get at this a little bit with Mr. Prol, and he didn't have a ready answer right there, right at the lectern. But a lot of what's being argued about here is argued about with people taking positions that they deeply believe about what Chapter 11 allows different debtors, and this kind of debtor, which is a very

different kind of debtor, to do.

And I will comment only -- and I'll come back to this at greater length -- that I'm aware, generally, that many if not all of these issues come up, and they come up kind of inevitably in church cases. And they either get resolved, and you have a settlement, or they don't.

But the kinds of issues that people are arguing about here are kind of built into the fabric and the tension between all the things we get to do in Chapter 11 and the particular restrictions or characteristics that come up when we have a charitable and indeed a church debtor. So thinking through what that means, I think, dictates an answer to me too.

And lastly, there's an element here of, if the case does not resolve consensually, people have not agreed, they may get to that disagreement for a bunch of reasons. And some of those reasons may include the fact that certain folks haven't behaved as they should have, whether they've misrepresented something on the schedules or they've behaved badly in the mediation, or whatever.

It seems to me it's very, very difficult for me to get a bottom line on that. The committee believes the debtor is guilty of some infractions. The debtor probably believes, though that hasn't been the focus, that the committee has been behaving badly in some ways. Those are folks to whom they account to me in different ways. But they don't account to me

about things they've done in the mediation, and nor should they, and they're not going to, and I'm not going to get into that. Nor am I going to quiz the mediators about who's been naughty and nice.

2.4

And I will remark, as well, that there are people who are very integral to this process over whom I have absolutely no control whatsoever. And in the hypothetical world in which the folks who represent the people who are deeply involved in this process on the committee maybe should have done something different, I don't know if they should or shouldn't. I have no control over that.

So it's very hard for me, for example, to figure out if there's an ultimate question of why hasn't this worked. If that's the ultimate question here, and it hasn't worked because somebody has acted in bad faith, that's just way too dynamic a question for me to resolve, it seems to me, on what I have in front of me or what I could have in front of me, because there's an awful lot I could never have in front of me.

Same thing with the insurers. I mean, maybe they behaved splendidly; maybe they haven't. I'm never going to know that. And I really cannot call them to account the same way I could, theoretically, a debtor, or I could, theoretically, a committee.

So for all those reasons, I'm finding it hard to line this situation up with a bad-faith finding. Let me begin at

the beginning. With respect to Leavitt, if the first factor is misrepresentations, okay, there was some disagreement about an OPF claim. There was some back-and-forth about that. It was a little bit perhaps opaque and shouldn't have been.

And there were different characterizations. The debtor settled on one. I don't think there's any doubt about what that resolution is. I don't think that resolution particularly had any long-term deleterious effect on the reorganization process one way or the other.

And I will say that, when I'm looking at the Leavitt factors, what I think I'm looking at is behavior by the debtor or a purpose that is either totally inconsistent with the requirements and the ethics and the purpose of a bankruptcy case, or otherwise calls into question the integrity of the bankruptcy system. So I think it's a pretty high bar.

I agree it's totality of the circumstances, but the kinds of factors that I think I have here are not approaching the level of severity that I think might support a finding of either a dismissal with prejudice or a bar.

The first representation was the OPF claim. Okay. that was resolved. Second was the church property rights as to the estate. I think there was some -- again, there was some language back and forth that needed to be clarified. It got clarified. I don't think anything in that process has upended the reorganization process or prejudiced anybody in a way that

made a resolution here more difficult in any material way.

The Livermore property status, I think the debtor has -- obviously, there's been disagreements about that. The debtor believes that's been put to rest in terms of the committee, arguably, not being as straight about how that was resolved as they might have been.

I don't think -- nothing that I'm hearing, in the various alleged misrepresentations, comes close, in my mind, to satisfying what the requirements under Leavitt should be for the kind of misrepresentation or other bad conduct that is so -- I mean, I know the word "egregious" isn't used, but I think what I have to read into that is, is this really frustrating the purposes of a bankruptcy? And it just isn't, in my view.

The second factor, I think everybody agreed, is not terribly relevant because there's been only one filing so far.

The next factor is whether -- I guess it's sort of articulatable in two ways, whether the sole purpose or the principal purpose of the filing was to frustrate state law claim collection/enforcement/pursuit and whether one is using the bankruptcy Chapter 11 truly to reorganize.

I would comment, on the first matter, if filing a bankruptcy case in this context, in this mass tort context, and taking that litigation process that's been in state court and importing it here, for whatever good that can do, understanding

in no case does that allow this judge to decide those claims because I don't have that power.

If that, by itself, were going to tip a Leavitt factor, there'd be an awful lot of explaining to be done in the diocese cases around the country, because that's exactly what happens. The point is that we will disrupt the state court process, we will do it, hopefully, with the expectation that, in a bankruptcy, we can centralize the disposition of assets, we can resolve questions about the assets that are going to be available, and that may be a more favorable outcome in this circumstance, and we're able to get to those answers in this Court in a way you just can't do it in any kind of MDL or other state court process.

I think it's also true that, even though I don't particularly adjudicate those claims, and I never will, I can preside over a process where the parties can decide. And when they decide they don't want to, they can take steps to frustrate the process as one might argue happened here; I'm not making a decision about that. But the parties can decide to get into various vehicles for trying to come to an overall resolution of those claims.

It is a different process. It's not trying the claims one by one, but it is something that is consistent, I think, with the bankruptcy ethic of we figure out, in a general sense, what the claims are, we put them through the plan confirmation

process, and we end up with something that's consensual or is good enough, under 1129, that it satisfies due process rights and property rights. So I don't think that taking that process from the state court to here, by itself, really is probative one way or the other.

I'll say one other thing about the reorganization process. I don't mean to elevate the debtor's concerns here. Let's face it; it is true, and the committee, I think, begins from the premise that the primary purpose of these cases is to try to come to an appropriate, just, fair, and equitable resolution of these horrible claims that are the result of horrific conduct and people who are truly scarred physically. And as you know, I sat through, as we all did, hours of the statements, and I'm glad I did, because the harm to folks who have had these experiences is lifelong. The main point of these cases is to reach some resolution of that.

But the resolution has two pieces. One piece is that the victims hopefully get something that recompenses them fairly, and they get to get on with their lives. And that's the single most important piece.

Another piece that's important, maybe not equally important, is that an institution that prides itself on providing spiritual guidance, and spiritual sustenance, and meaningful communication, and facilitating people's relationship with their deity, can turn a page. And that is

not a small thing.

And getting to a resolution in bankruptcy, which you can, in most cases, do more quickly and more comprehensively than you can in state court, one decision after another, there is a benefit to that. If you want to call that a reorganization, you can. But it is a way for the church to account, not only to the people who it harmed, but to the people who come and sit in the pew every week. That is not a small thing. There is a reorganization purpose and function for the benefit of the church here.

I would note as well, and I'm not trying to be arch here, part of the reorganization process, while part of the plan process, involved the committee, entirely appropriately, making a bunch of suggestions to the debtor about reforms in its practices and its procedures, all of which I hope the debtor said, tell us, we'll do it.

There is a reorganization element to that, and it's a big one. It's horribly important that the debtor hear from the committee what has gone wrong and what can be done better. And if the church is hearing that, they should. And there is a reorganization prerogative to that.

So on the third factor I'm convinced that there is an awful lot of good that can be done here that begins with, let's please pay these poor people who've had these horrific experiences, but doesn't end there. That does encompass an

awful lot, many functions, that are horribly important to the church and horribly important to the idea that debtors come here in distress and want to leave here with a fresh start. So I think, on the third factor, I would argue -- I would conclude that the Leavitt factor was not satisfied.

And the fourth factor of basic egregious conduct, I think there have been some very, very firmly held positions about issues such as what must be liquidated. What must the liquidation analysis show? What is a fair disposition? Should you begin from the claims estimation or allowance process, or begin from the experiential process of what might be available here and why X is available and Y isn't?

Those are positions that I think I cannot say that either one has been taken in bad faith. To the extent the debtor says we're offering more, on average, than has been offered in other cases, that's fine. That may not be the answer. It may be that this should be looked at in a different way. But it's very hard for me to conclude that the disconnect between the two pieces is evidence of bad faith.

and I would go back again to the comment I made earlier that you guys, and particularly the committee counsel, have many more of these cases than I will ever see. And I think you're aware that most, if not all, of these issues necessarily are present in the other cases. What can be liquidated? What's a fair outcome here? What kind of assets

should be subject to dedication to the creditors? What should be preserved? What's restricted and what isn't?

I have to believe that those factors are present in every case. I have to believe that the tension between First Amendment, and RFRA rights, and liquidation rights of creditors are present in every case. And in many cases, those are resolved because people get to a point where they simply want to resolve it, and they settle it, and there's a number, or there isn't, and you settle it, or you don't. And that, to me, does not equal bad faith. That equals positions strongly held. And it all goes into a negotiation process that is free and fair and confidential. And people make their decisions.

And if a party decides that this just is not the outcome I want, and I'm not going to agree to it, it's not going to be consensual, and the case cannot go forward, I'm not going to fault that party for that. That's their right to evaluate what they think their rights are and why bankruptcy is not satisfactory. And we don't get there very often in these circumstances. But when we do, I'm not going to second guess that, nor am I going to second guess or find bad faith in the debtor's failure to accommodate whatever those requests were. That's just negotiation.

And I realize there were vastly different views on how the case should go. And I realize the committee articulated them at different times, and I give them credit for that. But

the debtor's declination to look at the case the way the committee did simply is not, in my mind, evidence of bad faith.

And lastly, I'll come back to the last point I made that, to the extent I'm trying to figure out if the debtor is "at fault" here, if there's some bad conduct or some other bad faith, or bad animus, or whatever it would be, in a situation like this where one files the case — and remember, bankruptcy is totally different from litigation. Litigation, you file a complaint: here's me, here's what I want, here's the law, here's the facts, here's who I want it from, and here's the relief. Bankruptcy is totally different. We begin with this notion of here's my financial condition, here's why I care about it; now let's figure out what we do about it.

So the whole process here is different, and it necessarily involves people coming together and separating, buying in and not buying in throughout. So I think to characterize that buy in, or not, process is resulting in some kind of bad faith, or emanating from bad faith, absent the most extreme circumstances of evidence that I simply don't have here, would be highly problematic to this process. I just think it would be a very bad precedent to set.

And I will note again that there's only some folks who are really in front of me on these issues and whose conduct I can -- well, I can -- whether I should or not, I can potentially judge. And that's really the debtor and the

committee. And there are other participants in this dynamic about whom it is none of my business what they do or why they do it, and they may be as contributory as anybody to the success or lack of success here. And I'm never going to know that, and I never should. But it convinces me that trying to scale this in that manner is probably just a mistake.

So for all of those reasons, I'm going to conclude that I would not find that there's sufficient bad faith here either to dismiss the case with prejudice or to bar the debtor from filing for a year or any similar period. I'm not trying to suggest we do this piecemeal, but I did think it was important to make that finding right now.

My instinct is to dismiss the case -- to indicate there is no impediment to dismissing the case at this point. And if the debtor wants that to be -- I mean, I think it can be effective today. It could be effective in two weeks. If there's any hope of getting anything else done here, nobody has to agree with the debtor that there is. And if people think there isn't, they're entirely within their rights to to make that assessment. But I don't see any reason why this has to happen today with the order entry today.

I mean, in commercial cases, for example, you could dismiss a case with the understanding, well, I have assets I have to dispose of because they're perishable or -- you know, there's a lot of circumstances under which you have to stage

things a bit. I think this is one of them.

So there is the possibility of some further good to be done here. I'm not going to gainsay that. And I think the case is dismissable at this point; there is no impediment to it. Nobody objected. And the with-prejudice aspect of it, I think, is not sustainable. I would overrule that.

And I will leave the exact wording of this, Ms. Uetz, to you. And if you and the committee have an understanding or have an agreed-upon way of expressing this, that's fine. But I mean, I'm perfectly happy dismissing this thing effective November 12th.

And if people want to come in and tell me it should happen before then, for reasons that they agree on, that's fine. But absolutely I think that's there's no question that some good might be done here. If it can be done, great. If it can't, okay, we've all had our say. And everybody — everybody, in my view, in my thinking, is operating in good faith. So that's where we are. Okay?

So that was kind of lengthy. But come on up.

 $$\operatorname{MS.}$$ UETZ: If memory serves, we currently have a status conference set --

THE COURT: On the 12th.

MS. UETZ: -- November 12th.

THE COURT: Yep.

MS. UETZ: May I suggest that we leave that status

```
1
     conference on calendar?
 2
               THE COURT: Yeah, I would.
 3
              MS. UETZ: And the debtor will make clear its position
 4
     regarding the date for dismissal or discussion at that
 5
     conference.
 6
               THE COURT: Well, I will tell you right now, in my
 7
     mind, it's the 12th, okay?
 8
              Now, if everybody agrees, well, wait a minute, you
 9
     know, peace has broken out, I will listen to that. But I think
10
     we need deadlines at this point. I think it's going to help
11
     everybody to have deadlines at this point.
12
              MS. UETZ: Yes. And that's what I was suggesting --
13
              THE COURT: Okay.
14
              MS. UETZ: -- that the 12th is the deadline.
15
              THE COURT: Absolutely.
16
              MS. UETZ: As we submitted to the Court earlier, and I
17
     think the possibility of some further good to be done, it is
18
     possible that some further good will be done such that the
19
     debtor will advocate for the filing of a fourth amended plan.
20
              THE COURT:
                          Okay.
2.1
              MS. UETZ: It's also possible that some further good
     could be done by way of a global resolution. And --
22
23
               THE COURT: Okay.
2.4
              MS. UETZ: -- I guess I just want to make plain to the
25
     Court that we will inform the Court and the parties, as that
```

```
1
     develops, in advance of the 12th.
 2
              THE COURT: Okay. Good.
 3
              MS. UETZ: And in terms of the proposed order, we will
 4
     refer to the Court's oral ruling.
 5
              THE COURT: Yeah.
 6
              MS. UETZ: And rather than try to characterize it --
 7
              THE COURT: Right.
 8
              MS. UETZ: -- I think, for my part --
 9
              THE COURT: Somebody is going to use the word
10
     "meandering" someday in one of these orders.
11
              MS. UETZ: Possibly soon with my comments, Your Honor.
12
              THE COURT: Okay.
13
              MS. UETZ: But my point is, I'm not going to try to
14
     characterize what you said.
15
               THE COURT: Right.
16
              MS. UETZ: We're going to rely on the record and what
17
     you stated --
18
              THE COURT: Yeah.
19
              MS. UETZ: -- on the record. I mean, I will tell you,
20
     it may be obvious I've given this some thought before today. I
21
     really had in mind to write something, but I was convinced
22
     there was an imperative in clearing away some of the issues
23
     sooner rather than later.
2.4
              MS. UETZ: Thank you.
25
              THE COURT:
                          So I would have -- I mean, had it been in
```

```
1
     writing, it would have been a little more -- well, it would
 2
     have been shorter. The old Blaise Pascal, I would have written
 3
     a shorter letter, but I didn't have the time.
 4
              MS. UETZ: And to be clear, Your Honor, we heard you
 5
     say the case is dismissable but not that it is dismissed today.
 6
              THE COURT: Well, but it's -- I would certainly
 7
     indicate there is a hard deadline of November 12th, okay? It's
 8
     dismissed as of that date, if not before. Let's put it that
 9
     way. If you want to come and tell -- if you guys want to
10
     jointly come and tell me this is silly, we agree to dismiss it
11
     before then, that's fine.
12
              MS. UETZ: What I'm trying to leave open, though, is
13
     the possibility that the debtor comes to you before then and
14
     says something different so that it's not dismissed on the
15
     12th.
16
              THE COURT: Yeah, I mean, sure --
17
              MS. UETZ: There was --
18
              THE COURT: -- you can always tell me that, and the
19
     committee can tell me why that's not a good idea.
20
              MS. UETZ: Okay.
21
              THE COURT: Okay? I mean, everybody reserves their
22
     rights on that. Okay?
23
              MS. UETZ: Thank you, Your Honor.
2.4
              THE COURT: Okay. Thanks, Mr. Prol.
25
              MR. PROL: Your Honor, may I be heard on timing?
```

1 THE COURT: Yeah, absolutely.

2 MR. PROL: Jeff Prol, on behalf of the committee, Your 3 Honor.

We would respectfully request that Your Honor dismiss the case effective immediately. We don't believe -- we have no optimism that there's a likelihood of a global deal being negotiated here. You heard from Judge Sontchi that there's no session scheduled between the debtor and the committee. You also heard from Mr. Gallagher that there are sessions scheduled with the insurers. And Your Honor can infer what you want from those comments.

THE COURT: Yeah. Well, it's okay.

MR. PROL: We're concerned that nothing good can come. Mr. Schiavoni referred to the Camden case the other day, a case in which the debtor reached settlements with the insurance carriers separate and apart from the committee.

THE COURT: Um-hum.

MR. PROL: Subsequently, a plan was agreed to between the committee and the debtor, which has led to litigation, which continues to pend, over whether or not the insurance carriers have an administrative claim arising out of the debtors breaching that settlement agreement. We don't think anything — if the committee's not involved, nothing good can happen. The case should be dismissed and we should go back to state court where these cases belong.

1	THE COURT: Okay. Thank you very much.
2	Anybody else want to be heard on that point?
3	I'm going to keep my ruling as it was.
4	MR. PROL: Okay.
5	THE COURT: Okay. Thank you very much.
6	Anything else for the good of the order?
7	MS. UETZ: No, Your Honor.
8	THE COURT: All right. Good luck, everybody. Thank
9	you. And thank you for your very good arguments, all of you.
10	Thanks.
11	(Whereupon these proceedings were concluded at 3:48 p.m.)
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	

		87
1	INDEX	
2	RULINGS: PAGE LINE	
3	Motion to dismiss case is granted without 67 19	
4	prejudice, effective November 12th	
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25	ecribers	

2 CERTIFICATION

3

I, Sharona Shapiro, certify that the foregoing transcript is a true and accurate record of the proceedings.

6

7

8

9

Sharona Shapiro

10

11 _____

12 /s/ SHARONA SHAPIRO, CET-492

13

14 eScribers

15 7227 N. 16th Street, Suite #207

16 Phoenix, AZ 85020

17

18 November 3, 2025

19

20

21

22

23

2.4

25

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-3 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 89 of 114

cribers

	1	l	د میا	l.,
I	82:14, 85:1		Afternoon (21):	Aligning (1): 10:24
12Th (22): 19:16,	Abuse (4): 3:15,	58:25	5:11, 5:14, 5:17,	Alignment (1): 54:4
	6:22, 37:17, 38:18	1	5:20, 6:2, 6:5, 6:7,	Allegation (2):
21:24, 22:9, 22:16,	Accept (3): 15:6,	""	6:8, 6:15, 6:20,	29:20, 31:1
23:7, 31:10, 50:16,	15:9, 15:9	Addition (2): 10:10,		Alleged (2): 64:11,
55:13, 56:10, 63:5,	Acceptance (1):	39:17	8:11, 8:12, 8:14,	73:8
81:11, 81:22, 81:23,	30:24	Additional (3):	11:3, 32:1, 32:2,	Allow (4): 45:3,
82:7, 82:13, 83:1,	Accepted (5):	21:12, 21:12, 63:4	60:7, 60:8	49:10, 55:19, 74:1
84:7, 84:15, 87:4	12:20, 12:25, 14:9,	Address (3): 18:2,	Again (22): 6:11,	Allowance (1):
16Th (2): 4:6, 88:6	14:10, 27:9	56:4, 67:5	10:11, 13:13, 16:21,	77:10
	Accommodate (1):	Adjourn (2): 25:24,	17:1, 25:20, 27:23,	Allowing (1): 54:14
2	78:21	47:2 I	31:5, 33:4, 34:16,	Allows (1): 69:24
28Th (1): 32:11	Accomplish (1):	Adjudicate (1):	45:3, 46:11, 47:13,	Almost (4): 46:12,
	20:I	74:15	48:11, 49:24, 50:13,	52:22, 53:1, 58:11
6	Accomplished (2):	Administrative (4):	51:3,63:12,63:13,	Alternative (4):
6Th(1): 12:12	46:24, 47:10	24:13, 26:23, 27:3,	72:22, 77:20, 79:22	25:23, 58:3, 58:5,
	According (1):	85:21	Against (2): 26:12,	58:24
8	33:23	Administratively	32:14	Although (1): 33:2
8Th(1): 13:23	Account (4): 70:25,	(4): 23:24, 24:9,	Ago (3): 32:11,	Always (5): 37:21,
3 3	70:25, 71:21, 76:7	24:23, 25:11	32:16, 45:22	69:1, 69:4, 69:7,
A	Accurate (2): 17:12,	Advance (1): 83:1	Agree (9): 43:6,	84:16
ALBERT (2): 2:7,	88:3	Advantage (4):	44:1, 44:2, 45:17,	Amended (7): 21:3,
6:2	Accusation (1): 18:2	10:23, 10:24, 11:16,	72:16, 78:14, 80:18,	21:15, 21:18, 21:21,
ANDREW (1):	Accusations (3):	48:23	81:13, 84:10	30:23, 35:4, 82:18
3:21	18:8, 18:10, 18:11	Adventus (1): 6:9	Agreed (7): 16:7,	Amendment (7):
APLC (1): 3:10	Accused (1): 17:25	Adventusnorton (1):	40:21, 40:21, 66:21,	42:16, 42:18, 44:7,
AZ (2): 4:8, 88:7	Achieve (4): 26:16,	2:20	70:14, 73:15, 85:18	45:13, 45:14, 53:2,
Ability (1): 24:22	31:3, 58:6, 59:4	Adversary (8): 40:7,	Agreedupon (2):	78:5
Able (12): 21:8,	Achieving (1):	40:9, 40:16, 41:22,	16:14, 81:9	Americas (1): 2:28
24:24, 31:3, 44:4,	21:20	42:11, 51:14, 51:20,	Agreeing (1): 66:1	Among (5): 21:11,
44:18, 44:21, 47:16,	Acknowledged (2):	52:10	Agreement (2):	23:1, 26:20, 29:17,
48:6, 57:16, 65:21,	35:3, 42:6	Advocate (1): 82:18	13:23, 85:22	29:18
69:14, 74:11	Acknowledges (1):	Aetna (1): 3:23	Agrees (1): 82:8	Amount (8): 13:15,
Abreast (1): 48:2	33:3	Affairs (1): 34:25	Ahead (9): 7:16,	27:13, 27:23, 32:18,
Absent (2): 68:19,	Acknowledging (1):	Affiliated (3):	7:18, 9:24, 12:14,	34:19, 49:13, 56:24,
79:18	42:12	65:17, 65:21, 65:25	19:7, 31:16, 31:21,	58:17
Absolute (1): 19:19	Across (1): 45:9	Afford (6): 24:9,	32:4, 46:25	Analyses (4): 29:9,
Absolutely (5):	Acted (2): 57:22,	24:13, 25:7, 26:23,	Albert (1): 6:2	29:15, 52:18, 53:10
46:24, 71:6, 81:14,	71:15	27:1, 47:21	Aligned (1): 41:14	Analysis (5): 29:11,
T~~~~, / * · · · , · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	I	I	I	I

33:10, 37:8, 53:11,	8:18, 17:2, 19:7,	Articulatable (1):	Assessment (1):	77:11, 77:12
	20:15, 24:7, 25:3,	73:18	80:20	Ave (1): 2:35
	25:25, 31:16, 56:13,	Articulated (3):	Assets (21): 29:7,	Avenue (3): 2:21,
6:21			 37:24, 39:20, 39:21,	2:28, 3:30
Andrew (2): 31:23,	66:3, 66:10	Artificial (1): 41:13	39:21, 40:10, 40:10,	Average (2): 37:11,
61:7	Approach (2):	As (76): 5:25, 7:2,		77:15
Angeles (3): 3:13,	37:14, 39:18	7:13, 9:17, 11:20,	54:6, 57:15, 58:7,	Aware (6): 32:10,
3:32, 56:25	Approaching (1):	13:1, 13:19, 14:18,	59:23, 60:1, 65:5,	34:19, 36:2, 37:13,
Animus (1): 79:6	72:17	15:2, 15:2, 17:5,	65:9, 74:8, 74:9,	70:3, 77:23
Ann (3): 5:8, 9:8,	Appropriate (2):	18:16, 19:16, 21:1,	77:25, 80:23	Away (2): 67:11,
26:2	59:6, 75:10	21:11, 22:2, 22:9,	Assignment (1):	83:22
Announce (1):	Appropriately (1):	23:3, 23:4, 23:19,	64:14	Awful (4): 71:18,
13:14	76:13	26:18, 31:10, 32:10,	Associated (2):	74:4, 76:23, 77:1
Anticipate (1):	Arch (1): 76:11	32:21, 32:22, 32:22,	24:14, 26:23	
62:19	Arena (1): 37:17	34:24, 35:14, 36:2,	Associates (2): 3:16,	В
Anymore (2): 19:4,	Arent (1): 7:24	37:11, 41:14, 43:8,	6:21	BAP(1): 33:24
50:25	Arguably (2): 18:15,	46:25, 47:1, 48:21,	Assume (1): 69:5	BARBER (1): 3:40
Apart (2): 11:5,	73:5	52:16, 54:7, 55:13,	Assuming (1): 23:2	BISHOP (1): 3:40
85:16	Argue (5): 23:2,	55:18, 55:18, 57:14,	Attachment (1):	BLAISE (1): 3:8
Apologize (1): 68:3	25:19, 53:7, 74:18,	57:18, 58:11, 59:11,	43:4	BRENT (1): 2:1
Appeal (2): 42:2,	77:4	59:22, 64:13, 65:3,	Attacks (1): 31:8	BRG (1): 29:17
63:24	Argued (3): 22:10,	65:3, 65:9, 65:12,	Attempted (1): 40:2	BURNS (2): 2:13,
Appeals (1): 63:25	69:23, 69:23	65:13, 65:16, 65:24,	Attempting (1):	5:23
Appearance (1): 8:7	Argues (2): 29:1,	66:6, 67:9, 67:13,	35:1	Back (21): 25:17,
Appearances (2):	30:4	67:14, 69:1, 69:7,	Attendant (1):	33:1, 37:19, 40:20,
5:7, 31:21	Arguing (7): 19:12,	69:12, 70:17, 71:5,	21:22	43:22, 44:12, 44:14,
Appearing (3): 9:9,	24:2, 25:5, 27:11,	72:21, 73:5, 73:6,	Attendees (1): 8:4	45:1, 45:9, 46:21,
26:3, 50:22	28:4, 37:1, 70:7	74:18, 75:13, 75:13,	Attending (4): 8:1,	47:23, 48:13, 66:14,
Appellate (1): 33:9	Argument (7):	76:11, 77:8, 80:3,	8:13, 8:17, 35:18	68:18, 68:18, 69:19,
Applicable (1):	17:22, 22:2, 28:7,	80:3, 82:15, 82:23,	Attractive (1):	70:2, 72:23, 77:20,
36:13	29:8, 29:25, 30:3,	84:8, 86:3	24:2 I	79:3, 85:24
Application (3):	45:13	Asbestos (1): 37:17	August (2): 47:19,	Backandforth (1):
9:17, 49:9, 55:1	Arguments (8):	Ascribe (1): 48:21	48:8	72:3
Applications (1):	11:23, 26:22, 28:16,	Aspect (3): 57:7,	Authority (1): 67:12	Background (1):
9:19	29:13, 29:22, 31:6,	59:17, 81:5	Authorize (1): 49:5	26:8
Applies (3): 29:14,	61:11,86:9	Aspects (2): 57:17,	Availability (1):	Bad (51): 18:1,
	0	58:2 I		22:13, 28:5, 28:5,
Appointed (1): 35:7	Around (3): 11:20,	Assert (1): 23:23	Available (6): 38:1,	28:8, 29:1, 29:14,
Appreciate (14):	36:19, 74:5	Asserts (1): 24:8	39:21, 40:8, 74:10,	29:18, 29:20, 30:25,

31:1, 31:4, 31:8,	Barber (4): 8:1,	Belonged (1): 34:14	70:21	Buying (3): 25:6,
33:16, 33:19, 33:21,	8:13, 8:15, 35:13	Beneficiaries (1):	Breach (1): 50:2	79:16, 79:16
		64:7	Breaches (1): 49:24	
43:16, 44:4, 44:11,	29:25	Benefit (2): 76:5,	Breaching (2): 56:3,	С
46:10, 48:14, 48:18,	Bases (1): 11:24	76:10	85:22	CA (5): 2:11, 3:13,
48:21, 50:11, 53:11,	Basic (2): 69:9, 77:6	Benign (1): 49:25	Break (3): 61:16,	3:26, 3:32, 4:3
54:3, 55:8, 55:10,	Basically (3): 25:6,	Benvenutti (2): 2:8,	66:11, 66:12	CALIFORNIA (1):
55:13, 57:22, 59:14,	49:14, 68:18	6:3	Breaks (1): 24:20	5:1
64:11, 69:13, 69:16,	Basis (3): 30:1,	Best (6): 23:20,	Brent (1): 6:5	CHAMBERS (1):
71:15, 73:10, 77:14,	65:23, 67:13	23:21, 23:22, 25:8,	Brief (6): 10:8,	4:1
77:19, 78:10, 78:20,	Bay (1): 26:14	52:16, 67:8	14:19, 29:24, 34:11,	CLERK (1): 5:4
79:2, 79:5, 79:5,	Beach (1): 3:26	Bet (1): 28:24	60:10, 66:17	CMC (1): 27:8
79:6, 79:18, 79:18,	Bear (2): 24:18,	Better (6): 40:3,	Briefing (5): 15:17,	COURT (231): 5:6,
79:21,80:8	67:24	41:6, 55:18, 67:10,	15:17, 16:7, 16:14,	5:10, 5:16, 5:19,
Badfaith (8): 29:8,	Becomes (1): 67:8	67:16, 76:19	16:17	5:22, 5:24, 6:4, 6:7,
30:1, 33:21, 46:4,	Begged (2): 46:19,	Big (1): 76:18	Briefly (2): 61:17,	6:11, 6:14, 6:18,
58:18, 59:16, 68:24,	46:19	Bigger (2): 41:16,	62:14	6:23, 7:1, 7:5, 7:8,
71:25	Begin (4): 71:25,	59:9	Briefs (1): 31:7	7:13, 7:16, 7:22,
Badly (2): 70:18,	77:10, 77:11, 79:11	Bills (1): 35:22	Bring (2): 41:22,	7:25, 8:3, 8:6, 8:11,
70:24	Beginning (3):	Bishop (10): 5:4,	51:21	8:14, 8:17, 8:22,
Bair (1): 2:14	32:12, 35:7, 72:1	8:1, 8:12, 8:15,	Broader (1): 26:14	8:24, 9:2, 9:7, 9:11,
Balance (1): 26:9	Begins (2): 75:8,	30:19, 35:13, 42:9,	Broken (1): 82:9	9:14, 9:20, 9:24,
Bankruptcies (1):	76:23	42:12, 55:8, 57:6	Broker (1): 48:1	10:3, 11:4, 12:3,
57:12	Behalf (15): 5:9,	Bishops (1): 57:3	Brought (1): 56:24	12:11, 12:14, 13:22,
Bankruptcy (25):	5:12, 6:3, 6:6, 6:9,	Bit (6): 11:5, 26:7,	Build (1): 63:18	14:2, 14:4, 14:7,
4:2, 32:11, 32:21,	6:21, 6:25, 7:21,	66:5, 69:21, 72:4,	Building (2): 42:21,	14:14, 14:16, 14:20,
33:9, 33:12, 34:1,	9:9, 23:15, 26:3,	81:1	54:11	15:2, 15:15, 15:21,
34:25, 35:3, 36:9,	32:8, 63:12, 64:12,	Black (2): 3:29,	Built (2): 15:20,	15:23, 16:1, 16:15,
36:12, 37:9, 43:10,	85:2	36:12	70:8	17:4, 17:17, 18:4,
55:4, 56:24, 72:13,	Behaved (3): 70:17,	Blaise (2): 6:17,	Bunch (4): 38:13,	18:5, 18:13, 18:23,
72:15, 73:13, 73:21,		84:2	67:23, 70:15, 76:14	19:7, 19:10, 19:13,
73:23, 74:8, 74:24,	Behaving (1): 70:24	Blatant (1): 10:11	Burden (2): 24:18,	19:15, 19:16, 20:4,
76:2, 78:17, 79:7,	Behavior (2): 33:17,	Boils (1): 28:7	36:14	20:8, 20:12, 20:15,
79:11	72:I I	Borne (1): 25:18	Burns (1): 5:23	20:16, 20:21, 22:20,
Bankruptcyrelated	Believes (8): 20:24,	Borrow (1): 65:21	Business (2): 21:17,	22:22, 22:24, 23:1,
• •	1 1	Borrowed (1): 65:22	80:2	23:6, 23:9, 23:12,
Bar (8): 23:3, 43:15,	22:1, 70:21, 70:22,	Both (4): 11:16,	Businesses (1):	23:14, 23:25, 24:5,
68:12, 68:23, 69:14,	73:4	27:13, 30:12, 31:2	43:17	24:7, 24:25, 25:3,
72:15, 72:19, 80:9	Belong (1): 85:25	Bottom (2): 59:12,	Buy (1): 79:17	25:25, 28:14, 28:17,

0 0 0	la 20 20 .	l o .	l .	1
28:19, 28:21, 28:24,				41:24
31:16, 31:20, 31:25,				Cemetery (1): 65:12
			44:23, 46:11, 46:11,	
	82:14, 82:19, 82:21,		46:14, 47:2, 47:25,	
38:6, 38:17, 38:18,			48:4, 50:12, 51:13,	
38:20, 38:21, 38:23,			53:24, 55:3, 55:10,	
		81:15, 84:16, 84:17,		11:19, 13:5, 13:19,
	84:16, 84:16, 84:19,			
			67:19, 68:11, 69:2,	63:17, 68:16, 69:14,
40:18, 40:21, 41:1,	85:17, 86:1, 86:5,	Cant (11): 18:11,	69:10, 69:13, 70:13,	84:6
41:3, 41:5, 41:20,	86:8	25:7, 29:25, 37:16,	72:14, 73:23, 74:1,	Certify (1): 88:2
41:25, 42:3, 42:7,	CURET (1): 3:8	39:13, 47:21, 62:8,	78:4, 78:6, 78:15,	Chance (3): 13:2,
42:7, 42:8, 42:14,	Calendar (1): 82:1	64:22, 68:14, 74:12,	78:24, 79:1, 79:7,	19:3, 43:21
43:1, 43:1, 43:5,	California (2): 43:1,	81:16	80:9, 80:13, 80:14,	Chances (1): 45:3
43:14, 44:1, 44:6,	43:2	Capable (2): 21:20,	80:23, 81:4, 84:5,	Change (1): 26:11
44:11, 44:17, 44:19,	Call (6): 5:3, 7:17,	21:21	85:5, 85:14, 85:14,	Changes (1): 36:1
44:22, 45:5, 45:8,	10:6, 41:23, 71:21,	Car(1): 62:10	85:24, 87:3	Chapter (14): 27:2,
45:10, 45:18, 45:21,	76:5	Care (2): 16:17,	Cases (30): 30:10,	27:19, 28:6, 29:2,
45:23, 46:1, 46:5,	Called (1): 52:18	79:12	30:11, 30:12, 30:13,	30:5, 32:25, 43:10,
46:7, 47:4, 47:6,	Calls (1): 72:14	Carriers (7): 10:25,	32:21, 32:24, 33:1,	45:15, 45:24, 52:20,
49:17, 50:17, 51:6,	Camden (2): 63:23,	24:21, 50:4, 64:1,	36:19, 36:24, 37:13,	53:3, 69:24, 70:9,
51:8, 51:11, 51:18,	85:14	64:12, 85:16, 85:21	37:16, 37:17, 37:22,	73:21
52:1, 52:3, 52:4,	Camdens (1): 59:13	Cas (1): 26:9	38:2, 38:9, 41:9,	Characteristics (1):
52:6, 52:11, 52:13,	Came (1): 40:17	Case (97): 5:4, 5:5,	45:4, 64:9, 67:9,	70:10
52:15, 53:4, 53:7,	Cameras (1): 7:24	13:2, 13:11, 17:20,	70:5, 74:5, 75:9,	Characterizations
53:9, 53:13, 53:17,	Campagne (1): 3:9	17:21, 18:1, 19:1,	75:16, 76:3, 77:16,	(1): 72:5
53:19, 53:22, 55:15,	Can (61): 5:25,	19:22, 22:1, 22:4,	77:22, 77:24, 78:6,	Characterize (4):
55:23, 56:2, 56:6,	15:3, 15:11, 15:13,	22:4, 22:15, 23:18,	80:22, 85:25	64:13, 79:17, 83:6,
56:8, 56:13, 56:15,	15:16, 18:8, 19:13,	23:23, 24:10, 25:8,	Cash (1): 40:10	83:14
59:19, 59:25, 60:4,	22:3, 23:4, 24:13,	25:15, 25:15, 26:11,	Castigate (1): 48:20	Characterizes (1):
60:6, 60:8, 60:11,	24:17, 24:20, 24:25,	26:17, 27:14, 27:17,	Casualty (2): 3:21,	30:3
60:18, 61:3, 61:4,	26:22, 28:18, 34:8,	27:19, 28:4, 28:5,	3:23	Characterizing (1):
61:14, 61:19, 61:23,	39:4, 41:5, 43:5,	30:5, 30:11, 30:16,	Catholic (6): 5:4,	28:15
62:3, 62:5, 62:8,	44:14, 45:2, 45:13,	30:17, 30:18, 30:21,	26:14, 30:19, 41:23,	Charge (1): 54:21
62:12, 62:15, 62:18,	48:12, 52:5, 52:6,	30:25, 31:2, 31:14,	51:22, 55:8	Charges (2): 51:1,
62:21, 62:24, 63:8,	53:1, 58:9, 58:11,	32:11, 33:5, 33:22,	Cause (5): 23:19,	51:6
63:15, 63:19, 64:2,	58:13, 58:15, 58:24,	33:24, 34:1, 34:25,	23:22, 24:8, 25:7,	Charitable (2):
65:4, 65:18, 66:3,	61:20, 62:6, 62:8,	36:19, 37:1, 37:3,	43:15	57:12, 70:11
66:7, 66:10, 66:19,	63:20, 67:24, 68:3,	37:9, 38:14, 38:16,	Cemeteries (1):	Charity (2): 57:15,

	1, , 25.5 5	Co(1).6.16	lanu 28.12 48.22	Complete (1): 17:11
57:15 Checked (1): 7:19	34:14, 37:5, 51:19,			Completely (2):
· -	I		l' ' ' ' ' '	l * ′
Chicago (1): 3:6			l' ' ' ' ' '	I I: I I, 34:22
Children (2): 32:15,			58:23, 62:16, 63:13,	_
48:21	21:14	59:5	64:18, 64:19, 67:4,	· · · -
	Claiming (1): 65:24			Complimentary (1):
	Claims (24): 26:12,			47:5
64:8, 64:24	27:5, 29:12, 32:14,			Compliments (2):
	35:2, 36:5, 36:12,			63:14, 69:6
	36:15, 36:18, 36:21,	=	· '	Comprehensively
41:8, 42:5, 42:8,	36:22, 37:11, 37:21,	73:20	85:2, 85:8, 85:16,	(1): 76:3
54:11, 54:15, 58:17,	37:24, 38:1, 39:1,	Coming (2): 7:9,	85:19	Compromised (1):
70:5, 70:11, 72:21,	39:10, 74:1, 74:15,	79:15	Committeeburns	50:1
76:6, 76:10, 76:20,	74:21, 74:22, 74:25,	Commandeer (2):	(1): 2:14	Compromises (1):
77:2	75:11, 77:10	47:1, 47:4	Committees (14):	56:23
Churches (11):	Clarification (2):	Comment (4): 53:5,	15:1, 16:9, 16:12,	Conception (1):
29:4, 29:4, 35:8,	51:16, 59:22	70:2, 73:22, 77:20	27:24, 28:7, 41:11,	20:18
35:18, 42:6, 42:10,	Clarified (2): 72:23,	Comments (6):	47:1, 49:6, 49:20,	Concern (2): 64:7,
42:13, 42:16, 53:24,	72:24	61:10, 64:6, 64:23,	51:1, 51:6, 59:10,	64:18
54:16, 54:17	Clarify (1): 62:15	68:13, 83:11, 85:11	67:22, 85:23	Concerned (3):
Circuit (5): 33:8,	Class (1): 47:11	Commercial (1):	Committing (1):	50:9, 65:3, 85:13
33:9, 33:24, 63:24,	Clause (1): 42:19	80:22	65:16	Concerning (2):
69:12	Clay (1): 4:3	Commit (1): 66:1	Communicate (1):	13:5, 39:18
Circuits (1): 69:10	Clear (6): 53:6,	Committed (4):	66:13	Concerns (1): 75:7
Circumstance (1):	54:5, 62:4, 66:8,	53:1, 65:6, 65:8,	Communication (1):	Conclude (4): 28:8,
74:11	82:3, 84:4	66:5	75:24	77:4, 77:18, 80:7
Circumstances (10):	Clearing (1): 83:22	Committee (71):	Communications	Concluded (1):
27:3, 33:25, 34:10,	Client (9): 16:21,	2:1, 5:21, 5:23, 6:3,	(3): 10:17, 10:17,	86:11
34:12, 64:22, 68:20,	17:25, 30:21, 31:2,	6:6, 7:11, 11:10,	10:18	Concluding (1):
72:16, 78:19, 79:19,	49:11, 56:20, 57:2,	11:11, 14:9, 14:11,	Community (2):	35:22
80:25	64:6, 64:8	14:18, 15:5, 15:14,	7:7, 26:15	Conclusion (2):
Citations (2): 17:21,	Clients (2): 32:17,	15:19, 16:13, 17:25,	Company (2): 3:22,	13:23, 26:19
69:11	43:19	18:6, 18:8, 21:14,	7:2 I	Condition (2): 67:4,
Cite (2): 38:16,	Close (2): 5:24, 73:8	22:10, 23:15, 26:21,	Companyvia (1):	79:12
	Closely (1): 41:14			Conditions (2):
	Closing (2): 29:3,		Compare (1): 36:19	19:1, 67:20
46:10, 69:10, 69:12	1			Conduct (8): 30:18,
			_	34:13, 48:17, 73:10,
	Clustering (1): 35:8			
_		-	· -	•

79:23	Consenting (1):	Contextualize (1):	6:13, 6:17, 9:18,	Courts (3): 13:17,
Conducted (6):	47:11	20:4	14:19, 22:10, 47:9,	33:8, 83:4
26:16, 28:5, 30:20,	Consideration (1):	Continental (2):	48:22, 48:22, 77:21	Coverage (2): 6:13,
30:25, 55:8, 55:9	13:17	2:32, 7:2 I	Counterproductive	64:8
Conference (11):	Considered (1):	Continuation (1):	(1): 23:10	Covered (3): 9:16,
9:4, 10:5, 11:21,	34:8	26:12	Country (3): 36:20,	10:14, 11:2
12:7, 19:17, 47:22,	Consistent (3):	Continue (3): 27:2,	63:19, 74:5	Covers (3): 10:17,
50:16, 55:14, 81:21,	13:21, 58:22, 74:23	54:14, 57:16	Couple (8): 9:10,	10:18, 10:18
82:1, 82:5	Consolidate (1):	Continues (1):	9:23, 11:4, 11:5,	Covington (1): 9:17
Conferences (1):	41:22	85:20	22:7, 41:5, 53:23,	Cram (4): 47:12,
50:23	Consolidating (1):	Contract (1): 36:4	69:19	47:16, 55:4, 64:20
Confidential (3):	41:15	Contracts (4): 57:4,	Course (5): 19:15,	Cramdown (2):
50:10, 60:23, 78:12	Consolidation (1):	57:17, 58:8, 58:17	29:23, 30:22, 46:2,	59:2, 59:6
Confirm (5): 40:20,	51:14	Contributed (1):	54:22	Create (1): 58:17
46:18, 47:16, 48:10,	Constituencies (1):	59:24	Court (64): 3:24,	Creative (1): 57:1
48:12	68:23	Contribution (1):	4:1, 4:2, 5:3, 9:13,	Credit (2): 65:24,
Confirmation (11):	Constituency (1):	57:14	9:18, 9:23, 10:21,	78:25
21:20, 24:14, 24:15,	59:3	Contributory (1):	12:9, 12:19, 12:22,	Creditors (15):
26:24, 34:4, 38:21,	Constituents (1):	80:3	13:9, 13:12, 13:21,	23:20, 23:21, 31:13,
40:4, 40:18, 46:9,	38:13	Control (2): 71:7,	14:6, 14:19, 17:8,	34:3, 42:17, 52:17,
47:22, 74:25	Constitutes (2):	71:11	21:2, 21:9, 21:15,	52:19, 52:19, 54:6,
Confirmed (6):	46:10, 48:18	Conversion (3):	21:25, 22:3, 22:11,	54:18, 67:7, 67:8,
44:19, 44:21, 59:12,	Constitutional (1):	67:9, 67:12, 67:14	22:15, 26:21, 28:8,	67:16, 78:1, 78:5
59:13, 63:23, 63:23	43:9	Convinced (2):	29:19, 30:11, 31:9,	Creditorsjeffrey (1):
Confirming (1):	Containing (1):	76:22, 83:21	33:1, 33:15, 33:24,	2:2
62:22	54:11	Convinces (1): 80:5	34:2, 34:8, 35:13,	Critical (1): 37:9
Conflicts (1): 9:17	Contains (1): 33:18	Copy (1): 49:22	36:8, 37:4, 40:2,	Criticize (1): 47:1
Congress (3): 57:13,	Contemplate (2):	Corley (1): 5:25	43:22, 44:12, 44:15,	Culminating (1):
57:24, 59:2	57:17, 58:13	Corporation (1):	44:15, 45:1, 45:2,	30:23
Connection (3):	Contemplated (2):	6:16	48:22, 51:5, 52:21,	Curet (2): 3:10,
33:19, 64:16, 69:6	57:14, 57:25	Corporationparker	55:12, 55:14, 56:5,	6:17
Consensual (5):	Contest (1): 67:13	(1): 3:2	58:6, 58:9, 63:24,	Curious (1): 62:21
26:20, 31:3, 60:25,	Contested (4):	Correction (1):	68:18, 73:24, 74:6,	Current (1): 27:3
75:1, 78:15	24:15, 26:25, 40:4,	52:15	74:12, 74:13, 75:4,	Currently (2):
Consensually (2):	40:6	Correctly (1): 41:11	76:4, 82:15, 82:23,	54:20, 81:20
44:23, 70:14	Contesting (1):	Costs (2): 24:10,	82:23, 85:25	
Consensus (1):	18:15	24:18	Courtokay (1): 5:13	D
56:22	Context (4): 20:22,	Couldnt (1): 53:14	Courtroom (2): 5:6,	DAWANA (1): 4:1
Consent (1): 42:12	64:6, 73:23, 73:23	Counsel (10): 2:13,	49:19	DC (1): 2:37

Dallas (1): 2:23	27:13, 27:17, 28:4,	Decide (6): 44:10,	Designed (2): 10:16,	36:20
Damages (1): 36:14	28:9, 28:9, 29:2,	44:10, 74:1, 74:16,	49:25	Directly (1): 24:25
Data (1): 36:18	29:5, 29:10, 29:14,	74:17, 74:19	Despite (1): 29:5	Disagree (1): 36:11
Date (11): 19:17,	30:4, 30:4, 30:6,	Decided (3): 22:12,	Determine (1):	Disagreement (2):
22:4, 22:16, 27:7,	30:6, 30:19, 31:3,	45:16, 53:4	45:12	70:15, 72:2
27:16, 27:24, 31:10,	32:10, 32:24, 33:2,	Decides (1): 78:13	Determined (2):	Disagreements (6):
55:14, 55:14, 82:4,	33:11, 33:15, 34:5,	Deciding (2): 22:6,	46:16, 54:13	55:1, 55:2, 55:6,
84:8	34:6, 34:24, 35:2,	25:12	Determining (1):	55:7, 57:7, 73:3
Day (5): 49:16,	36:7, 36:9, 36:16,	Decision (3): 42:2,	69:13	Discharge (4): 43:9,
49:23, 51:13, 64:10,	38:12, 39:19, 40:3,	74:19, 76:4	Develops (1): 83:1	43:18, 43:21, 53:3
85:14	40:17, 41:7, 42:5,	Decisions (1): 78:12	Dialogue (1): 53:13	Disclose (1): 49:10
Days (1): 25:9	42:18, 43:11, 45:15,	Declared (1): 46:12	Dictates (1): 70:12	Discloses (1): 17:8
Dday (1): 19:19	45:25, 46:25, 46:25,	Declination (1):	Didnt (16): 12:24,	Disclosure (9): 35:4,
Deadline (2): 82:13,	47:20, 49:4, 49:12,	79:1	15:6, 15:9, 15:9,	35:5, 48:25, 54:7,
84:7	50:20, 53:12, 54:5,	Dedication (1): 78:1	16:3, 16:4, 29:10,	59:25, 60:3, 64:16,
Deadlines (2):	54:10, 54:13, 54:13,	Deeply (2): 69:24,	40:22, 42:1, 49:22,	65:8, 65:10
82:10, 82:11	54:14, 54:21, 55:5,	71:8	61:3, 61:21, 62:1,	Disclosures (1):
Deal (8): 16:25,	55:13, 58:15, 58:25,	Defeat (2): 33:15,	64:25, 69:21, 84:3	29:22
17:1, 39:3, 50:3,	59:18, 61:11, 62:16,	36:8	Different (29):	Disconnect (1):
50:3, 50:4, 57:3,	64:19, 65:11, 65:13,	Defend (2): 18:11,	19:21, 20:18, 30:11,	77:18
85:6	65:15, 67:21, 68:13,	64:9	30:13, 36:20, 36:21,	Discovery (1):
Dealing (2): 38:9,	69:15, 69:25, 70:1,	Defending (1): 18:2	36:22, 38:8, 39:5,	47:15
67:21	70:11, 70:21, 70:22,	Defense (2): 39:6,	42:5, 54:25, 59:9,	Discuss (5): 11:2,
Deals (1): 24:20	71:22, 72:6, 72:11,		65:25, 68:15, 68:20,	15:17, 16:21, 49:20,
Debate (1): 67:9	73:2, 73:4, 76:14,	Defer (1): 50:15	69:15, 69:25, 70:1,	65:2
Debtor (129): 5:9,	76:16, 76:18, 77:15,	Defined (1): 65:12	70:25, 71:10, 72:5,	Discussed (2):
5:12, 5:15, 9:9,	79:4, 79:25, 80:9,	Definitively (2):	74:22, 77:17, 78:23,	10:15, 35:12
10:21, 11:9, 11:9,	80:15, 80:18, 82:3,		78:25, 79:8, 79:11,	
11:10, 12:20, 12:23,	82:18, 84:13, 85:8,	Deity (1): 75:25	79:14, 84:14	58:19
12:25, 13:25, 13:25,	85:15, 85:19	Delay (1): 48:14	Differently (2):	Discussion (5):
16:9, 16:14, 17:7,	Debtors (24): 12:19,	Delayed (1): 43:20	20:16, 41:13	16:11, 35:10, 48:24,
19:17, 20:24, 21:9,	13:1, 13:14, 21:6,	Deleterious (1):	Difficult (3): 50:3,	49:13, 82:4
21:10, 21:16, 21:20,	22:21, 26:18, 27:9,	72:8	70:20, 73:1	Discussions (3):
21:25, 22:1, 22:14,	27:21, 29:22, 30:16,	Dentons (1): 3:23	Difficulty (1): 16:16	37:23, 63:6, 63:7
23:17, 23:22, 24:8,	30:18, 33:14, 46:16,	Deny (1): 50:15	Diocese (10): 32:14,	Dishonesty (1): 34:4
	47:9, 48:16, 54:19,	· ·	35:6, 35:9, 35:15,	Dismiss (30): 9:12,
25:4, 26:3, 26:6,	54:20, 68:16, 69:25,		36:1, 53:24, 56:21,	
26:9, 26:16, 26:20,	75:7, 77:2, 78:21,	Described (2): 54:7,	57:20, 64:14, 74:5	11:20, 15:18, 16:24,
26:22, 27:1, 27:12,				17:24, 19:12, 23:17,

25:8, 25:13, 25:14,	Disrupt (1): 74:6	34:17, 35:17, 35:20,	E	34:7, 36:7, 38:5,
	Dissatisfied (1):			70:13, 76:17
30:3, 33:1, 43:11,	32:24		_	Elements (2): 34:1,
			' ' '	34:9
67:19, 68:11, 80:9,				Elevate (1): 75:7
80:13, 80:23, 84:10,				Else (17): 7:2, 8:7,
	18:14, 41:18, 65:20			
85:4, 87:3 Dismissable (2):			ľ	8:24, 48:13, 52:4,
			Eager (1): 16:2	52:7, 52:11, 55:15,
			Earlier (5): 5:25,	55:16, 56:11, 59:20,
·	_		48:24, 54:24, 77:21,	
	Document (2): 10:8,		82:15	80:17, 86:2, 86:6
23:11, 23:18, 23:20,	1 -		l ' ' ' ' '	Email (1): 13:7
0 0 , ,		75:3, 75:7, 78:9,	Effect (2): 58:13,	Emailed (1): 49:19
27:20, 28:3, 30:5,		78:18, 79:19, 80:20,		Emanating (1):
31:10, 31:15, 33:2,		85:5, 85:22	Effective (6): 25:9,	79:18
33:6, 33:7, 34:10,	27:25, 42:18, 42:19,		80:16, 80:16, 81:10,	Emergency (2):
48:10, 48:15, 50:12,	45:14, 58:12, 58:18,	63:15	85:5, 87:4	49:5, 49:9
55:14, 67:9, 67:17,	64:19, 76:25	Doty (1): 2:15	Effectively (1): 50:8	Emphasize (2):
67:18, 72:19, 82:4	Dollars (3): 12:17,	Double (1): 56:1	Effort (6): 48:23,	13:13, 21:25
Dismissals (1):	13:15, 43:19	Doubt (2): 67:17,	57:1, 57:7, 57:10,	Employees (1):
33:14	Done (29): 12:17,	72:6	57:20, 57:23	32:15
Dismissed (17):	13:16, 18:4, 18:17,	Down (12): 17:7,	Efforts (3): 41:12,	Emptyhanded (2):
19:1, 19:2, 19:22,	22:5, 35:1, 36:15,	28:7, 35:23, 40:5,	47:1, 62:15	68:1, 68:3
22:1, 22:4, 22:15,	37:22, 38:13, 38:14,	46:15, 46:19, 46:23,	Egregious (5):	Encompass (1):
25:15, 25:16, 25:16,	39:3, 44:3, 51:12,	47:12, 47:17, 55:4,	33:16, 33:19, 49:3,	76:25
33:5, 51:15, 51:15,	52:17, 54:22, 60:17,	58:16, 64:20	73:11, 77:6	Encourage (1):
52:12, 84:5, 84:8,	60:24, 71:1, 71:9,	Dramatically (1):	Eight (1): 26:5	10:19
84:14, 85:24	74:4, 76:19, 76:23,	30:13	Eighteen (1): 54:12	End (5): 24:16,
Dismissing (3):	80:17, 81:3, 81:15,	Draw (1): 41:18	Eightyone (1):	62:20, 63:6, 75:1,
33:22, 80:14, 81:10	81:15, 82:16, 82:17,	Drill (2): 41:9,	35:23	76:25
Dispose (1): 80:24	82:21	41:10	Eileen (1): 6:12	Enormously (1):
Disposition (2):	Dont (67): 5:6, 8:16,	Drive (1): 2:4	Either (14): 21:10,	38:7
74:8, 77:9	12:7, 13:4, 13:16,	Due (1): 75:2	25:8, 50:15, 53:7,	Enough (9): 5:24,
Disproved (1): 18:8	13:18, 14:3, 15:23,	During (3): 14:21,	55:19, 65:12, 66:6,	29:3, 29:4, 35:18,
Dispute (2): 29:17,	16:17, 17:9, 18:7,	17:24, 60:15		35:20, 35:21, 39:16,
39:20	18:21, 19:3, 20:10,	Duty (1): 64:9	72:12, 72:19, 77:14,	40:19, 75:2
	20:21, 20:22, 21:1,			Ensue (1): 22:7
-	23:6, 28:17, 28:19,	,	Electronic (1): 4:10	
Disregard (1): 18:16	, ,	-	Element (6): 33:18,	
5	1 2 1 3 7 3 7	ı	i , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	1 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *

41:12	49:22, 50:4, 54:14,	58:11	38:7, 46:25, 48:25,	59:14, 62:2, 64:11,
Entire (1): 61:13	1''	Expense (2): 24:14,		69:13, 69:16, 71:15,
	Everybody (14):	26:23	50:7, 70:16	77:14, 77:19, 78:10,
76:13, 80:19	17:15, 19:4, 22:18,	Ĭ	Factor (8): 72:1,	78:20, 79:2, 79:6,
Entities (4): 31:24,		Expensive (1):		79:18, 79:18, 80:8,
	69:11, 73:15, 81:16,	*		81:18
	81:17, 82:8, 82:11,			Faithful (1): 26:14
43:18	84:19, 86:8	75:15, 76:25		Fan (1): 59:10
Entity (4): 43:7,	Everybodys (1):	Experiential (1):		Far (3): 46:25, 65:3,
43:8, 65:22, 65:25	19:2	77:11		73:16
Entry (1): 80:21	*	Expert (2): 37:23,	Facts (7): 13:5,	Fashion (2): 17:2,
Equal (1): 78:10	Evidence (4): 53:11,			23:16
Equally (1): 75:21		Experts (2): 29:17,	34:21, 64:21, 79:10	Fault (3): 58:25,
Equals (1): 78:10	Exact (1): 81:7	53:21	Factual (1): 29:20	78:16, 79:5
Equitable (3):		Explaining (1): 74:4		Favorable (2):
26:11, 27:22, 75:10		Expressed (1): 64:7		64:14, 74:10
Escribers (2): 4:5,	74:5	Expressing (1): 81:9		Fee (1): 9:19
88:5	Example (3): 49:3,	Expressly (1): 22:9		Feel (4): 17:9,
Establishment (1):	71:12, 80:22	Extensive (1): 26:17	26:11, 27:12, 27:22,	55:18, 57:2, 69:3
42:19	Exceeds (1): 27:23	Extent (6): 38:2,	39:16, 41:17, 49:13,	Fence (1): 63:18
Estate (21): 23:21,	Exchanged (1):		50:6, 52:14, 75:10,	
23:22, 32:21, 34:15,	10:18	77:14, 79:4	77:9, 77:25, 78:12	66:22
36:5, 40:7, 40:8,	Excuse (3): 7:23,	Externally (1):	Fairly (3): 35:10,	Field (2): 29:16,
41:8, 43:2, 46:16,	32:1, 51:3	41:17	68:25, 75:19	59:9
47:24, 48:1, 48:4,	Executive (1): 65:11	Extort (1): 58:13	Fairness (1): 16:6	Fifteen (1): 66:12
48:7, 54:9, 54:12,	Exercise (5): 21:16,	Extract (1): 58:12	Faith (56): 10:20,	Fifty (2): 32:16,
54:19, 65:14, 65:24,	38:3, 57:25, 58:9,	Extreme (1): 79:19	15:8, 18:1, 22:13,	35:24
66:4, 72:22	68:17	Eye (1): 37:11	28:5, 28:5, 28:8,	Fiftyfour (1): 35:24
Estimation (3): 13:1,	Exercised (1): 59:4		29:1, 29:14, 29:18,	Fiftyplus (1): 35:24
37:21, 77:10	Exist (1): 58:18	F	29:21, 30:16, 30:25,	Figueroa (1): 3:11
Ethic (1): 74:24	Existed (1): 49:8	FINNEGAN (4):	31:1, 31:4, 31:8,	Figure (5): 39:12,
Ethics (1): 72:13	Exit (3): 13:2,	3:15, 5:14, 6:8, 6:20	33:17, 33:19, 33:22,	71:12, 74:24, 79:4,
Evaluate (1): 78:17	21:10, 23:11	Fabric (1): 70:8	34:1, 38:4, 43:14,	79:13
Evanston (1): 6:25	Expand (1): 40:7	Face (1): 75:8	43:16, 44:4, 44:11,	File (9): 15:19,
Eve (2): 32:12, 34:2	Expect (2): 8:14,	Facilitating (1):	46:10, 48:14, 48:18,	16:10, 16:18, 22:11,
Even (14): 13:16,	20:I	75:24	50:11, 53:12, 54:3,	40:6, 41:21, 46:17,
14:22, 17:11, 27:1,	Expectation (2):	Fact (15): 12:6,	55:8, 55:10, 55:13,	58:3, 79:8
35:2, 36:2, 39:18,		12:25, 14:20, 15:9,	57:2, 57:5, 57:22,	Filed (28): 9:15,
47:7, 48:19, 49:7,	Expenditures (1):	23:10, 29:5, 30:8,	58:21, 59:1, 59:8,	10:8, 11:9, 11:10,

11:10, 11:11, 14:19,	Firms (1): 59:9	78:15	Funds (3): 24:17,	Glean (1): 48:6
		Four (2): 59:9,		Gleefully (2): 47:9,
	17:20, 18:13, 24:12,		Funny (1): 39:2	51:13
	30:17, 32:13, 34:24,		1	Global (3): 21:2,
	36:11, 38:11, 42:16,		17:19, 43:15, 64:17,	82:21, 85:6
		33:10		Goals (1): 26:16
49:9, 51:13, 55:3,	45:12, 45:14, 53:2,	Fourth (8): 21:3,	82:20	God (1): 40:11
55:16, 69:13, 69:16		21:15, 21:18, 21:21,	Future (1): 25:5	Goes (4): 16:1, 23:6,
Files (1): 79:7	72:1, 72:20, 73:22,	33:16, 33:18, 77:6,		24:4, 78:11
Filing (21): 10:5,	78:4	82:18	G	Good (53): 5:11,
11:15, 20:11, 30:2,	Fish (1): 66:1	Francisco (2): 2:11,	GABRIELLE (1):	5:14, 5:17, 5:20,
30:9, 30:17, 32:25,	Fits (1): 19:24	41:10	2:7	6:2, 6:5, 6:7, 6:8,
33:4, 33:16, 33:22,	Five (4): 26:5, 50:8,	Fraudulent (1):	GALLAGHER (1):	6:14, 6:15, 6:20,
35:3, 36:16, 36:17,	59:12, 68:14	51:18	3:36	6:24, 7:20, 8:9,
43:15, 46:9, 68:24,	Fka (1): 3:22	Free (1): 78:11	GEORGE (1): 3:15	8:11, 8:12, 8:14,
73:16, 73:19, 73:22,	Focus (2): 38:6,	Frequently (1):	Gabrielle (1): 6:2	10:20, 15:8, 31:23,
80:10, 82:18	70:23	I I:20	Gain (1): 48:23	31:25, 31:25, 32:2,
Filings (3): 29:19,	Foley (6): 5:8, 5:12,	Fresh (1): 77:3	Gaining (1): 10:23	39:16, 43:10, 45:15,
33:14, 34:7	5:14, 6:12, 9:8, 26:3	Friars (1): 59:14	Gainsay (1): 81:3	45:24, 52:15, 53:2,
Final (1): 31:11	Folks (9): 7:2,	Friday (2): 13:8,	Gall (1): 49:21	57:2, 57:4, 58:21,
Finally (2): 31:13,	22:11, 31:20, 63:2,	14:11	Gallagher (9): 8:9,	58:25, 59:8, 60:7,
48:16	70:16, 70:24, 71:8,	Front (5): 49:21,	55:23, 55:24, 60:12,	60:8, 62:2, 73:25,
Financial (1): 79:12	75:14, 79:22	71:17, 71:17, 71:18,	60:22, 61:2, 62:24,	75:2, 76:23, 81:2,
Find (7): 24:22,	Followed (1): 14:17	79:23	63:3, 85:9	81:15, 81:17, 82:16,
25:7, 34:9, 69:14,	Following (9): 9:16,	Fruit (1): 25:18	Gallery (1): 63:9	82:17, 82:20, 83:2,
69:16, 78:20, 80:8	12:15, 17:24, 28:8,	Frustrate (2): 73:19,	Game (1): 45:11	84:17, 85:13, 85:23,
Finding (9): 30:1,	43:5, 49:23, 50:19,	74:18	General (2): 34:4,	86:6, 86:8, 86:9
33:21, 46:4, 55:12,		Frustrating (1):	74:24	Goodfaith (1):
59:16, 71:24, 71:25,	Footnote (1): 14:14	73:13	Generally (1): 70:3	61:12
72:18, 80:12	Force (1): 35:7	Fulbright (2): 2:20,	Generically (2):	Governs (2): 36:13,
Findings (1): 59:14	Forces (1): 35:15	6:9	60:16, 60:20	36:14
Fine (6): 20:21,	Foregoing (1): 88:2	Function (1): 76:9	Generous (1): 33:20	Grand (1): 3:30
61:14, 77:16, 81:9,	Forget (1): 47:2	Functions (1): 77:1	Germane (1): 13:17	Grant (3): 31:9,
81:14, 84:11	Form (1): 67:3	Fund (3): 29:6,	Gets (1): 56:16	42:2, 55:12
Finer (1): 41:18	Forth (4): 33:9,	47:25, 48:4	Given (3): 19:15,	Granted (2): 16:10,
Finnegan (1): 6:21	44:14, 48:13, 72:23	Fundamental (2):	20:1, 83:20	87:3
Firm (3): 13:7, 13:8,	1 7			Grateful (1): 57:8
17:25	Forward (5): 35:16,	Fundamentally (1):	Glad (2): 15:5,	Gravitates (1):
Firmly (1): 77:7	58:2, 59:7, 64:9,	57:13	75:14	67:11

Great (2): 14:16,	Hasnt (6): 25:18,	61:6	 25:19, 25:22, 25:24,	Hopefully (2): 74:7,
81:15	''' '	Heres (9): 56:9,		75:18
Greater (1): 70:3	71:13, 71:14	79:9, 79:9, 79:9,		Hopes (2): 10:22,
Ground (1): 11:6	Hate (1): 49:18		28:23, 29:13, 29:19,	-
	Havent (18): 12:17,		30:15, 30:18, 31:5,	
Group (1): 58:23	12:17, 12:18, 13:16,			Horrible (2): 47:13,
Guess (4): 73:17,		High (2): 58:11,		75:11
78:19, 78:20, 82:22		72:15		Horribly (3): 76:18,
	45:15, 45:21, 51:5,	Highlevel (1): 35:10		1
Guilty (1): 70:22		Highly (2): 16:21,		Horrific (2): 75:12,
Guys (4): 66:21,	70:16, 71:20	79:20		76:24
67:24, 77:21, 84:9	Hawaii (1): 12:11	Hilco (1): 29:15	39:17, 40:17, 41:19,	Hours (1): 75:13
	Hear (14): 11:17,	Himself (1): 35:13	42:1, 42:17, 43:16,	Houses (1): 63:18
Н	11:25, 16:2, 22:2,	Historically (1):	45:17, 45:19, 45:19,	Hudson (1): 3:2
Half (1): 26:13	45:16, 46:5, 47:20,	65:22	46:8, 46:22, 47:10,	Huge (1): 59:10
Hand (3): 8:25,	48:10, 50:14, 62:7,	History (2): 33:14,	47:20, 47:23, 48:5,	Hundred (1): 23:5
56:16, 63:1	62:8, 63:2, 64:25,	34:7	48:13, 48:16, 49:3,	Hypothetical (2):
Handle (2): 11:4,	76:18	Homes (1): 54:18	49:4, 49:5, 49:7,	45:11, 71:7
11:5	Heard (14): 20:19,	Honor (165): 5:8,	49:9, 49:12, 49:14,	
Hands (2): 12:9,	22:9, 52:2, 53:6,	5:11, 5:17, 5:20,	49:18, 49:24, 50:6,	Ι
63:9	56:19, 59:20, 61:15,	5:23, 6:5, 6:8, 6:12,	50:11, 50:14, 50:15,	IL (1): 3:6
Hang(1): 61:3	61:17, 64:23, 84:4,	6:15, 6:20, 6:24,	50:18, 50:22, 51:12,	Id (6): 7:6, 9:10,
Hanging (1): 22:13	84:23, 85:7, 85:9,	7:4, 7:15, 7:20,	51:16, 52:17, 52:22,	9:23, 20:19, 59:11,
11 1/2/ / 1/			53:8, 53:24, 54:4,	61:1
67:16, 80:21, 81:13,	Hearing (14): 10:14,	8:16, 9:1, 9:6, 9:9,	54:21, 54:24, 55:11,	Idea (5): 47:13,
85:24	17:3, 17:24, 18:23,	9:15, 9:21, 10:4,	55:22, 56:17, 57:10,	48:9, 55:20, 77:2,
Happened (9): 17:8,	19:24, 21:21, 25:24,	10:12, 10:12, 10:13,	57:24, 59:7, 59:8,	84:17
17:13, 18:3, 18:9,	27:18, 49:5, 49:12,	10:22, 12:2, 12:5,	59:15, 59:18, 59:21,	Ignore (1): 18:19
40:14, 41:1, 58:19,	50:19, 62:13, 73:7,			III (15): 12:3, 12:15,
2.71			61:17, 62:6, 62:13,	19:21, 20:22, 22:9,
	Hearings (2): 50:23,			24:6, 24:11, 26:4,
			83:11, 84:4, 84:21,	50:18, 61:9, 66:13,
	Hedge (1): 66:5			68:12, 70:2, 75:6,
Hard (7): 22:17,		18:10, 18:22, 19:9,		79:3
27:15, 56:21, 71:12,		20:3, 20:13, 20:16,		Im (63): 6:16, 7:18,
71:24, 77:18, 84:7		20:24, 21:19, 21:24,	_	7:25, 9:22, 11:9,
•	46:15, 56:25, 63:5,			14:7, 15:5, 16:3,
Harm (1): 75:14		23:17, 24:1, 24:4,		16:4, 17:17, 18:4,
Harmed (1): 76:7	Helpful (2): 15:4,	25:6, 25:6, 25:12,	80:17	18:12, 19:8, 20:7,

22:16, 25:25, 26:4,	Include (2): 20:10	Insolvent (6): 22:24	Interface (1): 56:20	25.4 25.17 26.2
28:15, 31:25, 37:13,			Internally (1): 41:17	
38:11, 39:12, 41:11,			Internationally (1):	
45:10, 54:16, 56:3,		Instance (1): 30:17	1	37:12, 38:10, 38:11,
	'			
56:7, 58:19, 59:10,	_		Interrupt (1): 11:13	
60:19, 61:16, 62:10,				39:2, 39:18, 40:8,
62:10, 62:10, 62:20,	l ,	Institution (1):	19:12, 20:20, 28:4,	
66:14, 67:4, 67:19,		75:22	28:19, 57:23, 60:19,	
69:11, 69:18, 70:3,		Insufficient (1):		42:15, 42:17, 42:18,
71:2, 71:20, 71:24,	l · · · ·	24:16	71:2, 72:14, 73:12,	
72:10, 72:11, 73:7,		Insurance (11):		46:15, 46:15, 48:14,
74:18, 75:14, 76:11,		2:13, 2:32, 3:1,		49:1, 49:1, 49:8,
76:22, 78:14, 78:15,	Incorporating (1):	6:16, 7:21, 10:24,	Involved (5): 56:23,	
78:19, 79:4, 80:4,	57:4	24:21, 50:4, 63:25,	56:23, 71:8, 76:13,	55:13, 55:15, 55:24,
80:7, 80:10, 81:3,	Increased (1): 27:12	85:15, 85:20	85:23	56:4, 56:10, 57:11,
81:10, 83:13, 84:12,	Indeed (2): 12:19,	Insurer (1): 31:24	Involves (1): 79:15	57:21, 58:4, 59:2,
86:3	70:11	Insurers (16): 6:25,	Is (208): 8:1, 8:20,	59:4, 59:6, 59:12,
Immediately (1):	Indeterminate (1):	15:1, 21:13, 26:21,	10:7, 10:8, 10:10,	59:14, 59:16, 60:12,
85:5	32:18	27:14, 27:16, 28:11,	10:16, 10:19, 11:19,	60:13, 60:25, 61:7,
Impaired (1): 47:11	Indicate (2): 80:13,	32:6, 56:18, 58:25,	12:6, 12:8, 12:18,	62:6, 63:24, 64:3,
Impairing (1): 58:8	84:7	60:16, 60:20, 61:11,	12:23, 13:14, 13:15,	64:4, 64:6, 65:10,
Impediment (2):	Indicated (2): 34:24,	62:1, 71:19, 85:10	13:17, 15:4, 16:1,	66:9, 67:3, 67:9,
80:14, 81:4	65:6	Insurerstancred (1):	16:12, 17:7, 17:14,	67:14, 68:22, 69:9,
Imperative (1):	Indisputable (1):	2:25	17:20, 17:24, 18:18,	69:13, 69:15, 69:20,
83:22	34:21	Insurerstimothy (1):	19:1, 19:2, 19:2,	69:23, 69:25, 70:21,
Implied (1): 65:9	Individual (1):	3:28	19:22, 21:19, 21:20,	72:1, 72:7, 72:11,
Important (12):	21:13	Integral (1): 71:6	21:23, 22:4, 22:13,	72:12, 73:10, 73:12,
14:14, 19:8, 22:7,	Inequitable (2):	Integrity (2): 69:3,	22:21, 23:20, 23:23,	73:12, 73:15, 73:17,
26:10, 50:24, 75:20,	33:13, 34:13	72:14	24:2, 24:2, 24:8,	73:20, 74:6, 74:22,
75:21, 75:22, 76:18,	Inevitably (1): 70:5	Intended (2): 33:15,	24:12, 24:19, 25:4,	74:23, 74:23, 75:1,
77:1, 77:2, 80:12	Infer (1): 85:10	36:7	25:5, 25:20, 25:22,	75:4, 75:8, 75:9,
Importantly (1):	Inform (1): 82:23	Intensive (1): 26:17	25:23, 26:19, 26:22,	75:15, 75:16, 75:17,
21:24	Information (1):	Intent (1): 54:3	27:12, 27:17, 27:22,	75:22, 75:25, 76:5,
Importing (1): 73:25	48:6	Intention (1): 33:3	27:24, 28:9, 29:2,	76:6, 76:8, 76:9,
Impression (1):				76:17, 76:20, 76:20,
			30:8, 31:1, 31:4,	
Impure (1): 48:22				77:19, 78:11, 78:13,
Incidents (1): 34:11			33:10, 33:17, 33:20,	
Inclined (1): 25:22			33:21, 33:23, 34:7,	
	=	=	=	=

79:17, 80:2, 80:6,	Join (2): 35:15, 61:9	2:14, 2:20, 2:27,	Leaves (1): 17:12	Liquidated (3):
80:13, 80:14, 80:18,			Leavitt (8): 33:10,	54:13, 77:8, 77:25
81:1, 81:2, 81:4,	Joked (1): 5:25	Lack (1): 80:4	36:7, 69:9, 72:1,	Liquidation (7):
81:4, 81:6, 81:17,	Judge (12): 5:25,	Laid (1): 64:15	72:10, 73:9, 74:3,	29:9, 29:11, 29:15,
82:13, 82:16, 83:9,	10:25, 25:10, 33:18,	Lane (1): 60:10	77:5	52:17, 52:20, 77:9,
83:13, 84:5, 84:5,	38:12, 60:12, 60:21,	Language (3):	Lectern (1): 69:22	78:5
84:7, 84:10, 84:12,	61:2, 63:5, 74:1,	25:18, 47:2, 72:23	Led (1): 85:19	Listed (2): 48:2,
87:3, 88:2	79:25, 85:7	Lardner (6): 5:9,	Lee (4): 5:12, 49:13,	48:8
Isnt (7): 67:13,	Judgment (1): 21:17	5:12, 5:15, 6:13,	49:19, 53:14	Listen (1): 82:9
73:11, 73:13, 77:12,	Jump (1): 22:18	9:8, 26:3	Left (3): 16:19,	Listening (1): 7:15
78:2, 78:9, 80:19	Jurisdictions (1):	Large (3): 10:7,	49:19, 67:23	Listings (1): 63:18
Issue (11): 16:11,	36:20	37:18, 63:18	Legal (1): 17:22	Literally (1): 46:19
22:6, 25:1, 40:8,	Jurors (1): 31:12	Larger (2): 54:10,	Length (1): 70:3	Litigating (1): 45:1
42:4, 42:17, 44:3,	Justice (1): 32:17	54:15	Lengthy (1): 81:19	Litigation (9):
44:6, 44:7, 56:19,		Last (10): 9:4, 9:16,	Less (2): 27:16,	10:23, 33:16, 34:2,
61:10	K	10:8, 11:15, 17:21,	30:22	34:13, 36:8, 73:24,
Issues (15): 11:7,	Keep (5): 20:2,	20:11, 36:17, 36:17,	Lets (13): 7:16,	79:8, 79:8, 85:19
11:22, 12:1, 13:17,	35:18, 35:20, 48:2,	49:4, 79:3	7:18, 11:25, 24:5,	Little (9): 24:25,
23:3, 34:20, 40:5,	86:3	Lastly (2): 70:13,	26:1, 43:6, 44:2,	34:3, 36:24, 41:18,
57:8, 59:8, 70:4,	Keller (2): 2:8, 6:2	79:3	45:9, 51:8, 75:8,	48:11, 55:18, 69:21,
70:7, 77:8, 77:23,	Kemner (1): 5:18	Late (1): 37:19	76:23, 79:13, 84:8	72:4, 84:1
79:23, 83:22	Kettle (1): 66:1	Latefiled (1): 10:5	Letter (2): 36:12,	Live (2): 39:4, 63:15
Itll (1): 68:5	Key (2): 44:13,	Later (2): 24:16,	84:3	Lived (1): 69:5
Ive (7): 9:3, 53:1,	65:20	83:23	Level (1): 72:18	Livermore (4):
53:5, 57:12, 59:11,	Kim (2): 2:8, 6:3	Latter (1): 18:17	Levels (1): 69:8	29:23, 29:24, 34:15,
66:19, 83:20	Kind (12): 37:12,	Law (12): 13:8,	Liability (1): 36:14	73:2
	45:10, 68:12, 69:25,	17:21, 17:25, 29:12,	Liars (1): 30:20	Lives (1): 75:19
J	70:1, 70:4, 70:8,	36:12, 36:13, 36:13,	Liberality (1): 11:16	Loan (3): 65:12,
JACOBS (1): 3:1	73:10, 74:12, 77:25,	36:21, 43:1, 43:2,	Lifelong (1): 75:15	65:13, 65:17
Jackson (1): 3:17	79:18, 81:19	73:19, 79:9	Lift (2): 9:18, 10:9	Locations (1): 54:16
Jacobs (2): 6:15,	Kinds (2): 70:7,	Lawyers (2): 29:18,	Light (1): 13:10	Loewenstein (1):
60:9	72:17	56:24	Liked (1): 42:7	63:22
Jason (1): 7:7	Known (1): 49:7	Layers (1): 69:20	Likelihood (2):	Logistical (1): 56:11
Jay (1): 7:7	Knows (3): 60:21,	Leads (1): 36:6	47:16, 85:6	Logistics (2): 11:6,
Jeff (8): 3:16, 5:20,	60:22, 68:15	Least (5): 7:23,	Line (3): 59:12,	11:23
6:21, 15:14, 23:15,		1 3:25, 27:8, 54:5,	70:21, 71:24	London (2): 3:28,
32:8, 63:12, 85:2	L	55:22	Lines (1): 24:16	6:25
Jersey (1): 16:19	LLC (1): 4:5	Leave (4): 77:3,	Liquidate (2):	Long (1): 39:20
Jogging (1): 14:18	LLP (8): 2:3, 2:8,	81:7, 81:25, 84:12	65:14, 65:16	Longer (8): 24:13,

24:17, 24:22, 25:10	MN (1): 2:10	20:1 20:17 22:11	11:7, 11:23, 11:25,	Merits (4): 20:20
	Macarthur (1): 3:24			24:2, 51:16, 59:16
68:20	Madison (1): 2:17			Met (2): 12:6, 33:6
Longterm (1): 72:8	Main (1): 75:15			Mic (1): 5:25
Look (9): 18:18,	Maintained (1):	1	14:21, 16:25, 17:5,	
33:8, 33:24, 41:12,	36:16	65:16, 67:12, 70:14,		Might (16): 15:19,
46:22, 53:4, 58:15,	Makes (3): 21:17,	70:16, 74:10, 77:16,		27:15, 37:4, 41:10,
69:8, 79:1	21:19, 50:2		18:11, 18:15, 18:19,	
Looked (2): 57:1,	Making (4): 64:3,		24:19, 25:17, 25:18,	
77:17	64:4, 74:19, 76:14	Maybe (12): 19:18,		
	Manipulated (1):	I	28:12, 30:22, 46:13,	
Looking (4): 35:14,	_			
39:14, 72:10, 72:11			48:17, 48:17, 49:2,	
Looks (1): 8:1	Manipulation (1):	66:12, 71:9, 71:19,		
Lord (1): 37:2	34:13		49:23, 49:25, 50:2,	
Los (3): 3:13, 3:32,	Manner (3): 33:13,		l' ' ' ' ' ' '	43:19, 43:19
56:25	37:10, 80:6	18:18, 19:20, 20:8,		Mind (6): 18:14,
Lost (1): 50:24	Manns (1): 6:9		58:20, 60:14, 60:15,	
Lot (14): 13:5,	Many (9): 11:20,		60:21, 60:22, 60:23,	
22:22, 39:2, 39:2,	47:14, 47:14, 59:11,		1 ,	Ministry (3): 26:13,
47:14, 56:23, 57:23		1	64:1, 70:19, 71:1	54:19, 54:20
68:23, 69:22, 71:18			Mediator (11): 3:35,	Ministryrelated (1):
74:4, 76:23, 77:1,	Marick (1): 3:29	73:11, 75:7, 80:15,		54:11
80:25	Marie (3): 5:8, 9:8,	80:22, 81:10, 83:19,	8:21, 15:12, 49:21,	Minute (3): 31:17,
Loud (1): 53:6	26:2	83:25, 84:16, 84:19	50:21, 64:25, 65:1,	68:3, 82:8
Love (1): 40:11	Market (3): 3:28,	Meandering (1):	65:2	Minutes (5): 9:10,
Lowenstein (7): 2:3,	6:25, 48:3	83:10	Mediators (21):	9:23, 26:5, 66:13,
2:4, 5:21, 6:6, 13:8,	Mass (3): 35:18,	Meaningful (2):	12:10, 12:16, 12:20,	67:24
14:18, 59:12	37:18, 73:23	67:13, 75:24	13:24, 14:10, 15:7,	Miranda (1): 7:20
Luck (1): 86:8	Material (1): 73:1	Means (3): 29:3,	21:5, 21:7, 27:10,	Misrepresentation
	Matt (1): 5:11	29:4, 70:12	27:18, 30:24, 30:24,	(1): 73:10
M	Matter (6): 27:25,	Meant (1): 52:11	46:12, 49:1, 49:15,	Misrepresentations
MANNS (1): 2:19	29:17, 37:7, 49:14,	Meantime (1):	50:5, 50:22, 51:2,	(4): 34:4, 34:12,
MAP (2): 35:14,	69:6, 73:22	47:24	55:17, 55:19, 71:3	72:2, 73:8
54:4	Matters (2): 17:1,	Mediate (2): 10:20,	Members (3): 7:7,	Misrepresented (2):
MDL (1): 74:12	68:23			33:11, 70:17
MICHAEL (2):	Matthew (1): 5:17	I	Memory (3): 14:18,	
3:15, 3:40		9:17, 9:21, 10:10,	1	35:5, 54:4, 54:14,
MIRANDA (1):	1 *			57:16
	11/.19, 1/.23, 10.1,	110.11, 10.14, 10.10,	ITAICITUOIT (I). I O. /	15 / • 10
2:32		10:17, 10:14, 10:10,		Misspoke (1): 52:9

Mistake (1): 80:6	19:12, 23:17, 24:2,	Necessary (1):	Nobody (3): 55:16,	5:5, 6:22, 11:8,
Mix (1): 22:17	24:2, 24:3, 25:12,	54:19		33:11, 34:11, 36:21,
•	25:13, 25:14, 25:22,	l´ ' ´	Noncommittee (1):	I
Modifying (1): 58:8		18:2, 19:3, 20:8,		Numbers (2): 15:4,
Moments (1): 66:22		22:10, 35:3, 47:24,	Nonconsensual (1):	
Monetize (1): 66:2			24:17	
Money (12): 24:22,		Needed (2): 47:11,	Nondebtor (2):	О
24:23, 27:15, 28:10,	50:15, 55:12, 67:2,	72:23	51:22, 63:1	OAKLAND (1):
35:21, 41:2, 46:24,	87:3	Needs (2): 34:17,	None (2): 50:22,	5:1
47:14, 47:21, 47:25,	Motions (1): 48:3	64:5	80:2	OCTOBER (1): 5:1
48:12,65:21	Motives (2): 48:21,	Negligent (1): 32:14	Nonetheless (1):	OPF (5): 2:19, 6:10,
Montgomery (1):	48:22	Negotiate (1): 64:13	29:24	34:14, 72:3, 72:20
2:9	Move (2): 28:18,	Negotiated (2):	Nonprofits (1): 43:3	Oakland (6): 4:3,
Monthly (1): 58:11	51:8	37:12,85:7	Nor (9): 21:2,	5:4, 30:19, 32:12,
Months (5): 26:9,	Moved (1): 26:6	Negotiation (3):	30:19, 30:21, 48:5,	53:24, 55:8
28:4, 30:22, 47:14,	Much (10): 11:13,	10:24, 78:11, 78:22	48:6, 55:9, 71:1,	Object (3): 10:4,
54:22	12:23, 15:2, 54:2,	Neighbor (1): 59:11	71:3, 78:20	10:25, 51:3
Moot (1): 68:22	60:13, 66:8, 67:17,	Neighborhood (1):	North (1): 3:4	Objected (2): 44:19,
More (22): 24:21,	68:19, 86:1, 86:5	63:18	Norton (1): 6:9	81:5
24:25, 26:13, 27:6,	Multiple (1): 64:16	Neither (1): 30:19	Notable (1): 58:1	Objecting (1): 23:25
28:10, 32:13, 36:24,	Must (3): 24:20,	Neutral (2): 11:6,	Note (6): 11:19,	Objection (5):
39:18, 48:11, 50:3,	77:8, 77:8	I I:22	14:20, 50:22, 64:11,	11:24, 28:12, 29:9,
52:19, 52:22, 53:23,	Myers (1): 2:27	New (3): 2:30,	76:11, 79:22	46:18, 54:8
54:17, 58:16, 73:1,	Myself (2): 7:18,	16:19, 57:4	Notes (2): 20:6,	Objections (2):
74:10, 76:3, 76:3,	41:5	Newport (1): 3:26	67:23	28:1, 64:15
77:15, 77:22, 84:1		Newsome (4): 8:20,	Notice (1): 23:21	Objectives (1):
Morning (3): 16:20,	N	60:13, 60:21, 61:2	Noticed (1): 68:1	26:10
31:23, 31:25	NEWSOME (1):	Next (7): 22:7, 26:1,	Notion (1): 79:12	Observed (1): 26:22
Moses (1): 5:14	3:38	45:2, 47:17, 49:16,	Notwithstanding	Obtain (1): 23:18
Most (14): 14:19,	NJ (1): 2:5	63:15, 73:17	(2): 27:10, 63:5	Obvious (1): 83:20
27:14, 30:2, 30:9,	NW (1): 2:35	Nice (9): 6:4, 6:11,	November (14):	Obviously (4):
37:12, 38:9, 49:3,	NY (1): 2:30	6:18, 7:1, 7:9, 8:22,	21:8, 21:24, 22:16,	39:20, 54:25, 68:13,
53:20, 64:13, 66:4,	Name (3): 54:10,	8:23, 63:13, 71:4	31:10, 47:22, 50:16,	73:3
75:20, 76:3, 77:23,	54:12,65:15	Night (4): 9:16,	55:13, 56:10, 62:20,	Off (1): 67:16
79:18	Naturally (1): 67:11	17:21, 20:11, 36:17	81:11, 81:23, 84:7,	Offer (5): 14:21,
Motion (35): 9:12,	Naughty (1): 71:4	Nights (1): 9:4	87:4, 88:8	15:7, 49:10, 49:20,
10:2, 10:9, 11:8,	Near (1): 69:17	Ninth (5): 33:8,	Nowhere (1): 59:14	[· · · · ·
11:9, 11:19, 15:18,	Necessarily (3):	33:9, 33:23, 69:9,		Offered (4): 27:16,
16:8, 16:23, 17:24,	45:15, 77:24, 79:15	69:12	Number (8): 5:5,	28:11, 60:2, 77:16

Offering (2): 28:9,	Open (3): 35:12,	26:14, 33:20, 64:1	Own (1): 53:11	86:4
77:15	58:5, 84:12		Owned (2): 42:9,	Pacific (3): 2:25,
Offers (1): 27:15	Opened (1): 15:18	33:13, 57:16, 58:18,		32:5, 56:18
Official (1): 2:1	_	61:16, 67:14, 72:14		Page (3): 24:12,
Often (1): 78:18	68:13	Ourselves (2):		65:11, 75:25
Old (1): 84:2	Operate (2): 54:16,	30:21, 30:25	P	Pageandahalf (1):
Omelveny (2): 2:27,	_		PM (1): 5:1	20:6
56:21	Operating (2):	19:16, 23:11, 24:22,		Pages (1): 29:24
Once (2): 34:6,	58:16, 81:17	25:20, 37:6, 38:12,	-	Pains (2): 13:10,
52:22	Operation (1): 35:9	39:12, 42:18, 47:20,		13:11
One (56): 2:4, 7:6,	Operations (2):		15:16, 15:22, 15:25,	Panel (1): 33:9
11:8, 14:15, 15:18,	29:3, 54:23		16:6, 16:16, 17:5,	Paper (2): 19:17,
17:19, 17:22, 19:19,	Operative (1): 35:4	68:1, 68:2, 71:12,	20:19, 23:15, 24:4,	34:19
23:4, 29:9, 31:17,	Opportunity (7):	74:24, 79:4, 79:13,	24:6, 24:8, 25:2,	Papers (1): 25:17
33:11, 35:17, 37:10,	16:10, 16:20, 31:12,	82:9, 85:21	25:4, 32:8, 37:4,	Parcel (3): 36:4,
37:13, 37:14, 38:8,	49:20, 55:5, 61:5,	Outcome (10): 27:8,	37:16, 37:21, 38:5,	48:7, 54:10
40:15, 50:24, 51:13,	65:2		38:16, 38:18, 38:19,	Parcels (3): 54:9,
53:7, 53:14, 53:20,	Oppose (2): 23:16,	58:24, 59:4, 67:10,	38:21, 38:22, 39:1,	54:12, 65:15
54:2, 54:16, 54:24,	25:21	74:10, 77:25, 78:14	39:2, 39:6, 39:8,	Parish (2): 35:21,
56:19, 58:20, 58:24,	Opposed (2): 18:16,	Outofstate (1):	39:9, 39:13, 39:17,	35:22
59:3, 59:16, 61:20,	67:3	58:23	40:2, 40:13, 40:16,	Parishes (3): 35:23,
63:10, 64:6, 64:10,	Opposite (1): 30:13	Outset (1): 10:13	40:19, 40:21, 41:2,	35:24, 58:16
65:21, 67:20, 67:21,	Optimism (1): 85:6	Outside (3): 22:4,	41:4, 41:18, 41:21,	Part (12): 27:14,
69:9, 69:20, 72:6,	Option (2): 25:6,	22:16, 31:10	42:1, 42:4, 42:7,	28:8, 35:14, 37:18,
72:9, 73:16, 73:20,	67:15	Over (15): 9:22,	42:8, 42:9, 42:15,	39:10, 54:10, 54:15,
74:18, 74:23, 74:23,	Oral (2): 10:17,		43:1, 43:2, 43:13,	57:14, 64:12, 76:12,
75:5, 75:6, 75:17,	83:4	34:13, 42:21, 46:18,		76:12, 83:8
	Orally (1): 19:18	47:17, 59:3, 59:9,	44:12, 44:18, 44:20,	Participants (1):
	Order (13): 5:3,		44:23, 45:6, 45:9,	80:1
Ones (1): 17:20		74:16, 85:20	45:17, 45:19, 45:22,	
Ongoing (1): 62:15		Overall (1): 74:20		58:21, 62:2
Only (14): 27:22,	47:25, 48:4, 66:2,	Overarching (1):	46:8, 47:5, 47:7,	Participating (2):
28:2, 33:15, 33:18,	80:21, 83:3, 86:6	57:11	49:18, 51:3, 51:4,	7:12, 7:13
34:6, 36:7, 36:17,	Orders (1): 83:10	Overly (1): 33:20		Participation (2):
38:5, 48:19, 50:3,	Organization (1):	Override (1): 58:1	1 7 7 7	61:12, 61:12
70:2, 73:16, 76:7,	42:20	Overrule (2): 11:24,		Particular (3):
79:22	Organizations (1):	81:6	65:5, 65:20, 66:4,	42:21, 48:20, 70:9
Ooo (1): 5:2	43:4	Overwhelming (1):		Particularly (4):
Opaque (1): 72:4	Others (4): 8:19,	47:8	85:2, 85:13, 85:18,	14:14, 72:8, 74:15,

77:2 I	70:14, 71:5, 71:8,	75:17, 77:19	Please (3): 25:1,	82:17, 82:20
Parties (15): 8:25,	75:12, 76:7, 76:8,	Ping (1): 64:7		Possibly (1): 83:11
10:20, 11:1, 11:16,	76:24, 78:7, 78:12,	Pingponged (1):	Pleases (1): 9:13	Pot (1): 41:16
12:6, 16:18, 21:3,	79:15, 80:18, 81:12	01 0		Potentially (4):
21:4, 22:8, 31:11,	Peoples (1): 75:24	Pivot (1): 9:12	Plevin (1): 2:34	17:14, 18:9, 46:23,
31:12, 55:20, 74:16,	_	Place (4): 19:21,	Pm (1): 86:11	79:25
74:19, 82:23	52:21, 58:15	38:11, 63:7, 69:11	Podium (1): 47:9	Power (1): 74:2
Parts (1): 16:25	Perfect (1): 23:2	Plain (2): 29:5,		Practice (2): 37:19,
	_	82:22		1
Party (5): 14:5,	l '`'		' ' ' '	42:20 Prostings (2): = (12.2)
16:17, 65:17, 78:13,	_	Plaintiffs (1): 58:23		Practices (1): 76:15
78:16	28:10, 72:4		43:7, 43:8, 44:2,	Precedent (1):
Pascal (1): 84:2	Period (1): 80:10	21:15, 21:18, 21:21,		79:21
Pass (1): 57:17	Perishable (1):	21:22, 24:14, 24:15,		Predicted (1): 47:7
Passed (1): 68:20	80:24	24:17, 26:24, 33:12,		Prefer (1): 10:6
	Permeated (1): 55:2		79:3, 80:14, 81:4,	Prejudice (21):
Patently (1): 46:9	Permissible (1):		82:10, 82:11, 83:13,	· ·
Path (4): 46:15,	18:7	40:20, 44:18, 44:21,		22:16, 25:9, 26:7,
46:19, 46:20, 46:21	Permission (1): 58:3			28:3, 30:5, 31:11,
Paths (1): 46:14	Permitted (1): 58:9	47:15, 47:16, 47:17,	Points (4): 18:13,	33:2, 33:5, 33:8,
Paul (1): 3:19	Persisted (1): 47:18	48:10, 48:12, 53:25,	50:19, 53:23, 63:11	34:10, 46:6, 48:15,
Pause (4): 22:23,	Perspective (6):	54:1, 54:5, 54:5,	Polar (1): 30:13	50:12, 68:12, 69:15,
40:18, 46:12, 68:7	23:4, 27:9, 37:7,	55:3, 56:22, 57:4,	Pong (1): 64:7	72:19, 80:9, 87:4
Pay (11): 12:23,	37:8, 38:8, 41:16	58:3, 58:5, 58:20,	Poor (1): 76:24	Prejudiced (3):
13:15, 24:10, 27:2,	Perspectives (1):	59:4, 59:12, 59:14,	Portion (3): 10:7,	57:19, 68:24, 72:25
27:4, 27:13, 27:23,	54:25	59:17, 59:24, 63:23,	10:10, 16:24	Prejudicial (2):
35:21, 54:6, 54:18,	Persuade (1): 40:2	63:23, 64:20, 64:22,	Portions (1): 54:12	16:22, 25:21
76:24	Petition (3): 32:25,	65:6, 65:14, 74:25,	Posit (1): 39:8	Prejudicing (1):
Paying (2): 21:21,		76:13, 82:18, 85:18		
	Pew (1): 76:8	Plans (1): 30:23	18:21, 21:7, 22:21,	Premise (1): 75:9
Payment (1): 34:3	Phase (1): 26:1	Play (1): 25:20	27:21, 27:24, 44:9,	Prerogative (1):
Peace (1): 82:9		Playing (1): 45:11		76:21
Pend (1): 85:20	88:7	Plays (2): 59:8, 67:7		Present (9): 21:1,
Pending (2): 26:24,	Physically (1):		Positions (7): 22:8,	21:8, 21:14, 33:17,
40:9		Pleading (4): 16:13,	·	35:5, 68:21, 77:24,
	Piece (4): 42:1,	16:20, 36:25, 68:17		78:3, 78:6
2:35	75:17, 75:20, 75:21		Possibility (3): 81:2,	l'
= -	Piecemeal (2): 19:4,	_	, -	35:13,67:6
=		33:3, 48:19, 48:19,		- · · ·
			15:3, 32:22, 55:19,	_
- 2·-, ~ 2·- 3; / ··/;	I (3/, 11.),	177.12, 0 4 .10	I- 7.7, 7 ~.~ , 77.13,	h-v. 2.2 4

Presently (2): 63:24,	79:20	63:2, 63:10, 63:12,	64:8	 35:20
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Problems (2): 35:17,			
Preserved (2): 27:4,	l	85:2	55:4	R
		Prols (2): 18:14,	Providing (1): 75:23	RANDALL (1):
Preside (1): 74:16	76:15		_	3:38
Press (1): 24:24	Proceed (3): 25:13,	Promise (1): 12:4	Public (1): 48:7	RCBO (1): 6:13
Pretty (2): 35:25,	25:14, 32:22	Promised (1): 48:1	Puebla (1): 3:9	RCC (4): 2:19, 6:9,
72:15	Proceeding (7):	Promptly (2): 32:22,		65:13, 65:13
Prevailing (1):	23:16, 40:9, 40:16,	49:19	Purpose (7): 10:19,	RCWC (2): 2:19,
18:10	41:22, 42:11, 51:14,	Proof (1): 36:14	72:12, 72:13, 73:18,	6:9
Prevents (1): 45:1	51:20	Properties (2): 35:9,	73:19, 75:9, 76:9	RFRA (2): 44:7,
Preview (1): 26:4	Proceedings (5):	48:2	Purposely (1): 12:16	78:5
Prides (1): 75:22	4:10, 21:22, 40:7,	Property (9): 34:14,	Purposes (1): 73:13	RIDLEY (2): 5:17,
Priest (1): 35:21	86:11, 88:3	34:16, 41:8, 42:4,	Pursuant (1): 26:7	6:12
Priests (2): 32:14,	Proceeds (1): 66:2	46:16, 54:15, 72:21,	Pursue (4): 21:18,	RULINGSPAGEL
35:20	Process (30): 24:15,	73:2, 75:3	24:17, 40:3, 46:2	INE (1): 87:2
Primary (3): 64:6,	25:19, 26:25, 35:6,	Proposal (16):	Pursued (2): 46:3,	RYAN (1): 2:19
64:8, 75:9	47:15, 54:4, 61:13,	12:16, 12:21, 13:1,	47:18	Rainer (1): 3:2
Principal (2): 36:8,	71:6, 71:9, 72:9,	13:24, 14:10, 14:11,	Pursuing (3): 24:14,	Raise (3): 47:24,
73:19	72:24, 72:25, 73:24,	15:7, 15:12, 21:7,	41:2, 43:20	48:12, 66:2
Prior (3): 26:22,	74:7, 74:13, 74:16,	27:9, 30:24, 49:1,	Pursuit (1): 26:24	Raised (6): 8:25,
35:2, 36:25	74:18, 74:22, 75:1,	49:6, 49:7, 50:21,	Purview (2): 12:19,	16:12, 20:14, 34:16,
Privilege (27):	75:2, 75:3, 75:7,	64:24	13:14	44:7, 63:9
10:11, 10:15, 10:16,	76:12, 76:13, 77:10,	Propose (2): 9:22,	Pushes (1): 23:11	Randall (2): 8:20,
10:19, 10:22, 11:2,	77:11, 78:11, 79:14,	58:2	Put (11): 13:20,	33:23
11:7, 13:5, 13:12,	79:17, 79:20	Proposed (2): 58:4,	14:22, 20:11, 44:13,	Raped (1): 32:15
13:21, 17:6, 17:10,	Professionals (7):	83:3	50:1, 62:11, 66:19,	Rather (4): 40:3,
17:16, 18:11, 18:15,	18:1, 29:16, 30:20,	Proposes (1): 34:3	68:23, 73:4, 74:25,	63:15, 83:6, 83:23
18:19, 28:13, 48:18,	31:2, 55:9, 56:21,	Proposing (1): 25:4	84:8	Re (2): 33:10, 33:23
49:2, 49:8, 49:25,	57:3	Proposition (1):		Reach (6): 31:14,
50:2, 51:2, 51:4,	Progress (2): 64:3,	46:11	Q	32:19, 42:16, 56:7,
51:7, 56:4, 60:14	64:4	Prosecution (1):	Quick (2): 61:16,	56:22, 75:16
Probably (7): 33:20,		46:9		Reached (4): 13:24,
36:24, 41:6, 43:6,		Prospects (1): 26:19	Quickly (3): 24:6,	38:14, 39:9, 85:15
68:19, 70:22, 80:6	10:3, 11:13, 14:8,	Protect (2): 10:16,	34:23, 76:3	Read (8): 9:3, 14:16,
Probative (1): 75:4	14:8, 15:11, 15:14,		Quite (1): 67:13	16:2, 16:4, 16:4,
Problem (4): 15:5,	18:17, 20:17, 20:23,		Quiz (1): 71:3	25:18, 48:19, 73:12
17:6, 59:15, 68:4			Quote (5): 24:11,	Reading (5): 48:18,
Problematic (1):	50:19, 52:2, 59:10,	Provided (2): 4:11,	29:2, 30:4, 35:11,	59:22, 65:7, 65:10,

66:3	Recitation (1): 65:5	Rejected (1): 14:12	Reorganized (1):	Residential (1):
Ready (4): 30:15,	Recognized (1):	Rejection (1): 47:8	65:11	54:18
31:5, 66:14, 69:21	29:16	Related (2): 41:23,	Repeat (3): 10:1,	Resolution (19):
Real (17): 36:4,	Recommend (2):	41:23	20:10, 31:6	21:2, 26:12, 26:20,
40:8, 42:4, 42:15,	65:7, 66:3	Relates (3): 13:19,	Repeated (2): 26:10,	27:21, 31:3, 31:14,
43:2, 47:24, 48:1,	Recompenses (1):	17:5, 35:1	48:17	32:19, 32:22, 38:14,
48:4, 48:7, 54:9,	75:18	Relationship (1):	Repeatedly (1):	60:25, 72:7, 72:7,
54:12, 54:15, 54:19,	Reconcile (1): 46:15	75:25	I 0:2 I	73:1, 74:21, 75:11,
60:10, 65:14, 65:24,	Record (8): 10:13,	Relevant (4): 34:8,	Reply (7): 11:10,	75:16, 75:17, 76:2,
66:4	11:1, 15:14, 22:3,	36:18, 56:10, 73:16	15:20, 15:21, 15:21,	82:21
Realign (1): 35:15	26:8, 83:16, 83:19,	Relief (2): 34:22,	16:10, 16:13, 16:23	Resolve (11): 27:14,
Realignment (1):	88:3	79:11	Report (9): 9:4,	34:18, 35:1, 40:5,
35:6	Recorded (1): 4:10	Religion (1): 42:20	9:15, 10:5, 12:24,	43:23, 44:3, 44:5,
Realize (4): 19:17,	Recorder (1): 4:1	Religious (4): 42:19,	12:24, 13:11, 17:20,	70:14, 71:16, 74:9,
55:15, 78:23, 78:24	Recording (1): 4:10	43:3, 43:7, 43:8	49:18, 56:12	78:8
Realized (2): 64:21,	Records (1): 48:7	Rely (1): 83:16	Reported (2): 12:7,	Resolved (9): 37:10,
67:22	Recovery (1): 27:24	Remaining (1): 34:9	27:7	37:22, 38:3, 44:10,
Really (15): 10:6,	Redacted (2): 13:7,	Remark (2): 69:1,	Represent (4):	44:11, 70:5, 72:21,
16:17, 21:24, 22:17,	13:8	71:5	32:17, 60:20, 60:20,	73:6, 78:7
27:15, 37:2, 37:18,	Refer (1): 83:4	Remember (7):	71:8	Resources (1):
40:7, 57:11, 71:21,	Reference (1): 67:6	12:11, 14:12, 15:23,	Representation (2):	35:15
73:12, 75:4, 79:23,	Referred (2): 50:20,	47:4, 52:13, 52:13,	14:6, 72:20	Respect (15): 12:5,
79:25, 83:21	85:14	79:7	Represented (1):	13:12, 16:23, 17:16,
Reason (3): 23:7,	Refile (2): 45:3,	Remembering (1):	49:13	21:7, 27:21, 31:8,
58:3, 80:20	68:14	41:11	Representing (2):	38:7, 54:3, 57:3,
Reasonable (1):	Reforms (1): 76:14	Remind (2): 13:22,	36:25, 59:10	57:7, 59:17, 60:13,
21:17	Refuted (1): 29:20	41:5	Request (3): 10:25,	69:1, 72:1
	Regard (14): 10:9,		55:11,85:4	Respected (1):
44:20, 70:15, 70:16,	16:23, 34:15, 36:10,	Renowned (1):	Requested (2): 16:9,	13:13
71:24, 80:7, 81:13	36:10, 39:1, 39:19,	53:20	49:5	Respectfully (2):
Recall (6): 14:4,	42:4, 50:1, 50:13,	Reorganization	Requesting (1):	36:11, 85:4
14:8, 14:13, 49:4,	57:19, 63:22, 64:23,	(15): 21:3, 26:24,	34:22	Respond (4): 12:3,
52:18, 53:13	65:5	30:23, 46:17, 55:3,	Requests (1): 78:21	17:9, 20:23, 28:14
Received (2): 17:2,	Regarding (6):	66:1, 66:5, 72:9,	Required (2): 32:21,	Response (8): 11:10,
48:6	29:22, 29:23, 30:2,	72:25, 75:6, 76:6,	34:20	14:22, 24:11, 24:12,
Recent (5): 9:16,	31:7, 61:11, 82:4	76:9, 76:12, 76:17,	Requirements (2):	43:8, 43:11, 59:1,
14:19, 30:2, 30:9,	Reiterate (1): 50:13	76:2 I	, 9, , 9 ,	61:18
63:17	Reject (2): 36:4,	Reorganize (2):	Reserves (1): 84:19	l -
Recess (1): 66:17	57:23	34:25, 73:21	Reserving (1): 25:25	Responsibility (1):

69:3	Rights (13): 43:8,	88:4	61:18, 63:13, 63:22,	Sense (8): 11:7,
Rest (3): 15:12,	43:20, 45:14, 53:2,		85:14	19:5, 20:22, 21:17,
55:11, 73:4	57:19, 72:21, 75:2,	4:4, 88:4	Schiavonis (3):	21:19, 40:22, 56:20,
Restricted (3): 40:9,	75:3, 78:5, 78:5,	SONTCHI (7):	49:10, 56:15, 64:18	74:24
40:10, 78:2	78:17, 80:19, 84:20	3:34, 62:6, 62:10,	Schools (2): 27:13,	Senses (1): 11:23
Restrictions (1):	Rightsize (2): 29:3,	62:13, 62:16, 62:19,	41:24	Sent (1): 13:7
70:10	35:9	62:23	Scrambling (1):	Separate (1): 85:16
Restructure (2):	Rightsizing (1): 54:3	Saint (1): 3:19	16:19	Separately (1): 42:6
35:3, 54:23	Riverside (1): 3:4	Same (6): 7:25,	Screen (3): 31:21,	Separating (1):
Restructuring (1):	Road (1): 46:23	33:21, 37:2, 61:9,	50:25, 55:23	79:15
53:20	Roll (1): 7:16	71:19, 71:21	Sears (1): 37:1	September (1): 49:6
Result (4): 47:7,	Roman (3): 5:4,	San (2): 2:11, 41:10	Seat (1): 68:9	Serves (1): 81:20
47:8, 59:5, 75:11	30:19, 55:7	Sandler (3): 2:3,	Seated (1): 66:20	Service (1): 4:11
Resulting (1): 79:17	Room (2): 22:19,	5:21,6:6	Second (11): 14:8,	Session (3): 13:23,
Retained (1): 48:1	67:23	Sat (1): 75:13	17:23, 33:14, 34:7,	49:16, 85:8
Retention (1): 9:17	Rose (2): 2:20, 6:9	Satisfactory (1):	53:11, 53:14, 69:19,	Sessions (4): 27:6,
Revealed (1): 12:16	Roseland (1): 2:5	78:18	72:21, 73:15, 78:19,	30:23, 50:8, 85:9
Reverse (1): 50:19	Ross (1): 2:21	Satisfied (1): 77:5	78:20	Set (6): 10:13, 33:9,
Review (1): 16:20	Route (1): 40:6	Satisfies (1): 75:2	Secondly (1): 64:5	55:13, 58:5, 79:21,
Rewritten (1):	Rule (4): 17:15,	Satisfy (1): 38:1	Secret (3): 12:8,	81:21
57:18	22:3, 25:22, 68:25	Satisfying (1): 73:9	12:9, 12:12	Setting (1): 31:10
Ridley (1): 6:12	Ruled (1): 49:14	Saying (4): 18:16,	Section (4): 10:10,	Settle (4): 28:10,
Right (47): 7:9,	Rules (2): 10:14,	24:19, 38:10, 65:19	16:25, 17:6, 33:7	30:25, 78:8, 78:9
7:14, 9:5, 15:11,	25:20	Scale (1): 80:6	Sections (1): 13:7	Settled (2): 63:25,
15:24, 15:24, 16:16,	Ruling (7): 18:9,	Scant (1): 66:22	Seeing (3): 7:25,	72:6
17:3, 18:17, 18:20,	22:15, 23:3, 50:16,	Scarred (1): 75:12	8:4, 48:3	Settlement (6):
18:23, 19:21, 22:13,	69:17, 83:4, 86:3	Scenario (1): 67:15	Seek (1): 58:7	29:6, 37:23, 50:21,
23:9, 23:19, 24:20,	Rulings (2): 45:12,	Schedule (5): 15:17,	Seeking (3): 28:3,	64:24, 70:6, 85:22
36:16, 37:5, 39:4,	66:23	16:7, 16:14, 16:17,	58:6, 58:24	Settlements (2):
41:4, 42:20, 43:9,	Run (1): 34:23	47:22	Seeks (2): 21:25,	39:9, 85:15
43:13, 44:13, 45:10,	Ryan (1): 6:8	Scheduled (2): 85:8,	33:2	Seven (1): 54:18
52:2, 52:11, 53:17,		85:9	Seems (3): 24:24,	Several (4): 7:11,
56:15, 61:15, 62:5,	S	Schedules (1):	70:20, 71:16	24:16, 45:4, 63:21
62:24, 63:8, 64:20,	SCHIAVONI (12):	70:18	Sell (7): 36:4, 47:24,	Severity (2): 36:22,
65:19, 66:12, 66:23,	2:25, 6:24, 8:9,	Scheme (4): 57:12,	48:4, 58:15, 58:16,	72:18
68:5, 68:15, 69:22,	8:12, 8:16, 8:20,	57:14, 58:1, 58:22	65:9, 66:2	Sex (2): 37:16,
69:22, 78:16, 80:12,	8:23, 28:12, 28:23,	Schiavoni (10):	Selling (1): 29:4	38:18
82:6, 83:7, 83:15,	32:5, 56:17, 63:4	28:22, 32:3, 32:5,	Send (3): 33:1,	Shane (1): 5:14
86:8	SHAPIRO (2): 4:4,	49:20, 50:20, 56:18,	50:20, 63:17	Shapiro (1): 88:2

Sharona (1): 88:2	42:10	9:23, 41:2	48:25, 54:7, 59:25,	Strike (3): 10:12,
Short (2): 17:20,	Slightly (1): 42:5	Spending (1): 29:23		11:1, 16:4
30:18	Slippery (1): 17:6	Spent (1): 46:24	65:10	Strong (1): 35:25
Shorter (2): 84:2,	Slope (1): 17:7		Statements (4):	Strongly (1): 78:10
84:3	Slow (1): 64:3	-	13:11, 35:11, 60:15,	"
Shouldnt (5): 34:8,	Small (5): 7:25,	75:23	75:14	Subcon (3): 42:1,
44:13, 49:7, 71:10,	29:24, 58:23, 76:1,	Splendidly (1):	States (1): 4:2	51:20, 52:9
72:4	76:9	71:20	Status (18): 9:4,	Subject (2): 43:4,
Show (3): 23:19,	Sodomized (1):	Stage (1): 80:25	9:11, 9:15, 9:18,	78:1
23:20, 77:9	32:15	Stakeholders (3):	10:5, 11:21, 12:24,	Subjects (1): 9:16
Showed (1): 34:12	Sold (2): 66:6, 66:9	21:11, 21:12, 26:18	15:3, 15:4, 17:1,	Submission (2):
Showing (1): 7:24	Sole (1): 73:18	Stand (5): 21:1,	19:16, 27:8, 47:22,	13:6, 17:18
Shut (1): 58:16	Solutions (1): 57:1	22:2, 30:15, 31:5,		Submissions (1):
Side (1): 22:18	Somebody (4): 20:1,	56:14	81:21, 81:25	19:4
Sight (1): 24:16	1		Statutory (3): 57:12,	Submit (9): 30:8,
Significant (2):	Someday (1): 83:10		58:1, 58:22	30:14, 34:7, 36:23,
56:23, 58:17	· -	•	Stay (3): 9:18, 10:9,	
Significantly (1):	Sontchi (3): 62:6,	41:21, 42:2, 51:15,	60:10	48:13, 49:24
58:7	63:5, 85:7	52:3	Stayed (1): 40:17	Submitted (2): 29:9,
Silly (1): 84:10	Soon (2): 23:4,	Stands (2): 17:8,	Steps (1): 74:17	82:15
Similar (1): 80:10	83:11	53:11	Still (3): 21:4,	Subsequently (1):
Simple (1): 19:22	Sooner (1): 83:23		27:10, 27:18	85:18
Simplest (1): 67:3	Sorry (8): 11:9,		Stood (3): 46:22,	Substantially (1):
Simply (6): 11:21,	31:18, 31:25, 32:2,	40:4, 64:10, 77:3	47:9, 47:19	27:23
34:18, 60:25, 78:7,			Stop (2): 10:12,	Substantive (2):
79:2, 79:19	68:9	37:18	19:4	36:13, 51:14
Singh (1): 66:13	Sort (6): 9:22, 11:5,	State (24): 9:18,	Story (1): 69:15	Substantively (2):
Single (4): 36:3,		29:12, 33:1, 33:15,	Stout (1): 29:17	41:15, 41:22
36:4, 48:7, 75:20	73:17	36:8, 36:13, 36:20,	Straight (1): 73:5	Success (2): 80:4,
Sinnott (1): 3:9	Sought (1): 51:21	43:1, 43:2, 43:22,	Straightforward (1):	80:4
Sit (1): 76:8	Sound (1): 4:10	44:12, 44:15, 45:1,	58:4	Sudden (2): 45:6,
Site (1): 54:15	Sounds (2): 24:1,	45:2, 48:22, 52:21,	Street (8): 2:9, 2:15,	65:23
Situation (3): 59:6,	28:21	68:18, 73:19, 73:24,		
71:25, 79:6	Space (3): 21:23,	74:6, 74:13, 75:4,	45:9, 88:6	Sufficient (3):
Six (1): 59:13	37:17, 38:18	76:4, 85:25		21:12, 46:4, 80:8
Sixty (1): 58:15	Speak (1): 8:15		l '	Suggest (3): 62:1,
Skarzynski (1): 3:29	-		Stricken (2): 16:24,	""
Skipped (1): 20:6	Specific (1): 31:5	13:20, 14:1, 16:9,	17:15	Suggested (2):
Skirmishes (1):	Spend (3): 9:10,	28:2, 35:4, 35:5,	Strident (1): 24:10	15:19, 67:20

Suggesting (2):	Surrounding (1):	Task (1): 35:7	84:11, 84:17	63:24, 76:22, 77:4
37:10, 82:12	37:23	Tasking (1): 56:1	Theoretically (3):	Thirty (6): 26:8,
Suggestion (2):	Surviors (1): 3:15	Taylor (1): 37:3	68:15, 71:22, 71:23	
57:22, 60:23	Survivor (4): 27:4,	Telling (4): 14:8,	Thereafter (1):	32:15, 54:22
Suggestions (1):	35:2, 36:5, 36:18	15:6, 18:16, 47:10	11:11	Thoroughly (1):
76:14	Survivors (9): 6:22,	Ten (2): 30:10,	Thered (1): 74:4	69:2
Suggests (1): 15:7	13:15, 32:13, 32:20,	66:12	Theres (38): 7:2,	Though (7): 16:6,
Suite (12): 2:10,	36:10, 44:13, 47:8,	Tend (1): 22:18	17:22, 18:14, 20:2,	35:2, 36:2, 54:14,
2:16, 2:22, 2:29,	47:17, 48:20	Tenet (1): 39:17	21:9, 22:11, 25:7,	70:23, 74:14, 84:12
2:36, 3:5, 3:12,	Sustainable (1):	Tenets (1): 36:9	36:3, 36:8, 36:21,	Thought (4): 16:3,
3:18, 3:25, 3:31,	81:6	Tension (2): 70:8,	37:13, 43:9, 53:25,	52:2, 64:23, 83:20
4:7, 88:6	Sustained (2):	78:4	57:21, 59:9, 59:15,	Thoughts (4):
Summary (2): 9:21,	28:21, 28:22	Terms (6): 12:16,	61:6, 65:20, 67:12,	15:12, 26:1, 66:19,
65:11	Sustenance (1):	12:18, 21:2, 56:22,	67:15, 67:17, 69:8,	66:22
Sunday (1): 14:12	75:23	73:4, 83:3	69:19, 70:13, 71:13,	Threat (2): 58:10,
Supervision (1) :	System (3): 64:9,	Terribly (1): 73:16	71:18, 72:6, 73:3,	58:10
32:14	69:4, 72:15	Test (5): 33:8, 36:7,	73:16, 78:8, 79:5,	Three (7): 12:10,
Support (13): 16:9,		52:17, 52:19, 69:12	79:22, 80:8, 80:17,	27:10, 30:23, 30:24,
21:11, 21:12, 26:13,	Т	Testimony (1):	80:25, 81:14, 85:6,	34:9, 59:9, 69:8
29:14, 31:7, 34:22,	TELLES (1): 3:21	38:22	85:7	Threemediators (1):
39:3, 50:21, 54:20,	TIMOTHY (2):	Thanks (3): 22:22,	Theyre (26): 7:14,	13:1
64:25, 65:14, 72:18	2:13, 3:36	84:22, 86:10	15:8, 15:8, 15:8,	Throughout (10):
Supported (4): 30:8,	TODD (1): 3:1	Thats (51): 17:22,	17:1, 23:18, 24:9,	26:8, 26:10, 26:17,
51:1, 51:6, 67:4	TURNER (10):	18:21, 18:23, 19:20,	24:19, 25:5, 25:7,	28:6, 30:18, 30:21,
Supporting (1): 28:2	2:32, 6:15, 6:19,	20:21, 29:4, 30:6,	36:10, 43:17, 43:17,	54:22, 55:10, 61:12,
Supports (2): 27:22,	7:20, 8:25, 60:7,	37:4, 37:9, 37:13,	43:17, 43:21, 43:22,	
46:11	60:9, 60:12, 60:19,	38:5, 39:5, 39:6,	44:9, 48:11, 50:24,	Throw (1): 55:20
Suppose (3): 9:4,	61:3	39:11, 39:15, 42:1,	57:18, 64:10, 65:15,	Thrown (1): 31:2
53:15, 58:9	TX (1): 2:23	44:11, 51:16, 52:5,	65:24, 71:2, 80:19,	Ties (2): 9:22, 29:8
Sure (11): 5:24,		52:14, 53:7, 53:10,		Tim (2): 5:23, 8:9
9:11, 9:24, 18:4,	35:7, 60:14, 67:19	58:24, 59:5, 61:1,	Theyve (11): 17:11,	Timeconsuming (1):
18:12, 19:8, 20:24,	Talked (1): 36:5	62:15, 62:15, 62:20,	19:18, 24:10, 25:17,	46:21
25:2, 38:23, 63:2,		62:21, 64:12, 68:19,		1
84:16	12:11, 20:2, 21:4,	68:21, 71:14, 71:15,	66:5, 70:17, 70:18,	Times (3): 11:21,
Surety (2): 3:22,	52:3, 52:4, 52:7,	73:4, 73:24, 74:5,	71:1	59:11, 78:25
3:23	59:23, 60:1	75:1, 75:19, 75:21,	_	1
Surprise (1): 48:4	Talks (1): 35:5		68:10, 70:11, 81:17	
Surreply (2): 10:6,	Tancred (2): 32:5,		Third (7): 33:14,	
10:8	56:17	81:14, 81:18, 82:12,	35:4, 36:6, 46:8,	50:13, 84:23

Timothy (1): 6:24	Transcript (2): 4:11,	Twelve (5): 25:9,	22:25, 23:5, 23:8,	Unable (1): 32:19
Tiny (1): 26:7	88:2		1 , , , ,	Unauthorized (2):
Tip (1): 74:3	Transcription (1):	65:14		10:6, 11:11
Tirelessly (1): 26:9	4:11	* '		Unconfirmable (1):
Titled (3): 54:9,	Transcripts (2):	30:10, 30:22, 50:7,	50:18, 51:3, 51:5,	46:10
54:12, 65:15	34:20, 46:22	50:7		Under (11): 17:17,
Today (35): 8:8,	Transfer (1): 51:18	Twentyfour (1):	51:20, 52:2, 52:3,	19:1, 27:3, 29:12,
8:15, 13:16, 13:18,	Transferred (1): 9:1		52:5, 52:8, 52:14,	42:21, 43:1, 43:2,
20:18, 21:1, 21:23,	Transmitted (1):	Two (26): 3:4,		64:21, 73:9, 75:2,
_	64:24		53:10, 53:16, 53:18,	
23:11, 23:17, 25:5,	Travelers (4): 3:21,			
25:16, 25:19, 25:23,		30:9, 30:10, 30:10,		53:8
	Traveling (1): 16:19	36:6, 36:8, 46:14,	56:12, 56:14, 60:3,	Unfair (2): 25:21,
27:17, 27:18, 30:15,	Travesty (1): 32:18	52:17, 53:10, 59:13,	61:20, 62:1, 62:4,	34:12
31:15, 34:16, 48:10,	Trial (4): 32:12,	63:10, 63:25, 64:1,	66:15, 67:1, 68:1,	Unfairly (1): 33:12
48:24, 50:14, 50:24,	34:2, 45:2, 47:15	67:20, 67:24, 69:8,	81:20, 81:23, 81:25,	Unfounded (1):
56:1, 60:16, 80:16,	Trials (1): 38:21	73:18, 75:17, 77:19,	82:3, 82:12, 82:13,	22:14
80:21, 80:21, 83:20,	Tried (3): 45:4,	80:16	82:15, 82:20, 82:22,	Unheard (2): 30:5,
84:5	55:4, 69:20	Twoandahalf (5):	83:3, 83:6, 83:8,	30:7
Todd (2): 6:15, 60:9	True (7): 26:22,	32:11, 32:23, 36:3,	83:11, 83:13, 83:16,	Unilaterally (1):
Together (2): 66:19,	54:23, 68:19, 68:21,	43:18, 44:15	83:19, 83:24, 84:4,	65:3
79:15	74:14, 75:8, 88:3	Twoday (1): 12:9	84:12, 84:16, 84:18,	Unique (1): 59:5
Toggled (1): 48:9	Truly (2): 73:21,	Twoparty (1): 30:12	84:21,86:7	United (1): 4:2
Toggling (2): 48:11,	75:12	Typically (1): 67:8	Uetz (15): 5:8, 9:2,	Unless (1): 66:21
48:14	Trust (2): 25:10,		9:8, 10:7, 11:6,	Unrestricted (3):
Told (5): 12:17,	42:10	U	11:25, 26:2, 34:24,	29:7, 57:15, 58:7
12:18, 12:22, 15:5,	Try (12): 22:17,	UETZ (106): 5:8,	36:11, 57:6, 59:22,	Unsecured (4): 2:2,
47:13	27:13, 40:6, 46:18,	7:23, 8:1, 8:5, 9:6,	61:18, 61:19, 65:6,	31:13, 54:6, 65:22
Tons (1): 46:24	56:7, 56:21, 58:12,	9:8, 9:12, 9:15,	81:7	Untrue (1): 60:25
Took (2): 13:10,	60:24, 64:20, 75:10,	9:21, 10:1, 12:2,	Uetzs (1): 64:23	Unusual (1): 59:6
42:7	83:6, 83:13	12:5, 12:13, 12:15,	Uhhuh (1): 22:24	Up (22): 15:11,
Tort (4): 36:12,	Trying (13): 15:8,	13:25, 14:3, 14:5,	Ultimate (3): 44:2,	17:8, 17:23, 18:6,
37:18, 64:9, 73:23	36:10, 39:12, 40:4,	14:13, 14:16, 14:17,	71:13, 71:14	18:12, 22:17, 26:1,
Totality (3): 33:24,	47:1, 48:9, 74:20,	14:21, 17:19, 18:4,	Ultimately (1):	36:16, 42:2, 45:2,
34:9, 72:16	74:22, 76:11, 79:4,	18:6, 18:21, 19:6,	42:I I	49:15, 56:16, 56:24,
Totally (4): 20:17,		19:9, 19:11, 19:14,		63:1, 63:10, 69:5,
72:12, 79:8, 79:11		19:15, 20:3, 20:6,	9:20, 17:4, 40:18,	70:4, 70:4, 70:10,
Touched (1): 54:24		20:10, 20:13, 20:16,	47:6, 60:6, 60:18,	71:25, 75:1, 81:19
Transcriber (1): 4:4	7:21	20:24, 22:21, 22:23,	85:17	Updated (1): 11:22

Updates (1): 66:23	Victory (1): 29:25	48:14, 50:11	40:5, 43:18, 44:15,	73:11,83:9
Upended (1): 72:24	*	Washington (1):	50:7, 52:17, 63:25,	Wording (1): 81:7
Urge (1): 61:4	View (4): 22:8,	2:37	64:14, 81:16	Work (1): 56:21
Urged (1): 46:15	57:11, 73:14, 81:17	Wasted (1): 43:18	Whats (7): 39:18,	Worked (6): 26:9,
Use (7): 25:18,		Way (29): 9:3, 15:6,		57:8, 58:20, 59:17,
33:19, 41:16, 65:16,			69:22, 77:25, 78:2	71:13, 71:14
65:18, 65:19, 83:9	18:18, 36:9, 51:1,	22:12, 24:20, 40:3,	Whatsoever (1):	Working (1): 57:3
Used (6): 34:24,	51:7	42:18, 48:20, 53:7,	71:7	World (6): 12:20,
47:2, 54:18, 54:20,	Violates (1): 10:21	58:1, 58:19, 67:7,	Whereby (1): 25:19	12:23, 13:15, 23:2,
65:18, 73:11	Violating (1): 18:15	68:2, 68:10, 71:15,	Whereupon (2):	53:21,71:7
Using (4): 29:2,	Violation (4): 10:11,	71:22, 72:9, 72:25,	66:17, 86:11	Worth (1): 68:6
58:10,65:24,73:20	49:1, 49:8, 51:4	73:1, 74:12, 75:5,	Whole (5): 18:24,	Wouldnt (3): 20:5,
Utilize (3): 29:6,	Violations (1):	76:6, 77:18, 79:1,	39:5, 65:25, 67:22,	57:18, 57:19
54:5, 65:12	48:17	81:9, 82:21, 84:9	79:14	Write (1): 83:21
Utilized (2): 54:17,	Virtually (1): 30:7	Ways (5): 11:20,	Whos (2): 11:15,	Writing (1): 84:1
66:6	Vital (1): 26:13	35:15, 70:24, 70:25,	71:3	Written (3): 10:18,
Utmost (1): 57:2	Vote (1): 47:9	73:18	Whose (1): 79:23	57:18, 84:2
		Weapon (1): 58:11	Whove (1): 76:24	Wrong (3): 17:13,
V	W	Wed (1): 40:17	Willing (3): 12:23,	22:19, 76:19
Vacant (2): 54:9,	WEDNESDAY	Week (1): 76:8	13:15, 29:6	Wrongly (1): 30:3
54:11	(1): 5:1	Weeks (2): 22:7,	Withdraw (1):	Wyatt (2): 31:23,
Valuation (2):	WEISENBERG	80:16	25:23	61:7
37:24, 39:1	(3): 2:1, 5:11, 6:5	Weigh (1): 19:3	Withdrawn (1):	
Value (3): 36:15,	WI (1): 2:17	Weisenberg (2): 6:6,	29:21	Y
36:24, 37:24	WYATT (4): 3:21,	46:22	Withdrew (2):	Year (4): 46:12,
Valued (2): 29:12,	31:23, 32:2, 61:7	Welcome (2): 32:7,	29:25, 54:8	46:23, 47:19, 80:10
39:10	Wait (1): 82:8	62:23	Within (3): 12:19,	Yearandahalf (1):
Valuing (1): 36:18	Waited (1): 32:17	Wellrespected (1):	13:14, 80:19	45:22
Various (4): 11:22,	Waive (2): 13:18,	29:16	Without (12): 14:9,	Years (9): 32:11,
60:1, 73:8, 74:20	17:10	Werent (3): 45:24,	15:6, 22:1, 22:5,	32:16, 32:23, 36:3,
Vastly (1): 78:23	Walked (2): 68:1,	45:25, 46:2	22:16, 25:9, 26:7,	43:18, 44:16, 59:13,
Vehicles (1): 74:20	68:2	Westport (6): 3:1,	30:5, 31:11, 33:2,	59:13, 68:14
Version (1): 8:3	Wants (5): 8:7,	6:16, 60:9, 60:13,	38:3, 87:3	Yep (1): 81:24
Veto (7): 57:25,	24:23, 56:4, 61:15,	60:20, 60:24	Withprejudice (3):	Yesterday (1): 13:11
58:10, 58:10, 59:3,	80:15	Westports (1): 61:9		York (1): 2:30
59:4, 64:19, 64:19	Warn (1): 11:1	Weve (18): 13:20,	Wont (2): 10:1,	Youd (1): 63:15
Via (5): 2:26, 3:22,	1	26:10, 32:19, 32:23,		Youll (2): 22:2, 49:4
3:37, 3:39, 7:12	Warrant (1): 34:10			Youre (16): 5:24,
Victims (1): 75:18	Warrants (3): 46:4,	36:15, 36:24, 39:20,	33:19, 41:15, 65:18,	14:17, 15:24, 15:24,

20:4, 20:17, 25:12, 32:7, 37:10, 38:10, 41:6, 41:14, 43:10, 62:23, 65:19, 77:23 Youve (3): 19:7, 22:2, 22:9

Z

Zoom (10): 2:26, 2:33, 3:22, 3:37, 3:39, 7:2, 7:12, 7:17, 7:19, 63:9

Exhibit D

of 5

1	FOLEY & LARDNER LLP	
2	Eileen R. Ridley (CA Bar No. 151735) Tel: (415) 438-6469; eridley@foley.com	
3	Shane J. Moses (CA Bar No. 250533) Tel: (415) 438-6404; smoses@foley.com	
4	Ann Marie Uetz (admitted <i>pro hac vice</i>) Tel: (313) 234-7114; auetz@foley.com	
5	Matthew D. Lee (admitted <i>pro hac vice</i>) Tel: (608) 258-4203; mdlee@foley.com	
	Geoffrey S. Goodman (admitted <i>pro hac vice</i>)	
6	Tel: (312) 832-4515; ggoodman@foley.com Mark C. Moore (admitted <i>pro hac vice</i>)	
7	Tel: (214) 999-4150; mmoore@foley.com One Market Plaza	
8	55 Spear Street Tower, Suite 1900 San Francisco, CA 94105	
9	Counsel for the Debtor	
10	and Debtor in Possession	
11	IINITED STATES	BANKRUPTCY COURT
12		
13		TRICT OF CALIFORNIA
14	OAKLA	ND DIVISION
15	In re:	Case No. 23-40523 WJL
16	THE ROMAN CATHOLIC BISHOP OF OAKLAND, a California corporation sole,	Chapter 11
17	Debtor.	ORDER PURSUANT TO STATUS CONFERENCE CONDUCTED ON
18	2 Color.	NOVEMBER 12, 2025, ON GRANTING DEBTOR'S MOTION TO DISMISS
19		CHAPTER 11 CASE PURSUANT TO 11 U.S.C. §1112(B)
20		Judge: Hon. William J. Lafferty
21		Judge. 11on. William J. Editorty
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		
20		

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-4 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 2 of 5

Following the hearing conducted by the Court on October 29, 2025 on the *Debtor's Motion to Dismiss Chapter 11 Case Pursuant to 11 U.S.C. §1112(b)* [Docket No. 2393] (the "Motion"), ¹ filed by the Roman Catholic Bishop of Oakland, a California corporation sole, and the debtor and debtor in possession (the "Debtor") in the above-captioned chapter 11 bankruptcy case (the "Chapter 11 Case"), and the Status Conference conducted in the Chapter 11 Case on November 12, 2025, for the reasons stated on the record October 29, 2025 and November 12, 2025, which constitute the Court's findings of fact and conclusions of law pursuant to Fed. Rule Bankr. Proc. 7052, **IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:**

- 1. The Motion is GRANTED for the reasons stated on the record October 29, 2025 and subject to the terms set forth herein.
- 2. The Court concludes for the reasons stated on the record October 29, 2025, there is no bad faith by the Debtor which would cause the Court to dismiss the Chapter 11 Case with prejudice or with a bar to the Debtor filing another bankruptcy case.
- 3. ____ The Court concludes the Chapter 11 Case shall be dismissed without prejudice unless, on or beforeeffective on November 26, 2025 at or by 11:59 p.m. Pacific Time (the "Effective Date"), provided, however, the Court may extend the Effective Date if: (a) the Debtor and the Committee file a joint the Debtor files a statement with the Court indicating that in the Debtor's judgment it has made progress toward a settlement has been made: or (b) the Debtor or any other party in interest files a statement with the Court indicating that progress has been made, and the Court after notice and a hearing finds cause for such an extension. All parties in interest reserve all rights to support or object to any request to extend the Effective Date. and accordingly will file and pursue confirmation of a fourth amended plan of reorganization.
- 3.4. Any request for an extension of the Effective Date shall be filed not later than 4:00 p.m. PT on November 24, 2025. Any objections to a request for an extension of the Effective Date must be filed by no later than 4:00 pm PT on November 25, 2025. The Court shall hold a hearing on any request for an extension of the Effective Date on November 26, 2025 at _______.m. PT via Zoom.

ORDER PURSUANT TO STATUS CONFERENCE CONDUCTED ON NOVEMBER 12, 2025

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-4 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 3

4937-3798-1817.2

¹ Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Motion.

This Court shall retain jurisdiction with respect to all matters arising from or related to the implementation of or interpretation of this Order. *** END OF ORDER *** ORDER PURSUANT TO STATUS CONFERENCE CONDUCTED ON NOVEMBER 12, 2025

Case: 23-40523 Doc# 2456-4 Filed: 11/20/25 Entered: 11/20/25 12:07:23 Page 4

COURT SERVICE LIST

All ECF Recipients.

ORDER PURSUANT TO STATUS CONFERENCE CONDUCTED ON NOVEMBER 12, 2025

o 4047.2